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To the Honorable Mayor, Members of the City Commission, and Citizens Adan Farias
of the City of Pharr, Texas: CITY MANAGER
Fred Sandoval

The Finance Department and the City Manager's Office are pleased to submit the Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report for the City of Pharr, Texas for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2014,
State law requires that the City publish, within six months of the close of each fiscal year, a complete
set of audited financial statements. This report is published to fulfill that requirement.

Management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of the information
contained in this report, based upon a comprehensive framework of internal control that it has
established for this purpose. To provide a reasonable basis for making these representations,
management of the City has established a comprehensive internal control framework that i designed
both to protect the government's assets from loss, theft, or misuse and to compile sufficient reliable
information for the preparation of the City's financial statements in conformity with Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP). Because the cost of internal control should not exceed

anticipated benefits, the objective is to provide reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance that the
financial statements are free of any material misstatements,

Oscar R. Gonzalez, CPA and Associates, P.L..L.C. have issued an unqualified (“¢lean™) opinion on

the City of Pharr’s financial statements for the year ended September 30, 2014. The independent
auditor's report is located at the front of the financial section of this report.

In addition to meeting the requirements set forth in state statutes, the audit was also designied to meet
the requirements of the Single Audit Act and OMS Circular A-133, Generally accepted auditing
standards and the standards set forth in the Government Accountability Office's Government
Auditing Standards were used by the auditors in conducting the engagement. The auditors' report on
the basic financial statements and required supplementary information as well as the individual fund
statements and schedules are included in the financial section of this report. The auditors' report on

mternal controls and compliance with applicable laws and regulations can be found in the single
audit section of this report.

Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A ) immediately follows the independent auditors'
report and provides a narrative introduction, overview and analysis of the basic financial statements.
MD&A complement this letler of transmittal and should be read in conjunction with it.

The City of Pharr is required to undergo an arnual single audit in conformity with the provisions of
the Single Audit Act of 1984 and the U.8. Office of Management and Budget's Circular A-133,
Audits of State and Local Governments and Non-Profit Organizations and the State of Texas Single
Audit Circular. Information related 10 this singie audit, including a schedule of expenditures of

Telephone [956) 402-4100 - Fax {756) 702-5313 - P.O. Box 1729 = 118 5. Cage * Phorr, Texas 78577
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federal and state awards, the independent auditors’ report on internal controls and compliance with
]

applicable laws and regulations, and a schedule of findings and questioned costs are included in the
single audit section of this report.

On November 10, 2008 via ordinance O-2008-49, the Pharr Economic Development Corporation
(PEDC) was approved by citizen vote and ratified by the City Commission to receive ¥ percent (the
City receives | ¥ percent) of sales tax. City management has included PEDC in its financial reports
as a blended component unit since the City appoints all board members, can remove board members
at will, and must approve PEDC’s budget and plan of work. The City is also a guarantor for debt
that is collateralized by PEDC funds. City management has also included the Pharr Public Facilities
Corporation (PFC) #1 and the Pharr Tax Increment Reinvestment Zone (TIRZ) in its financial
slalements as a blended component unit under same eriteria followed for PEDC. More information
conceming the PEDC, PFC, and TIRZ are located in the Notes to Financial Statements,

PROFILE OF THE GOVERNMENT

Located on lands originally known in the 1600°s as the Seno Mejicano, the City of Pharr was
founded in 1909, During a period of great social and economic transition in the Rio Grande Valley.
In 1909, John C. Kelly, Henry N. Pharr, W.E Cage, and R.E Briggs formed the Pharr Townsite
Company, platting and registering the new town. Kelly donated lots in the original plat for early
churches, including the Methodist, Baptist, Catholic, Episcopal, and Presbyterian denominations.
Pharr schools began in 1911, and the commuuity later joined with San Juan and Alamo to create the
Pharr-San Juan-and Alamo School District. The City founders were also involved with the
Louisiana - Rio Grande Canal Co., organized in 1910 Lo furnish irigation and domestic water o
40,000 acres in the Pharr area by means of a Rio Grande Pumping Plant, The water system led the
economy to shift from ranching to crop production, and the Railroad, which came through the arca in
1905 made it possible to ship the produce around the country. Amidst the explosive growth caused
by the introduction of irrigation. the coming of the railroad. and the Mexican Revolution, the City

incorporated in 1916, and became a hub for the confluence of Tejano, Anglo and Mejicano
influences in the region.

Centrally located, Pharr played a key role as the agricultural frontier pushed into the brush and cattle
country in the early 1900°s to form a new fertile land dubbed the “Magic Valley”™. Aswater from the
Rio Grande was being diverted for irrigation, Pharr served as headquarters [or the Louisiana-Rio
Grande Canal Company owned and operated by the Pharr co {ounders John €. Kelly and Henry N.

Pharr. The company built the historic Hidalgo Pumphouse that initially irrigated 40,000 acres of
land known as Pharr-Kelly tract.

Pharr, served by two state highways and the St Louis, Brownsville and Mexico Railway Company,
became a hub and a natural shipping center for the transportation and produce industries. By the
early 1950's, Pharr was home to 22 processing and shipping businesses including the Valley Fruit
and Vegetable Company, the largest packing fucility in the world, Pharr is situated along a 43-mile
corridor, U.S Business 83, once known as the longest Main Street in America. The City's image as
the Hub City was firmly established when the Texas Highway Department chose Pharr as its District
21 Headquarters in 1932. The 13,869 8q mile district is composed of ten counties and is larger than
the District of Columbia, Delaware, Connecticut and Massachusetts combined. Since the early days,
Pharr sat at the cross-roads of the two most important highways in the Valley: Highways 4 and 66,
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known today as Memorial Highway U.8 281 (US i69) and U.S Business 83 (US i2) respectively.
They interseet Pharr’s historical Main Street District and are the basis for Hidalgo County’s
historical trails, making Pharr the region’s historical hub as well. Pharr is also a center for
international trade. The City boasts of the longest Intemnational Bridge in the world and is the
pateway to Latin America along 1.8 281, Pharr is the terminus for Interstate Highway 69, NAFTA

Corridor, linking Mexico, United States and Canada. In 20086, (he city of Pharr was awarded the title
of All American City.

The municipal government provided by the Charler of the City of Pharr is known as the Board of
Commissioners = City Manager Form of Government. The Board of Commissioners consists of a
Mayor and six (6) Commissioners which enact local legislation, adopt budgets, determine policies,
and appoint the City Manager, who is held responsible to the Board of Commissioners for the
execution of the laws and the administration of the government of the City. All powers of the City
are exercised in the manner preseribed by the City Charter, or, if the manner be nal preseribed, then
in such manner as may be prescribed by ordinance, the State Constitution, or by the statutes of the
State of Texas. The Mayor and the other members of the Board of Commissioners are elected by the
City at large for a term of four (4) years.

The City provides a full range of services. Some of these services include police and fire protection:
sanitation service; maintenance of streets and infrastructure; and recreational activities. Inaddition,
the City provides water and wastewater services, a system of municipal parks, and a golf course,

ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK

Pharr is strategically located in the middle of the Rio Grande Valley of South Texas, only minutes
from the Mexico border. Today with a healthy economy and steady growth, Pharr is (he hub of
transportation for the region and a major gateway for NAFT A-oriented businesses. Tt is strategically
located to reap the benefits of explosive growth in commerce and trade. The Pharr area offers a top-
quality workforce on both sides of the border, Many visitors enjoy the diversity of Pharr's culture,
business and people with its variety and retail outlets, residential neighborhoods and cultural events -

Pharr’s rich heritage is unwavering. The spirit of tradition and a strong sense of community are
flourishing in Pharr.

Overthe last 10 years, Pharr has experienced unprecedented growth and economic development, and
increase of roughly 46% in sales tax collections. Its population has steadily increased (o almost
80.000 people. The housing industry is still increasing, businesses continue (o look at Pharr, and the
Pharr-Reynosa International Bridge commercial traffic is continuing to increase. The sales tax base
is growing and is expected (o continue to have a positive outcome in the upcoming year, thereby

potentially creating more jobs. The economic future looks bright for Pharr. A few of the upcoming
projects include:

* Major commercial development projects

¢ Healthcare area development

o Increase in industrial warehouses

« Information Technology industry development
= Continued redevelopment of local mall
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According to the Texas Workforce Commission, Phart’s unemployment rate as of September 30,
2014 was 7,6%, With the city’s largest labor force ever recorded, having over 25,600 people

employed is a good signal of the city’s economic condition. The following table provides a
comparison of employment information over the last 10 yeurs:

. Labor
Year Employment Unemployment
Force ‘

Unemployment Rate Change -

Rate Prior Year

2014 | 27.798 25,693 2,105 7.6% 15.6%
2013 | 27,773 25,276 2,497 9.0% 2.2%
2012 | 27419 24,906 2,513 9.2% 12%
2011 | 27,678 24.799 2,879 10.4% -3%
2010 | 27,031 24.291 2.740 10.1% ~-10%
2009 | 25,693 23,318 2,375 9.2% -31%
2008 | 24,717 22.990 1,727 70% -25%
2007 | 23,508 22,203 1,305 5.6% 5%
2006 | 22,239 20,934 1.305 5.9% -2%
2005 | 21,750 20,479 1,271 5.8%

MAJOR INITIATIVES

The City Commission and staff have identified several initiatives to address significant issues in our

community. The budget for the upcoming fiscal year reflects these goals. These programs are
briefly described below:

Major tax activity: Well-managed economic growth is vital (o any city. Tt increases (he tax base
and thereby allows improved services to be provided (o the citizens.

Property Tax: Tax year 2014, which will be in effect during next fiscal year, is expected to
see an increase In lax appraisals that will provide the City with levies slightly less than this

fiscal year, A strong indicator of the City’s fiscal health is the ability to keep the same tax
rate as tax year 2009,

Sales Tax: Sales tax revenue is used by the City as an econamic indicator. This fiseal year,
sales tax revenues were budgeted at a 5% increase from last fiscal year's actual sales tax
collections, The City is expecting positive future trends in the coming vears,

Hotel/Motel Tax: Hotel/Motel tax revenve may only be used o increase tourism
opportunities, hopefully benefiting the hotel/motel industry within the eity. This year the city
saw the largest hotel/niotel 1ax revenues in the city’s history, mainly brought upon by Events
Center operations and baseball tournament play. In November 2014 the city’s citizens voted
to approve an additional 2% tax which will be used Tor debt service to fund the development
of new baseball fields and a new tennis complex. These projects are expected (o grow the
Sports Tourism opportunities for the city and the hotel/mote] industry.

Fully Fund Reserves: During the annual audit ending September 30, 2007. the General Fund was
identified as having a negative $6.4 million unreserved fund balance. This major deficiency was in
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need of immediate attention and an action plan to correet it was approved by the City Commission
September 16, 2008. One of the main corrective actions was (o separate the contingency funding
from the General Fund into an identifiable emergency-type account, in order to force the funding of
the unreserved fund balance. Another corrective action was to strive to provide funding in addition

to the contingency funds to speed up the reversal of the negative balance. Both of these major steps
in the corrective plan took place.

Public Safety: Ensuring that the public safety personnel have the tools that they need 10 ensure the
safety of the City is always a priority to the Commissioner’s and management. Last fiscal year, a
long lerm lease was entered into to assist in providing much needed assets to the Police and Fire

personnel. and several grants were awarded Lo assist in paying for public safety personnel and
equipment.

The Police Department along with the Bridge administrators collectively with federal horder security

organizations continue (o operate a southbound inspection station. The purpose is to slow the fow
of stolen vehicles and weapons into Mexico.

The Fire Department is in need of an administration building, Several grant applications have been

submitted 1o assist in paying for the building. We are still waiting on a response concerning this
assistance,

Public Works: The cost of infrastructure continues to rise while the need for the projects continues
to be a priority. An ordinance establishing an assessment fee was passed in 2006 that applies 1o
every utility bill to assist in maintaining and developing streets and drainage within the City, The
assessment provides an additional $800,000 annually for that purpose. There wasa $1 increase in
assessment fees for residential and commercial accounts, expecting 10 generate an additional

5200,000 mn revenue, This revenue is expected to be sufficient to cover the City’s annual
muintenance program, exacerbated due to the rains that ook place this year.

International Bridge Infrastructure: The bridge capital projects expenditures for the upcoming
fiscal year are budgeted at $9.6 million. There are twa goals of these projects, 1) toallow Pharr to be
the regional international trade center, and 2) to minimize the wait-times for commercial traffic,
thereby allowing Pharr to continue being the most efficient commercial bridge in south Texas.
Expenditures are expected to be funded through grants of $6.3 million and excess bridge funds.

International Trade: The City of Pharr owns an international bridge that allows the City (o have g
generous revenue source as a direct result of the North American Free Trade Agreement (NAFTA),
The majority of the bridge revenue is from commercial trucks. There are two new international
bridges in the region, one of which is expected (o stan crossing commercial trucks as of January 1,
2015 (only empty truck crossings will be allowed); the second international bridge hasa possibility
of crossing commercial trucks sometime after 2017, Although additional international bridges have
been buill, the City's flow of commereial traffic is expected to have the biggest share of crossings
and revenues.



FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Budgetary Controls: The City of Pharr maintains a system of hudgetary controls, the objective of
which 15 to ensure compliance with the legal provisions of the annual appropriated budgel approved
by the City Commission. The adopted Annual Budget is the basic budgei document. It governs all
expenditures within a certain fiscal year, which runs from October 1 to September 30. The City
Charter states that between sixty (60) and ninety (90) days prior 1o the end of the fiscal year, the City
Manager is required (o submil to the Board of Commissioners a proposed operating budget for the
fiscal year commencing the following October 1. Furthermore, the Charter requires that the
budgeted expenditures for governmental funds not exceed estimated resources and requires that
public hearings be held prior to the adoption of the budget. Directors are expected to review their
budgets on a monthly basis. The Finance Director will periodically review the budget and inform the
Director and/or management of its status, A complete¢ summary of significant accounting policies
and budgetary principles is presented in the notes to the financial statements.

Fund Accounting: In accordance with generally aceepted accounting principles. the City of Pharr
uses a fund accounting system. Fund accounting is designed to ensure that public monies are spent
for their intended purpose. Numerous funds are necessary due (o legal, financial or operating
constraints. Each fund is a separate fiscal entity with a self-balancing set of accounting books. In the
financial section of the comprehensive annual financial report, each fund type used by the City of
Pharr is defined immediately prior to that fund's financial statements.

General Fund Balance Policy: The fiscal policy as it relates to General Fund's reserve/contingency
account states: the City shall strive to maintain the General Fund undesignated/unreserved fund
balance at 90 days of the current year's budget appropriation for operations and maintenance, which
1s defined as the total budget less capital outlay purchases and the annual transfers from the General
Fund 1o the other funds. For fiscal year 2013-2014 the balance was $8.3 million; this amount was
fully funded and per City Commission action is recognized as “Committed” in our financial
statements. Concerning the use of committed fund balance. our policy states: committed fund
balance shall be used only for emergencies, non-recurring expenditures, or major capital purchases
that cannol be accommodated through current year savings, The use of these funds will be disclosed
and approved by the City Commission. 1f'the required amounts go below the stated Policy amount,
the City will set aside a sulficient portion of the upcoming fiscal year’s budget to meet the required
reserve amount. Any surpluses realized at year end shall be used first to meet reserve policies, then
capital replacement purposes, then retirement/extinguishing of deb.

Debt Administration and Rating: State law does not provide a debt limit for the issuance of debt.
however, by custom, a practical economic debt limit of 5% of the assessed valuation is used.

CGieneral obligation bonds are backed by the full faith and eredit of the City of Pharr and are used to
finance permanent public improvements. They are repaid through an apportionment of the ad
valorem tax. In February 2008, Standard & Poor’s Rating Services downgraded the City’s general
obligation debt from “A™ 10 “BBB™. InJanuary 2011, Fitch affirmed Pharr’s rating “AA™. This was
due to “Improved financial monitoring, cost controls, and financial management policies enabled the
¢ity to pramptly restore its finances, increasing its unreserved fund balance to a healthy $8.3 million
or 28% of spending by fiscal 2009, in excess of its new 25% fund balance policy. Notably, the city

vi



attained positive results despite erratic sales tax trends that posted a 6,6% decline in fiscal 2009, In
December 2012 and again in 2014, the city’s ratings were reaffirmed per the following:

S&P's  Moody's  Fitch
A AZ AA-

Cash Management: All City operating funds are held in interest-hearing demand accounts in the
depository bank. This money is protected by insurance from the Federal Deposit Insurance

Corporation and by collateral interests in the depository's investment securities that are pledged
agdinst the City's deposits.

Cash not required for operations is invested according lo the Cily's writlen investment palicy, The
policy emphasizes safety and liquidity in investing public funds. As of September 30, 2014, all of
the City’s funds were available within one day. lnvestiments consisted of demand deposit accounts in

our financial institution due to its inferest loor of 2.02%, far greater than anything in the investment
market,

Risk Management: The City continues (o put high emphasis on safety concerns so as to lower
workers' compensation claims.  Risk management, particularly workers® compensation, is

coordinated through the Human Resources Department. Insurance is provided by Texas Municipal
League for general and asset insurance management.

LONG-TERM FINANCIAL PLANNING

General Fund Unreserved Fund Balance: The unreserved, undesignated fund balance of the
General Fund is refllected in the tahle below.

Fiseal Year (expressedin millfons)

2013/2014 2012/2013 2001/72002
Unreserved, Undesignated,
Commilted, Assignad, Unassigned
Genernl Fund, Fund Balance 5 11.3 L 123 % 9.8
Days Expenditure 97 104 80
Contingency, Unassigned Ceneral

Fund, Fund Balance g 8.5 5 1.9 ] .1

Days Expenditure 73 100 82

The total General Fund balance is $13.1 million; the commitied, assigned, and unassigned fund
balance (comparable to prior year’s unreserved fund balanee) is $11.3 million and is eqjual 1o 97 days
of operating expenditures. This balance provides an adequate protection against unforeseen
occurrences and significantly decreases the likelihood of the City entering the short-term debt market
to pay for current operating expenditures. The City’s General Fund is fiscally stable.

vii



Utility Fund Net Assets: The unreserved, available nel assets of the Utility Fund is reflected in the
table below

Fiseal Yenr (expressed in millions)

2013/2014 201272013 2018/2012
Unrestricted, Available Assets 3 0.5 5 (30 5 75
Days Expense 24 [163) 190

International Bridge toll collections have historically had a significant nel revenues. providing the
City with surplus cash flow for capital projects and will affect the City’s long-term fiscal health.
Starting January 1, 2015 the Pharr International Bridge is expected o have competition in the
commercial traffic seclor. The neighboring City of McAllen owns and operates the Anzalduas
International Bridge which will be allowed (o cross commercial (raffic starting January 1, 2015; they
will only cross south-bound traftic, and only empty trucks will be allowed to cross. We conducted a
survey fo identify the fiscal effect of this new competition. We conservatively estimated a reduction
of $3.5 million in revenues, which still allows for (he responsible operation of Bridge activities and
payment of debts. We are conservatively projecting fulure revenues and Muctuations in CrOSEINgs 50
as to be prepared for any negative fiscal impacts; all projections are currently indicating that the new
competition will not cause a major decrease in our ability to continue Bridge activities and payment
of debts.

RELEVANT FINANCIAL POLICIES

The City approves fiscal policies during every budget process, they are included as a section of the
budget document. The policies are staled in sections, the sections are: Operating Budgetary,
Revenue, Expenditure/Expenses, Fund Balance/Retained Earnings, Capital Improvement, Debt
Management, Inlergovernmental Relations, Grant, Fiscal Commission Monitoring, Financial
Consultants, Accounting Auditing & Financial Reporting, Internal Control, and E-Commerce.

Purchasing, Investment, and Human Resource policies are individually prepared and adopted aside
from the budget process.

During this fiscal year, the City did not adopt new/diflerent policies outside of the standard policies
already adopted which would have a significant impact on the current year’s linancial statement,

OTHER INFORMATION

AWARDS: The Government Finance Officers Association ol the United States and Canada
(GFOA) has awarded the City a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Finaneial Reporting for
its Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the year ended September 30, 2013, The
Certificate of Achievement is a prestigious national award recognizing conformance with the highest
standards for preparation of state and local government {inancial reports.

In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government unit published an easily readable
and efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report, whose contents conform to program
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standards. Such CAFR must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable
legal requirements. ‘

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of only one year. The City has received the
Certificate of Achievement for the last six consecutive years. We believe our current report
continues to conform to the Certificate of Achievement program requirements, and we are submitting
it to GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.

The City also received the GFOA’s Distinguished Budget Presentation Award for its annual budget
dated October 1,2013. This was the City’s sixth consecutive budget award from GFOA. In order to
qualify for the Distinguished Budget Presentation Award, the City’s budget document is judged on
proficiency in several categories including policy documentation, financial planning, an operations
guide, and a communication device. The budget for October 1, 2014 has been submitted for review
and we are pending notification of an award.

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS: The preparation of this report on a timely basis could not have been
accomplished without the efficient and dedication services of the entire staff of the Finance
Department. Appreciation is expressed to City employees throughout the organization, especially
those employees who were instrumental in the successful completion of this report.

We would like to thank the members of the City Commission for their interest and support in
planning and guiding the financial operation of the City in a responsible and progressive manner.

Respectfully Submitted,

L Oleca

Fred Q\;ndmi vén G. Guerra, CPA

City Manager Chlef Financial Officer
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Toe Honorable Mayor and City Commission
City of Pharr, Texas

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the blended component units, the aggregate discretely presented compunent units, each major fund, and
the aggregate remaining fund information of City of Pharr, Texas, as of and for the vear ended Seplember 30,

2014, and the related notes to the finuncial statements, which collectively eamprise the City's basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents,

Managemeni’s Respansibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial stalements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America: this includes the design,

implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due 1o fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsihility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to fimancial audits contained in Government Awditing Siandards, issued by the Comptroller General of

the United States, Those standards require that we plan and perform the audii to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement,

An audit involves performing procedures to obfain audil evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the avditor's judgment, meluding the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the City's preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control, Accordingly, we express no
such opinion, An audit alse includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe thet the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate (o provide a basis for our audit
opinions,

Opiniony

In tur opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
Finaneial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the blended component units, the
aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the agpregate remaining fund information
of the City of Pharr, Texas, as of September 30, 2014, and the respeciive changes in financial position, and, where

applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
i the United States of America.

.1-



Oiher Maifers
Regquired Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally sccepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information on pages 3 — 9 and 63 = 64 he presenied 1o
supplement the basic finaneial statements. Such information, although nol a part of the basie financial statements,
is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of finaneial
reporting for placing the basic Financial statements in an appropriate operational. economie, or historical context.
We have applied cerfain limited procedures (o the required supplementary information in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management aboul the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with
management s responses 1o our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during
our audit of the basic financial stalements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on (he
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or
provide any assurance.

Crther formetion

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City of Pharr, Texas's basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining and
individual nonmajor fund linancial statements, and statistical section, are presented for purposes of additional
analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements, The schedule of expenditures of federal
awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget

Circular A-133, Audity of States, Local Governments. ene Non-Profit Organizations, and is also not a required
part of the basic linancial statements.

The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and tlie schedule of expenditures of federy|
awards are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly 1o the underlving
accounting and other records used (o prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been suhiern::tcd
to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additiona) procedures,
meluding comparing and reconeiling such information dircctly to the underlying accounting and other records
used (o prepare the basic financial statements or to the basie financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our
opinion, the combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and the schedule of expenditures of
federal awards are Tairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as & whale.

The mtroductory and statistical sections have not been subjected 1o the nuditing procedures npplied in the audit of
the basic financial statements and, accordingly. we do not express an apinion or provide any assurance on them.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Awditing Stamdards, we have also issued our report dated February 5, 2015, on
our consideration of the City of Pharr, Texas's intemal control over financial reporting and on our fests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters, The
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our festing of internal control aver financial reporiing and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Govermment
Auditing Stemdards in considering City of Pharr, Texas's internal control over finmmeial reporting and compliance.

Laer &£ -C?HT-?, Col F DRdsriedaf , AL
Oscar R. Gonzalez, CPA & Associates, PLLC
Certified Public Accountants

Pharr, Texas
February 5, 2015
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Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A)

As management of the City of Pharr, Texas (the City), we offer readers of the City’s financial statements this narrative overview and
analysis ol the financial activities of the City of Pharr for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2014,

E C LIG

Ihe assets of the City’s governmental activities exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal year by over
$88.24 million (net position). Of this amount, over $8.9 million (unrestricted net position) may be used to meet (he
government's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. This is an increase of mare than $5 million in unrestricted net

position, or 6.07%. The ncrease is mainly due to the expected reduction of non-current liabilities by more fhan $4.59
million,

= Al the end of the current fiscal year, fund balance for all governmental funds decreased by £1.68 million, or -3.49%: from

£48.05 million to $46.38 million. The decrease is mainly due to the Parnership Program with Evenis Center promoters.
This partnership is not expected Lo continue,

*  The asseis of the City's business-type activities excecded ils labilities at the elose of the fmost recent fiscal vear by over
$114.58 million (net position). Of this smount, over $10.28 million (unrestricted net pusition) may be used to meet the
government's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors, which is an increase of $4.26 million, or 70.9%. The increase s
due to the Litility Fund's restricted finds for capital projects. The Uility fund routinely has posifive chunge in net position
and will uge the funds to reduce the amount of financing needed for eapital projecis.

« The General Fund assets exceeded its liabilities by over $13.1 million (fund balance), OF this amount, 022 million
(unassigned fund balance) may be used to meel the General Fund's ongoing obligations, not including $8.3 million in
Commiitted funds that serves as the City's contingency balance. This is a decrease of over $3.37 million, or -93.89%, The
decrease i5 due to the purchase of land of over $200 thousand, the need to provide funding for the Hotel/Motel Fund in the
amount of roughly $752 thousand due to the Events Center Partnership Program, to the Golf Course for opermtions in the
amount of roughly 5682 thousand, to the Paving & Drainage Fund to pay off outstanding debt in the amount of $603
thausand, and to Police Athletic League for operations in the amount of voughly $229 thousand.

VERVIEW OFT : CIALS A

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the City's basic financisl starements. The City's basic
financial statements comprise of three components: 1) govermment-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3)

notes o the financial sttements. This repart also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial
statements themselves,

Government=-Wide Finnncial Stalements

The governmeni-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the City's finances,
similar to a private-sector business,

i a manney
Ihe Statement of Net Position presents information on all of the City"s assets and labilities ns well as deferred outlow and inflow of

resources, with the difference heing reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful
indicator of whether the financial position of the City is improving or deteriorating.

The Statement of Activities presents infarmation showing how the Cily's net position changed during the most recent fiscal year. All
changes in nel position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rige to the change oceurs, regardless of the timing of related
cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only resull in cash Nows in Tuture
fiscal periods (e.u.. uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave),

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are principally supporred by taxes and
intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of
their costs through user fees and charges (business-type sctivities). The governmental activities of the City include services provided
to the citizens for the basic health, safety, welfare, and administration of the City. Examples would include police snd fire protection,
animal control, sirects, and parks and reereation. The business-type activities of ihe City which include the services provided to the

¢itizens, the cost of which is recouped by user fees charged for the services. This includes water ind wastewaler services, bridge toll,
and galf course fees 1o all residents and businesses,

The government-wide financial statements include not only the City itself (known as the primary government), but also legnlly

sepnrate component units For which the City is financially accountable: the Pharr Economic Development Corporation 11 (blended
component unif) and the Pharr Public Facilities Corporation No. 1 (blended component unit)

o



Manungement's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A)

Funil Fimincinl Statements

A fund ia_a grouping ol related accounts that is used 1o maintain control over resources that have been segregaled for specific activities
or objectives. The Cily, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate complianee with

finance-rclated legal requirements. Al of the funds of the City cun be divided into three eategories; governmental funis, proprietary
funds, and discretely presented companent units.

Governmenial Funds

Gavernmental funds are ised ta account for essentially the same functions reported us governmenthl sctivities in the sovernment-wide
financial statements. However, unlike the governiment-wide financial statements. governmental fund financial siatements focus on
near-tenm inflows and outflows of resources that cun be spent, s well as on balances of resources that can be spent available al the
end of the fiscal year. Such information muy be uselul in evaluating a government’s near-terin linancing requircments.

Because the focus of governmental finds is narrower than that of the government-wide Mnancial statements, it is useful W compare the
information presented for govemmental funds with similar information presented for govemmental activities in the government-wide
financial Sttements, By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government's ncar-term fnancing
decisions, Both the governmental funds Balinee Sheet and the govemmental funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and

Changes in Fund Balances provide a reconeiliation 1o facilitate thiz comparison between governmantal funds and governmental
activities,

The City maintains three major (General, PEDC |1 and Capital projects) and nine nonmajor governmental funds. Tnformation for the
mitjor funds is presenied separately in the governmental funds Balance Sheet and in the gavernmental funds Stalement of Revemies,
Expenditures, und Changes in Fund Balances for the General Fund, Capital Projeets, PEDC 11 fund, which are considered 1o be major
finds due to its importance to the City. Data from the nonmajor governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated

presentation. Tndividual fund data for each of these nonmnjor funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this
reporl,

‘}‘hn:- Cil;,v adopts an nﬂntml appropriated budget for the General, Assel Sharing, Community Development, Holel/Motel, Parkland
Dedication, Puving & Drainage, Grants, Capital Projects, and Debt Service governmental funds. A budgetary comparison statement
has heen provided for those funds 1o demonstrate complinnee with this budget.

Proprictary Funds

The City maintains iwo different types of proprietary funds, enterprise funds and internal service funds. Enterprise funds are used to
report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statemenis. The City uses enlerprise
funds to account for its wuter and wastewater operations, ifs bridge toll and golf course operptions, Internal serviee funds are an
accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among the City's varions functions. The City uses intemal service
funds to account for its vehicle repair activities.

Prnpr?t:tary fumids pm\ri:du the amne type of information as the governmeni-wide financial statements, only in more detail, The
proprictary funds financial statements provide separate information for the water and wastewater operations and its bridge toll and goll
course operations.  Conversely, internal serviee funds tre combined into a 5ingi¢, aggregated presentation in the preprictary funds

financial slatements. Individual fund daia for the intemal service funds are provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in
this report,

“The City adopts an annual appropriated budget for the Utility, Bridge, Golf, and Garage funds. A budgetary comparison statement has
been provided for those funds te demonsirate compliance with this budget.

Componcnt Units
The City has fom componen! unils: PEDC 11, PFC # 1. TIRZ and Police Athleric League (PAL), for which all of them except for
Police Athletic Lengue are blended component units, meaning their financial information gets merged with the City's on (he

Government-Wide Statements. PAL on the other hand, does not meet the definition for Blended and i teported as a diseretely
presented component unit instead on a separate column of the Government-Wide financial statements.,

Notes to the Financial Statemenis

The notes provide additional informition that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the gevernment-wide mnd fund
financinl statements,

Other lulormation

The City™s progress in funding its obligations to provide pension benefiis 1o its employees can be found at the end of the notes (o the
financial statements.



Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A)

In addition to the basic financial swtements and accompanying notes, this repoit also presenis certain required supplementary
information concerning the result of activities comparing the budget versus actual.
The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with nonmajor governmental funds are presented immediately following
the required supplementary information.

As nioted earlier, net position may serve over lime as a useful indicator of @ government's financial position. In the case of the

City,
assets exceeded linbilities by over $202.8 million at the close of the fiscal vear.

The City’s condensed Statement of Net Position along with last fiscal vear's numbers is presented for comparison in the able is
located below:

City of Phaer's Mel Posltion

Tahle | = Dallars in Miltions Governmental Business-Type
Activilios Aclivities Total
4 i3 24 2014 1014 2013
Assels
Current und oiher nasets 61,70 § 6192 5 4564 § d6.63 BI07.30  KI0R:356
Caphtal assels BIRG  BIIG 13391 13533 217.57 21851
Total assets 14556 145.08 17935 18200 3491 32708
Defeered Outflow of Resources
Deferred oullows .33 0.43 0.32 .50 0.67 093
Total defered vutllow ol resources 0,35 043 nai 1,50 0.67 (.93
Totwl Assets i Delerred Ouiflow
of Resvirees 145.91 145,51 179.67 182,50 32558 32801
Linhilities
Long-tenm lalyilitles 45.62 50.80 3500 5836 162 109,16
Other lizbilities 11.94 1134 10,07 10.74 201 2208
Total liahillifes 57.56 62.15 B30T &9, 10 122.63 13123
Deferred Inflow of Res owrces
Dreferred inllows Q.12 fi.16 0,03 01,03 0.13 .14
Totul deferred inflows of resources 0.12 s 0.0 0,03 0.3 019
Total Liabilities and Deferred nflow
of Resouives 51.68 62.31 65,14 69,13 12278 13144
Net Position
Net Invested in capital assets,
net of related debi 64,27 1836 B5.30 #6.01 149,57 125,37
Restricied 15,01 153| 1599 21.35 34,00 316
Linrestricted B.05 8.0) 10.28 6.01 1923 1404
Tolal nel pusition $88.231 & 832D 5 1157 511337 320280 §196,37

By far the largest portion of the City’s net position (5149:57 million) reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g., land buildings,
machinery, and equipment), less any related debt used to sequire those assets that is siill oulstanding. The City uses these capital
assels (0 provide services to citizens; consequently, these assels are nol available for luiure spending. Although the City's investments
in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed 10 repiy this debt must be provided from
other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liguidate these liabilities.

A portion of the City’s net position, ($34.0) million represents resources that are subject lo xternal restrictions on how they may be

used. The remaining balance of unrestricted nei position ($19.23 million) may be used 1o meet the government's ongoing obligations
to citizens and creditors,

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City is able 1o report positive balances in all three categories of net position for the
government as a whole. The same situation held true for the prior fiscal vear,

=54



Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A)

The City’s condensed Changes in Net Position along with last fiseal year's numbers are presenied for cnn'l.parimn in the following
table below:

City of Pharr's Changes |n Net Position

Table 2 = Dollurs in Millions Governmeninl Business-Type
Aclivilies Activiles Total
20114 3 24 n3 1014 2013

Revennes
Progrnm Revenues:

Charges for services £ 996 3 &% g 2700 % 2540 5 3699 § 3391

Operating grunts and contribitions 313 949 . - 13 949

Capilal grants and contributions l.43 L1 0.92 .30 135 141
Ceneral Revenugs: -

Property tax 15.81 15.19 . - 1581 15.19

Sales 1ux 1456 13.08 - . 14,56 1308

Othier tases .36 313 . - .36 313

Other 287 0,89 (.85 (.70 A7 1.59

Tolal Revenies 49,12 31.20 2880 L] 7192 1780

Expunses:
Goneral govermmental 12.14 997 . - 1214 097
Public salety 1133 2270 - - 2135 2270
Streets 4,50 533 - - 490 533
Health und wellnre 2.87 1.88 - - 287 1.88
Culiure and recreniion 6.le 4,31 . - f.16 431
Egonomic Development 239 136 150 736
Interesi of debi service 180 197 - . 1.80 197
Litility J - 13.62 11.80 13.62 11.80
Tall bridge - - 4.82 310 1.82 310
Tierra Del Sol Galf Course - - 1.39 .20 1.39 1.20

Total Bxpenses 5181 5352 19.83 1611 T1.64 69,02
Excess of revenies

overexpendityres (2.609) (2:32) 8.97 1060 6.28 818
Transfiars 7.63 6,32 {7.85) (6.70) {0.17) ({1,38)
Met chunge innet position 4,99 4,00 1.12 390 a.ll .40
Met position - begining 23.19 78.13 11342 10093 196.61 183,06
Prior period adjusiment 0,05 1.06 0.03 {1.60) 0.08 {0.54)
Met position = ending $ 8821 § 8310 § 11437 §107.23 $ 202.30. .8 19432




Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A)

Governmentnl Activities

:Gnvnrnmenml activities increased the Cify’s net position by $4.99 million. The key change this fiscal year along wilh element of this
increase s described as follows:

*  Nettransfers Increased by $1.36 million, mainly coming from the Bridge Fund

= This year (here was no recorded loss of $6.37 million on (he value of land avajlable for sale, that loss was recorded last fiscal
year

& Sales tax revenue increased by $1.48 million

»  Culture and recreations expenditures increased by $1.85 million due 1o the completion of the Phatr Aquatic Park and the
Morthside Fark

¢+ General government expcmlltumﬁ increased by §2.17 million, this was due to several reasons but is mainly due to Events
Center operational cost increases from its Partnership Program with promoters that began this fiscal year

The City’s governmental activities’ revenues source distribution is presented below.

nues o] = CGovernmental Activitles
fm':hﬁ!;r,d Iveatmette
Operibmg capital 3%s _ Eamuigs 1%
1 n 3
Crairs § e e %
- == Bropeny Taues

— -
:-'r\-

Charges for _
Sevices 20

O Teses /. \
g

Fales Taves
L

Business-Type Aciivilics

Business-type activities increased the City's net position by nearly $1.12 million. Key changes this fiscal vear alang with elements of
this increase are described as follows:

s Toll Bridge revenue collections increased by 5658 thouzand
= Capital contributions increased by $847 thousand

The City's Business-Type activities’ revenue source distribution is presented belaw.

evenues by Source — =T iv

livestment
Eamings 3%

Coniribiited,
capital 3%

Charges for
Sepaces
O30y



Munagemeni’s Diseussion and Analvsis (MD&A)

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

The General Fund's nel change in fund balance was roughly $2.59 million more than budget. The overall revenues were $1.66 million
maore than budget. The main reason for this increase were tluo to:

s Sales jax collections greater by $727,261

= Property lnx, Other fees & charges, and Fines being less than budget by $152,560, $262,096, and $149,411 respectively, and
s Transfers in were §1.2 million greater

Expenditures were roughly $923,000 less than budget; this was mainly due to;
¢ General & Public Safety less than budget by $453,148 and $489,170 respectively, and
= Transfers out were roughly $255,000 more than budget

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assels

The City of Phar’s investment in capital assets (net of aceumuluted depreciation) for its governmental and business-type activities
amannis 1o 521757 million. This mvestment in capifal assets includes land, buildings o system improvements, and machinery and
equipment. The total decrease in the City’s investments in capital assets for the current fiscal year was $.94 million or -0.43%,

City of Phary's Capital Azsets
(Met of Deprecintion)

Table 3- Dollms in millions Covernmenial Business-Type
Activitics Activifies Toinl
014 2013 1014 20113 2014 013

Land § o6 3 53 ] 6§ 206 § &R 5 W
Building and system

improvements 29,52 29,93 1513 15,37 44,65 43.30
Other improvements 339 513 103 157 9.02 a7
Machingry and equipment 9.37 8.43 30l 123 1298 1286
In fras trueture o1l a22] 9363 2404 123.7d 12625
Constrigtion n progress 34l 1.44 1505 1548 IB.AG 16,92

§ BLBG § RYle 13371 8 13533 ¥ 21757 5 21851

Additional information on the City's capital assels can be found in the Notes to the Financial Statements in this report under section
TH=Detaited Notes on Funds and Camponent Units, subsection F-Capital Asseis.

Long-Term Delyt

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City had total contractually obligated long-term debt of $104.54 million. The details of the
change in debt from last fiseal year are as indicated:

Table 4 - Dollars in millions {(nof Ineluding unmordzed et vity)

2014 20003 Chunge
Canernmental
Bonds o3 o8 o128 505
Cenilicates of ohligation 703 733 {0130
Capital leases a0 318 092
Molos 246 2853 {447
4649 5187 (538
Buoziness-ype
Bunds 570 6106 {340
Capital leases 0.39 .46 {0.07)
5803 ol 52 {347}
Tatal § 145§ 11339 £ (R85

=%a



Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A)

Long-term debt for the Governmental activities decreased by a net $5.38 million. This decrease was mainly due to the standard
retirement ol debt and new capital leases,

Long-term debt for the Business-Type activities decreased by a net $3.47 million. This decrease was due 1o the standard retirement of
delt,

Additlonal information on the City"s long-term debt can be found in the Netes to the Financial Statements in this report under scetion
HH-Detailed Nates on Funds and Component Units subsection G-Lang. Term Obligations,

MIC

The cantinued growth of bridge crossings are currently trending upward for conmmercial teucks,

Weather conditions foi potential droughts which affect the utility rates und operations as during times of droughts more water
18 used which strains utility infrastruciire.

The rate of property tax collection for current taxes which has grown consistently pver several years,
The rate of property tax collection for delinquent taxes which has been negative for two fiscsl yedrs, this trend must be
reversed

= Owners of the retail shopping mall have begun upgrading the area, they have already developed two major enterfainment
companies, additional development is expected.

¢ The necd for a new comprehensive plan s been identificd and is being pursued, This will allow for better management
growili lor the City.

®  The City hos begun the consolidation of Tand in a major retil corridor, this praject fs known as the Economie Revitalization
Project. [t is expected to increase retail opportunities, Increase sales tax, and add jobs 10 [he community.

= The City hus completed the purchase of fand and buill needed infrastructure to the industrial arca located close to the

imternutional bridge. (his projeet is known as the Pharr Produce District Praject. It is expected to incrense the number of
warehouses, businesses, jobs, und commercinl crossings.

All of these factors were considered in preparing the City's budget for the 2014-15 fiseal year.,

S INF N

This financinl report is designed 10 provide a generul overview of the City's finances for all those wiih an interest in the City's
finances. Questions concerning any of the information pravided in this report or requests for additional financial information shiould
be addressed o City of Pharr, Atin: Finance Deparunent, P.0O. Box 1729, Phart, TX 78577
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CITY OF PHARK, TEXAS

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

ASSETS
Curreni assels
Cmsh
Receivables {net of ollownnes fe
witcotectible}
Prepaid ilems
Inernal balinces
Inveniories
Land available for sale
Reslricted nssels
Caal
Crish with Fiscal Apent
tiergovernmental recaivable
Tatnl euironl misels
Capitil naseis
Ll (nondepreginble)
Buildings (nei of ace, depreciation)
Inprovements dibier tan buildings (net of ace. depreciation)
Muchinery md equipment (nel of nee. depreeintion)
Infrastrucinre el ol pee. depreciation)
Congtruction in progress (nomdeprecialile)
‘T'otal capital assels
Totnl noncurrent nssets

Total nssuty

X3 B |
Unmmortized Joss im eefunding of debi
Totnl deferred cutlow of resonrces

Current Habilities payable.
Acconnts payable and aiher correar liabililies
Uinesmed revicing
Current portion debl payable
Linbilities from rostricted asets
Totnl current linbilitice

Maoneurrent linbilities:
Chher post employment benglil
e in more (an dne yeor, mel
Total noncurrent Hubilittes
Tonal Hahilitics

Met Invested in eaplinl assets
Restricied For:
Debl seryice
Capital projecis
Feonnmi¢ development
Woncirien| advances
Encuimbringes
Pubilic salely
(her
Unredincted
Total el position

Tt notes o the fusreial statenients ire an integral pat of this staremen)

S

SEPTEMBER 30, 2014
Primury Goveriiient IHserete
Governmeninl  Business-Type Companén|
Actlvitios Aclivities Tuial it Talal
IOTIA0 8 14370811 % dLME0A2 S 7007 5 A0, 121,060
14373338 2,710,206 15,985,444 833 15,986,277
167,426 3.430,000 617,426 . 3,017424
210,689 (210,689 L - :
457,508 130,324 ] 6,837 o] 6,812
23,085 314 - 21085314 - 21.085.374
5740 2,158,015 21,167,055 = 21167083
626,817 - 626,817 . 626,817
001192 s 1101172 - 01,172
1,695,453 43.640,660 107,336,122 1,540 107.A4713,962
6,060,011 1,656,024 8716035 B.716,034
29,432,511 15,153,247 44,654,784 - 34,654, 748
5,300,475 631,387 8,021,462 . G.0z1.062
9374058 3608411 12,082 469 - 12,982 960
30,111,875 93,633,906 123,745,741 . 123,745,781
__3,-"1&,41‘” 3.048.27) 18,454 680 - I ,454!630
83,864,360 133 711,246 211575615 - 217,575,613
43,804,369 133,711,246 217,575,615 = 217,575,615
145,559,822 179351915 IMO11,937 77.840 324 086,577
Hlﬂl_i_ 123,008 976,963 - 670,965
§ 353370 3 323005 £ 616,968 £ - £ 676,965
§ 4456873 5 9u 521 3 541639 £17.158 & 5433554
1.324.973 3,020,463 4,445.536 43,031 4,494,769
6, 162378 3,736,249 9898627 . . B0% 627
. 2,253,099 2,253,099 ! 1,253,000
11944239 16,069,734 22,013 958 63, 0] 21.080,049
- BA0,430 ‘ 1), 430 : 640 430
::.IJ!JHM 55,029,265 V0, 121,728 - 106,131,728
732,893 35,020,265 100,762, 1 58 . 100,762,158 _
ST677.017 03, 00E, 909 Iﬂ.'ﬁ'ﬁ, 0 6,001 122 847 207
64,272,515 85,303,600 |49.577.115 = 149,577 | 15
83,246 3,484,026 5567172 . 5567272
9.083.867 13.512.21) 22,506,078 - 22 594,078
351406 - 151 406 - 351406
1347473 1,347,471 - 137473
763,596 763,596 . ?ﬁ.'r‘;S‘F.r
égﬁlf: - 3,342,158 . 3,382,158
g 10,276,174 19,227,488 11,749 15,239.237
s TER296575 § 104 S7R011 3 W9 '
SO s _Zadizshe) § VLT $ Fo3iiss
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Caush
Receivablos (not of sllowance for
uncollectible ):
Praperiy taxes
Warrants
Sales tax
Hates
Aggoninis
Intergovermmental
Urligr
Prepaid Hems
Inventories
Lund Availabie for Sale
De from other funds
Reostricted nssets;
Cash
Cash with Fiseal Agemt
Intergovermmental receivable
Total usseis

. iR
EUND BALANCE

Linhilities.

Accaunts paynble

Due 1o other funds

Esgrow nccounts

Uinearned rovenue

Total linbilities

Dferred Inflows of Resources:
Dreferred property tax
Pelermed Sccounts
Deferred warrants
Deferred notes
Total deferred nflow of resources

Fund Balance:
Monspendahile
Inventory
Woncurrent ndvances
Restricted
‘Genernl gavernmeni
Dbt service
Streel paving and drainage
Tourism
Public safety
Purkinnd
Communiy developimen
Ecunoiie develapment
Commilied,
Comingency
Asgigned
Cienernl goverimen
Capital outliy
Unnssigned:
Tostal fund bitinoes

Total liubilities. defefred inflows of résources and fund bnlines

CITY OF PHARR, TEXAS
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SEPTENMBER 30, 2014

Genernl

Phavr Econvmic
Developmieni

Larporniion, Ine,

Man-Major
Guvernmenial

Totnl
Groverninentul

§ 1,737,675 % 96,292 § 10,320,784 % 22,554,131
1,550,404 . 197,760 1,748,164,

6,271 440 - - 6,271 440
1,836,039 612,013 . 2,448,053

= 721304 303 860 925, 164

670,080 - 137,659 816,715

108,387 - 258 654 367241

386,400 312,01 : 608,431

109,826 47 600 - 167,426

434,027 . 434 fi27

. 23055314 . 23,085,114

2474.082 . 1 1474137

- 8,740 8,740

624,04 - - 424,951

- . 1,191,172 181,172

5 62123517 % 25293294 3 12309944 % f3.815, 748

N

% 322390 % L4516 § 8390645 5 4,177,385
55 1,363,204 #90,506 2,253,165

1,293 003 - - 1,293,005
26,666 - 5,302 31,068
4,542,930 1,477,730 1,735,433 7.736,125_
1,550,404 - 197,760 1,748,164

749,741 - 137,659 BR7.400

6271 440 ) - 6,271 440

: 721,304 53,172 776470

8,571,585 721,304 390,591 9 6k 480

134,027 23,085314 23,519,341

1,347,473 - E 1347473

. - 169,358 i64,838

. - 157,631 157,463

- - 373,191 73,191

- 326,330 326330

. 763,596 163 596

: = 12,305 12305

= - 31,898 3| 898

. B256 . 8034

327,768 - - 5,327,764
2,034,547 - - 2.034. 547
734,776 - 8,340,401 0083 86T

219,391 . - 219,39}
13,097,582 23.094,270 i4, 183900 46,176,152

3 26212517 § 25203204 % 12,309,944 % filh13 755

The nates 1o the fnancal siotomeirs are aih integral pars of thix statement

=13



CITY OF PHARR, TEXAS

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

Amaounts reparted for governmental activities m the stalement of net position are different becanse

Fi¥it THE Y EAR ENDED SEPFTEMBER 30, 2014

Pl fund balances = governmenial funds bulunee sheet

()

2}

3)

)

(5

(&)

When capiiil assets that mre to be used in governmeniml netivilies are purchased,

the cost of thoze assets are repuried s expenditures in governmanal funds,
However, the statement of el asset meludes thase capital msels mwong the
agsets of the city as a whole

Cosl of caphlal asseis
Acoumululed depreciation

Internal serviee funds are used by management (o charpe the tosts of flest
management nnd workmun's compensarion to individual fonds,
100% o the assets i3 allocated 1o governmental activities: The assets and

linbilities of these internal service funds are ineluded in governmental activities

11 the staterment af net positiog
Ciarage

Longeterm hobilities applicable to the cind's governmental activiries are not
due in the current periud and necordingly vre not reported ns Tund linbilities.
All hiabilitles, both current and longsterm, are reported in the staement of
fel position

Bands/Certificales/Noles

Currlml
Long-term
Capitul lenzes
Current
Longsterm

Unamortized loss -Deferred outflow

Unamartized debt netivity

Hecause some propeny 1ax will not be colleeted for several months nfter the
city's Tiscn] veor onds, they aré not considered as "ovasilable® revenuey in the
governmenial Tunds and are considered deferted in governmental fnds

Tux receivabic
Allowance

Beonuge some sanitation, brush, and paving fees will not be collected
for several months after the city's liscul year ends, they are not considered
25 "nvallpble” revemies in the governimemal Tunds and ere considered
deferred in governmental funds
Sunitation
Brush & Debris,
Faving
Library
Alurm permits-

Interest expense in (he statement of activitics difTers from the amau

reported in governmeninl Nunds due 16 seerued lilerest enlenlatid

Tor bunds and notes payable Bomds
Certificates
Notes

-14-

3 46,376,152

155,779,369

(72,455,937)
43,323,432

604,496

—

604,496

(3,558,353}
(38,824,674)

{1,139,106)
(2,913,375)
353,870
(115,100}
{46,198 238)

2413350

]MSIIH}
1,748,164

488,942
190,144
137,68
4,701
28 .Gdd

B37,400

(47,922

(32,255)

{ |?I,'J£|€|1
(272,143)



CITY OF PHARR, TEXAS .
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET TO THE STATEMENT OF NET FOSITION
FORTHE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014.Continued

(7 Certnin ncerued obligations nol netmaily expected 1o be Tguddated with
expendable availble financinl resources unless they are due for pryment
it ihe current period, The differcuce i compensated absences from las
year o this year is recorded i the stntewent of neliviijes

Clrraiit (1,070,938)
Long-term (3,566.236)
(4.640,174)
(8) Becouse some warraniz will net be collected for onie lime after (e
city's fizeal vear ends, they are not considéred ns "avnilable®
revonues in the governmental funds and are congidered delermed in
povarmmentil finids ‘Warrani feceivable 2424.540
Allpwanee (3,133, 100)
6,271,440
(3} Employers that participate in defined contribution OPER plans sre
reqiiired (o recognize OPER liability for unpaid required contribut lons
OPER Liability = Prior Yea {600.473)
This fiscal vear contribuiioi {391.757)
This fiseal year trust fund ¢ 151,800
(Bl 0,430
(10) Beecause some |oun redelvables will not be collected far some [ime ufier the
fter the city's fiscal vear ends, they are not considered s "available"
revenues in the governmental Tunds and are considered deferred in
governmental funds 176,476
'J'IE 476
Met position of govemmental activitics - statement of net position £ 294,575

The naies ro the finoncral stalements aie an imlegrol part of thit saismgni



CITY OF PHARR, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

Pharr Economic

Development Moun-Major Total
REVENUES General Corporation, Ine.  Governmental Governmental
Taxes:
Property 5 14,033,540 5 - b3 1,754 858 § 15,788,398
Sales 10,917,821 3,639.260 - 14,557,081
Franchise 2,272 994 . - 2,272,994
Other 188,597 191,099 979,798 1,359,494
Licenses and permits 761,980 - . 761,980
Intergovermmental 554,943 - 3,912,575 4,467,520
Fees and charges:
Sunitation 2,642,339 - - 2,642,339
Brush 1,100,893 - - 1,100,893
Other 1,701,124 - BB1,882 2,583,006
Fines 1,085,589 - - 1,085,589
Interest income 316,136 13,339 71,596 401,071
Other 926,990 - 17,531 944,521
Total revenues BGlSHEI‘MR 3,843,698 '}’!Gl 81240 d'i'lﬂﬁfl!iiﬁﬁ
EXPENDITURES
Current;
General governmant 9,207,787 - 2,725,347 11,933,134
Public safety 19,477,291 - 1,962,059 21,439,350
Highways and sireets 4,296,700 - 715,675 5,012,373
Health and welfare 2,758,305 - - 2,758,305
Culture and recreation 4,908,356 - 1,437,881 6,346,237
Economic development - 2,101,945 672,807 2,774,752
Debt service:
Principal 1,833,168 341,567 3,636,290 7,811,025
Interest 234,854 211,814 1,399,830 1,866,498
Total expenditures 42,736,461 2,655,326 14,549 839 59941676
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (6,233,513) 1,188,372 (6.931,640) (11,976,790)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 5,984,678 4,397,669 9,780,037 19,662,384
Transfers (out) (3,419,386) (3,311,554) (5,249,871) (11,980,811)
Proceeds from sale of assets - L d -
Gain/(Loss) on Jand available for sale valuation - 198,169 . 198,169
Issuance of debt 2,380,700 - - 2,380,700
Total other financing sources
and uges 4,945 992 1,284,284 4,030,166 10,260,442
MNet change in fund balance (1,287,521) 2,472,656 {2,901.483) (1,716,348)
Fund balance - beginning 14,345 870 20,621,614 13,085,383 48,052,867
Prior period adjustment 19,633 - - 39,633
Fund balance - ending $ 13,097982 § 23,094,270 § 10,183.900_ § 46,376,152

The notes to the finairelal statements are an infegral part of this statement

JA5-



CITY OF PHARR, TEXAS

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND

BALANCE OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 1O THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FORTHE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2014

Amounts reported lor governmental activities in the statement of nctivitles are different because:

(13

(@)

(3)

()

(3)

(6)

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds £(1,716,348)

Governmental funds repont capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement
of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and
reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital outlays
exceeded depreciation in the current period

Capital assets purchases 6,273,884
Depreciation expense (5,686.068)
587816
Governmental funds do not recognize developer contribution of Iaml, ronds,
pzwing and draining as donation/contribution revenue nor as an increase
in governmental expenditures. This is the net amount by which cantributed
capital increased the capital assets net or related debt of the city
Contributed capital - streets 99,238
99,238
Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of Meet
management and workman's compensation to individual funds. 100%
is allocated to governmental activities, This is the nef revenue of certain
activities of internal service funds
Garage 60,643
60,643
Repayment of bond principal is reported as an expenditure in governmental finds.
For the city as a whole, however, the principal payments reduce the liabilities in the
statement of net assets and do not result in an expense in the statement of activities,
The city's bonded debt was reduced in due to principal payments made to bondholder's
and the amortization of the debt issuance cost, premiunvdiscount, and gain or lass on
refunding, which results in an increase to interest expenses, Also, any new debt issuances
are recorded as other financial sources but not counted as revenue in governmental activities.
This is the result of debt activity
Mew lease/noted proceeds (2,380,700)
Lease/MNotes 1,802,970
Bond Principal Paid 1,840,000
Loan Principal Paid 4,169,948
Unamortized debt activity (34.055)
5398163
Because soine property tax will not be collected for several months after the
city's fiscal year ends, they are not considered as "available” revenues in the
governmental funds Tax levy 13,316,544
Collections (15,292,523)
24,022
Because some sanitation and brush fees will not be eallected for several
months after the city's fiscal year ends, they are not considered as
"available" revenues in the governmental funds
Garbage 27,019
Brush 8.720
Paving 26,897
Library 28.265
90,901

A47-



CITY OF PHARR, TEXAS

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND
BALANCE OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014 - Coniinued

(7} Interest expense in the stalement of activities dilfers from the amount
reparted in governmental funds doe (o acerued interest ealcuinted
for bonds and notes payable Current yeor nccrunl (272,145)
Prior vear accrual 368,497
06,352
(8)  Certam acerued obligations not nornally expected 1o be liquidated
wilh expendable available financial resources unless they are due for
payment in the current period. Compensaled absences is recorded
in the statement of assets Current year (4,640,174}
Prior year 4,283,750
(356.424)
(9] Because some warranl fines will nat be collecied for some time afler the
city's fiseal year ends, they are not considered as "available” revenues in the
governimental funds
Prior Year Wartant A/R {6,1006,843)
Current Year Warrant A/R 6,271 440
104,597
(10) Employers that participate in defined contribution OPEB plans are
required 1o recognize OPEB expense/expenditures for their net required
contributions to the plan
OPEB Liability - This fiscal year (391,757
Trust fund contributions 351,800
(39,957
(11) Loans issued to oulside entities for Economic development
are considered expenses governmental funds but not in the
statement of activities. 648.091
648,091
Change in nel position of governmental activities $4,997,004

e

The nodes (o the flnanetal starements are an integral part of this statemeni

18-



FE=|_ Pharr

(Page intentionally left blank)



-

= SHITETE 921°661 £ B06'ET1 5
- CEIEEE Q%1 G6E R aAl
L20'¥89 TA'TIE 6L GITTOL Y B0 TTE6T SL0GEEEKI
LTS IRE ¥ LICELL SEENST'E TRL PRt SS1BR TN
LTSRS I LEE] SEE0RT T LRl ST RN LE
- 1L FH5 5 SRETIF CREECUHI
- S06'ET £ FIRRE TITETT OFL FE66L
LEH'TL L1FgeE or1 10T IR aegaTL'l
L0 LB 109 GOOT9S'T LOTEIT LT8R
EaTTE [T o R bLGPUE CTRHLET] b RO E]
= TTHPS9'T TRE&60 SPYAIS Qo0 LER
il ERL BSE LEE'Eh FRLODF Feslil DIS'OLTEE
TR - - = -
= i TR FHOELE LLSRLIYE
MEFET FIE ARSI EFLIT 186 LEl
= D00'DEYE - DO00SEFT
1LHE - = ILFE
PEL'OOL T TLI'E 005 LE [P0HE'T
BSCELE S PITRLER 95768 OTE B0 § ORISEEL
PNy 23S LT Loy 109 SEPLIL AOL, im0
pHtLEA ] O ol BREAE)
- SAPANY span asudiaey Mll-sRnEny
|EIUAMUDIIAD Ty
FEOT 0E AW LITS
SONIA AHYLATIA0HA

NOLLIISO4 LAN 40 LNIWALVLS
SYNALMHVHL 40 ALD

EXMB(EDL § 0 MO0 PRUSSE 0L
MRp j0 TEpangag U0 F50§ PAEIEREL)

TAONI0%aH 40 M0 ILT0 03ag3430

SI3SSE IR0
SHSTE JUSERTHEOT TEI0L
gasse mades oy
(Rigeradapuon) ssazdoel Ut voyRansuR
(unpreraaudan oae 50 13 )-SR |
{morEandap -ooE Ju 130 twusdmba pue Oomgepy
{wotyRipasdap 20w 20 au) SBUNDING UM S0 SRIURAONI|
{trcnperaanion - 0 ) ESULpIng
{=gderoasdapuon) pue]
srosde jeide
S12SSE ML [N ]
1=y [E0sty 1M SR
gl
SS1ISSE PRy
b= 1iii=n
tasedndar
SR
SO
1 38qn03{0aEm
10 BRI 10 1] SapgRALInoy
52
SEINTR THALED)

SLASEY



2

EF Y § BOFOLEEl] £ C10EEDY LoDl ET SIFITT o8
1T6 600 TEI9LT 0N T LH6ELG [T

= TITTI5°EL - . HTTISEN

LIRS FROBLE TRT ISR

SLEREY 09 ERETSR 95" E81Y R s L
LRCBL SR GEHEED SOITLIE LO0FESS S0 SEL HE
L1418 SOTEEN'SE PETLD FICE T A STL DG BE

- 6P 8T Fs - E6FOER R 000 55T 6
CoR0% i A oI 0IT - 0Z9' 1L
B0 L6199 BaUEY STIST SITDLE
TLREL YN0l THIERT 115168 AR
S0 SPT6EST [T SLEFLY LEUBLTS

= OB O S = D0rpes OO0OLE'T
£9T'L B9TL0 0651 : 999 €
£8E 080'80T EET 1T SLTYE TLEETT

= TG = =] Zw'le

- LLTTOIT LIOTOT'T
ST0LL LLL6T Y aEeer] GE0EET L8071 58°E

= LTIt L095r = SETTLOE
396 GESDIT TIT6T 01Tl SLE'SEE

= CLEpD] - 0LEEE ERTERL
EPEL § GE60GE 9{TRe s O S0T £ TR

[RETEETEE [LTTH FEAOT) J1TY TEELE 101 AR
Ieuramy 105190 B
- SHAATY spuny ssadiary adi-ssamsog

[N IR0y

s s o g JraEan e A SEYARIEOTE (dne AN o Eane Al

mogsrad 1M ORTL
PRSI

sieaiond Edey

AL 1GH]
0 prRLIsT
LA POTEIA $0 1N ‘S35 FEIRIES Ul parsaan|

NOLLY LAN

AP JeR0 L
SO PICHE | TUSRBTFLRCAE R L
apgeded jedizaud saoaspueg
spquand oeex isde 3
nnpesTdnang ponosy
SSAMIRUTI] WG

S| i) TUSLEY (B30 L
s1as5a pegatyeas woy ageded Saxgen wauns oy
0SS PREIRY
oy ey pamiegy
uonesEd 0D pausoe paImEgy
apouind smoarsg
pgered susodap Ieu0Tsn
TEJEEE Papnsad
oy HgEied sRMIGEY e

apqried saampeques| AL (o)
SETNANAL ey
EPUR) S 03 S0
SHIIQER Peeo0
apqeied smmonay
ajgeded sompEgEl pEaun
BRILrnavel



Jisarons S o pood [OrSER R A0 STURAape FoR M0 61 Saon 3y )

Fwpua - nomsod 0 g0 ]

06b ' +09 §  S00TLS PRI § FI0%81F § L9TSo1%T € GIFOITO8 L3
LIS EILSE 819702 £0%°p e 0l wnsnipe pouad Jouy
9EERES 0o BIFEl SCRGLOY 0ES' IZEFT SLO"IED'SE BuruuiSaq - vonised 1au (e
c¥9°09 gER 211 0FS'L8 {(9as'001) T00°561°1 vonisod o U SATURYD
= BT6 L85 = = BTHTES suonnqLI0D fede])
(oS soL's) . (009" 09£°8) (006 +0r) {an0) sEayswEl]
= ZEI'9L6 THY'IE0 NSTEET - i saaysuRy |
£F0D0 CLTRIFR [Tre casy FEED96°L ESOLrd’'l " SERJSURFY PUE SUONNGEIENS 200 A0] S0
[965) {FaCTI6) 69T (986°01T) (Li67ELL) (sesuadys) sonuaa) Buneradoucy [E10L
= 686'5% 108 05t SELPE BPH0
0ol Doo°Ll = - JRESE JO SRS W0 UILD)
ECE'09E = 4 £EL'99E [ruswaaodaiu]
- (SL6°9TT) = (366'561) (LL6"0E) asuadxa vonEZ pIoWY
{965) (s8L0T6'1) (Loo'ot} (peg’1£2) (#T6"8L91) asudhey Tsason)
- FROTEL CLL DiF9IT £08'PLE STUILLIED JUSLIISaAL]
{s2suadxa) sanunaz Surmasdonon
65 19 69906 (116°L65) 0LSLL1S IR {ss07) Moo Suiendg
£6h OTL T ECETRE] 0986 BO L 606" | sasuadya Junesado 10
COLFSE BCLIPTS QY51 £8v'6Lt 606" 0 uonersuda
E06°BLY LLT'ELL™ Q6E'RTE SHLMLTET 98601 F°E SI01AIG |EOIIBIN0D)
OLS'TH GOL'TT9'T LTS 1] D6E°LE] B65 06T 1 sjeuajepy pue sarddng
C16'61 ESE 199D L58'9¢0 6T66FE LLOPSIE SIOTAIDS [0S
wasuadyn Suneiadry
ZEC LHL 0LL'STO'LE TEr sl ELITLSEL CLIDLYEN sanuaass Sunesado jmoL
TET'THL 630°89% SEEOTT 006 ZTE veL BRI 20
= £96°659 LO6'659 - - SIDIAIIE JIO0)
> ELTGYET) - ELTBFETI b Sa 1oL
- SHTSPE - - SHT S sy de],
- D3R F19S = - 08§ HI9°S ANTAIDS JaMaY
$ 90TI65L 5 = g - §  997°165°L .3 SO[ES JNEA
“SABIALIS PUT SI[ES 20J Sy
Semmanay Surreadny
pung paas 1el0 ], I8N0 JIO5) aopug J10L. anun
|BwiayE) 108 ja B
- SHPIATIYY spun 4 asudiaguy adi-ssawsng
P LB ERY

PI0Z D€ HIAWALJAS QIONT HVIA FHL HOA
SON1A AMYLIAMHIOUHd
NOTLISOd LN ONOA NI SEONYHD ANV ‘SISNIIXT SINNTATYH 40 INTWILVILS
SYXIL "HHVH4 40 ALID



(Page intentionally left blank)



!H-HI

gl | % GITIERBE §  S98°GRE § STl § I6LELISET
LLESE EETOFE o890 oscszi'ol KT ISI'CE
E6TPG (FEo' Ter) CO07EHT FIET0E (158 LEn's)
GBI TSE [
BIB'TCE HEA LSS
FHTHL SiL §LEa1T EEE LT
PROTOL gL 9lb9ET CLERLE
9109 [51r096'8) IRERHCI) Toll'oes) T1resoe'e)
T EOL'FT £19°07 ] GIEE
(965) {eaL0Ts’1) (L0001 trss'iez) (rT6BLY T
ST e LSO RLEE) eoghag) 0o0n0eE] SR LIST)
(115} (Ere'oasE) (ogcarl) L60scE) [#H0'zecc)
] (EHL AL SLT989 TAOERE 1) BELEE
BEH'CE 108 05t BEL'PE
(DoccoL gl - (o0a'09cs) {006+
= rex (i TERTRY NETEET =
L5 T 13 T65T 1648 9Ll
2 CELOE = - FEEOOL
b oy 09 TES D1 (681 BOE) ELEFIE'D 69R70TL |
- B9I = - 291
(ErE'Lay) {gET'sco'nr) (GEg'LlE) 0PS'5TET) Zeg'sie)
(pzr'osl) (L1TF9FE) L1769 {908"918) (D16856T)
(eor'i 1) ezLTe'n) (Ds9s81) (96€'LED) (LLI"SOE"L)
TETTRL 5 ElLTRY'SE 5§ E3RO6L §  S9RRETl $ oeLocel
pang aLag (TR asma’) §pos) adpurg e LTI
(LY ELT (o5 FAQY M |
- SHIAIY spumn g aspliaws addp-ssanmsmg
[EEInIIAD Y

2L FEIEL J0 pUD §sR])
i jrsy) jo Bulnuidag usen
HoED Hl (ITeAIDAN ) A JaN

Buznuzuy/Supsaau Aq (pasalpeprosd yseonoy
swonnqaIeeD [E=g

SALLIALLYY DNIDNVNIDDINLESTAN HSVD NON

FIIALIE Bungsaaln A (posn)papaosd ysoy 1)
PRATIOSE DRICIE TR
SALLIALLDY DNILSIANL WO SAMOTLS HEYD

SApiAlER SWDUALE PR PUR
e o (pesn)papianid gsed p

o)

1qap RSy oo prod s

Ypap ua-Suog uo piod fedisu g

ST Ides J0 wopanEsIne puT oSy
SALLIALLIY ONIDINYALL
QALVTIY ONY TYLIAYD WO SM071d HEVD

ST Supamal pa poe
jradzaoea A {posn)poptandd Tse 12
S0 meouy o) susudey)
SPUTE SO N0 S1gSUU |
SPAURY SO0 Wk 1 SIISUE ]
SPHITT) EOAHE ILHLEL{ O} ) SEoUAPY/
e whon spdiansy
STLLIALLIY OINIDNY NI TV LAY 230N 0 SMOTT HSVYD

sapariee Sutyesada uegfon) mo R BN
cavpo o o)) sHieg

SALLIALLYY ONLLYHAMO WO SA T HSYD

PIOT ‘0F HARWHLIAS GTONT HYIA ZHL HO4

SAMOTE BEYD 40 INTIWIALYLS
SYXAL W vHd 40 ALLD

SONDD AHVLATHIOM S



INRIRIErS STy 0 L OS2I SRR [ e

FOL9Y § OISl § (Es6uc) § TIHHIR § 6985 1 saype Fureiedo £ [pasn ) pepianad gsea 12y
T FERTEL"] TLE BT ESE LT (19 EE) sjuounsnipo teo.|
E CECEDgE) % . (£3E99E) SHPFHIEET 2R0) I (SRR ) aszaant]
a1 - I¥hEs Sipsodag) Saiumeny Ul (ASEAA | seeaa|
= oL 9L L = 91 U Y AVUSET RIS U [ 3SERI00] 3SR
{$0ET) kst (kL eg) £zres T9L%661 somesuathso ) panmoy ut (aseaisay) | ssearu)
{oFrs) (190'est) acsnn SETT (o8g's 6] HNQESRF IR0 UL (3581031 ) asEalu]
z (nooross'c) - - {ooo'nese) ERESY Ja0() U aFEa(] (aeenad()
Sl (bI°1T) (FE6"s) - {Rest) STLTMIMANE UL ST (eeauou])
5 {155°0%) fozs ) THETI (EZ1°05) T SRy
.ﬂﬂ.mﬂ_. PUE STEMCD Y EE o] ._”uﬂﬂu..ﬁ_n_n_
SOLFE RELTINTS 9eLE CRALE BO6 O uotEzada(]
sania e Sammde Aq (poen poptnad used jou
o) o STTFETE GRS (1 SIS
GEL 19 § MOk & (118 L) £ 0Ll £ DIoIeLT 5 (ssog) sweowm Famadn
:sapranee Supraade dq (pesn) papiacad gses
e 0y Fuode FuIesdo 0 BTNy
peng aatatay o SN0 Jo5) T eapug oL LT
|3y 105 12¢] Asas )
- STy spang asuilanny i-ssansey

PFFURNAIADE)



= Pharr

(Page intentionally lefl blank)



DISCRETE COMPONENT UNIT
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Police Athletic League



CITY OF PHARR, TEXAS
DISCRETE COMPONENT UNIT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

SEPTEMBER 30, 2014
Palice
ASSETS. Athletic League
Current assets:
Cash b 77,007
Receivables [net of allowance for
uncollectible): 833
Total current assets 77.840
LIABILITIES
Current liahilitles payable;
Accounts payable and other
current Hablilities b 17,158
Unearned revenue 48,933
Tatal current liahilities payable 66,091
NET POSITION
Urestricted 11,748
Total net position  § 11,748

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement

-27-
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



City of Pharr, Texas
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Seprember 30, 2014

I SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A, Genernl Statement

The City of Pharr, Texas {City) founded in 1909 and was incorporaled ns a general law city on February 22, 1916, The City charter
wis approved via election und adopted with an effective date of December [, 1949 The charter established a City Manager form of
government. The municipal government provided by the Charter of the City of Pharr shall be known as the Board of Commissioners.
The Board of Commissioners shall consist of o Mayor and six (6) Commissioners and which shall enaet local leaislation, adopt

budgets, determine policies. and appoint the City Manager, who is held responsible 10 the Board of Commissioners for the execution
of the laws and the adminisiration of the government of the City

Ihe general govemmental functions include: law enforcement, fire and other public safely netivities. streets, sanitation, public
impravements, public charities. parks and recreation, library services, zoning and general administrative services. Enterprise funds are
used to account for the operations of its utility, bridge, and golf operations

Ihe accounting and reporting policies of the Clty relating 1o the funds neluded i the accampanying basie finuncinl siatements
conform o accounting principles generlly nccepted in the United State of America applicable to state and local gavernments,
Cenerilly nccepted accounting principles for local governments include hose principles preseribed by the Governmental Aceounting
Standards Board (GASB), the American Institute of Certified Public Actountants in the publication entitted Audits of State and Local
Gaovernmental Units and by the Financial Aceounting Standards Board (FASE), when applicable,

B. Financial Reporting Entity
The City's financial reporting entity comprises the following:
Primary Government: City of Pharr

The City's basic financial statements include the accounts of all City operations. The criteria for including orpanizations as componeni
units with the City's reporfing entity, as set forth in Section 2100 of GASR's Codification of Governinental Accounting and Financial
Reporting Standards, include whether;

*  the organization is legally separate (can sue and be sued in their awn name)

*  the City holds the corporate powers of the arganization

= the city appainis a voting majority of the organization”s board

e the City is able 1o impose its will on the organization

= ihe organization has the patential to impose a financial benelt/burden on he ity
*  there is fiscal dependency by the organization on the City

Blended Component Unit
Blended component units are separate legal entities that meet the component unit eriterin deseribed above and whose governing body
s the same of substantially the same as the City Commission or the component unit provides services entirely to the City, These

companent units® funds are blended into those of the City's by appropriate activity type 1o compose the primury governmen
presentation,

The City has three blended component units, the Pharr Feonomic Development Corporation (PEDC) 11, Inc., Phinr Public Facilities
Corporation No. | and Tax Increment Reinvestment Zane No. 1. Information for these component units is stated below:

Phare Economic Development Corporation 1, Ine. - (PEDC) is a nonprofit industrial development corporation organized for
the same purpose as the PEDC 4a but with the legal authority lo use sales 1ax funds for a wider range of projects. Sales taxes
are collected under Section 48 of the Development Corporation Act of 1979 for these purposes, Voted by the citizens of
Pharr on November 4, 2008 and ratified by the City Commission on November 10, 2008 via ordinance O-2008-49, (he PEDC
da was dissolved and the PEDC was authorized to receive the sales lax revenue which is its main revenue source. The PEDC
board is fully appainied by the City Board of Commissioners,



Clty of Pharr, Texas
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2014

I SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - (continued)

B.  Financial Reporting Entity - (confinmed)

The reason it is a blended component unil is beeause the Cily appoints all PEDRC baard members and can be removed them at
will, therefore, the PEDC board is substantinlly the same as the City governing body. Separate financial statements issued by
the PEDC can be oblained by request at the following addvess: PEDC- 1213 South Cage Bivd, Pharr, TY 78577,

Pharr Public Facilitles Corporation No. |- On September 6, 201 1, with Resolution # R-2011-53, the City Commissioners
cregted the Pharr Public Facilities Corporation #1 (PPFC#1), PPFCHI is @ separate entity with its own EIN, whose bourd
consisis of the same members of the City Commission. PPFCH | was used for funding and purchase of land for ceonomic
development activities via & lomi from Frost Bank of 15,000,000, This loan has an interest rate of Wall Street Journal Prime
plus (0, mmortized over 20 years, bul payable with a balloon payment at the 5" vear, Separate linancial statements issued by
the PPFC# Tean be obtained by request at the following address; PPFC BT PO Box 1720 Phape, TX 78577

Tax Increment Reinvestient Zove Mo, J<On March 20120 the City Commissioners created (he Tax Ineremen) Retnvestment
Zone Mo, | (TIRZ Mo, 1), TIRZ is o separate entity with its own EIN, whose three of ity board members consists of the sunie
members af the City Commissien. TIRZ No. | was estublished 1o provide o financing mechanism to facilitate o high quality
development in the Pharr area. Created by ordinance No. 0-2011-46 in September 2011, TIRZ No. 1 is sel (o expire on
Tanuary 17, 2051 or the date when all project costs are paid and all debt is retired, whichever comes first. Separate financial

statements issued by TIRZ No. | can bé oltained by request at the following address: TIRZ Na. | PG Box 1720 Phayy, TX
78877,

Diserefely Presented Component Unit
The component unil column in the government-wide financial statements includes the financial data of the City's component init, The

unit is reported in a separate column to emphasize thai they are legally separate from the Ciiy but are included because the primary
government is financially accountable and is able 1o impose its will on the organization. This component unit subscribe 1o the
accounting policies and procedures of the primary government,

Police Athlenie Leagne-On October 2012, the City of Pharr Police Athletic League (PAL) was created as a nonprofit
orgunization for the purpose of youlh crime prevention that relies on providing civic, athletic, recreational, and educational
opportunities and resources fo cement a bond and create trust and understanding between police officers and vouth. The
City's Chiefl Financial Officer acts as Treasurer of PAL and City™s Chief of Police acts as Board President, Separate financin]
statements issued by PAL can be oblafned at the Following address: PAL- 413 Easi Clark, Pharr, Texas 78577, PAL is
considered a Discrele Component Uit based on the criteria established by GASE Statement No. 61.

. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The govermment-wide linancial statements include the statement of net position and the sttement of activities.  These statements
report information an all of the nan-fiduciary financial information for the City and its component units. The primary government and
component unils are presented separately within the linancial stalements with the focus on the primary government. Eliminations
have been made to minimize the double-counting of internal activities. Individual funds are not displayed but the statements
distinguish governmental activities (generally supported by taxes and City general revenue) from business-type activities (generally

lnanced in whole or in part with fees charged to external customers), The effect of interfund activity, within the governmental and
business-type activities columns, has been removéd from these statements.

The statement ol activities demonstrates the degree 1o which the direcl expenses of a given program are offsel by program revenues,
Direct expenses ore those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or program. Program revenues include 1) charges (o
customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given program and 2)
operating or capital grants and comributions that are restricted to meeting the operations or capital requirements of a particular
program. Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues,



City of Pharr, Texas
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
september 30, 2014

L SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - (continueid)
C. Government-Wide and Fund Finaneinl Statements-(continued)

The fund financinl statements provide reports on the financial condition wnd results of operations about the City's funds, with separnie
statements presenfed for each fund category,  The emphasis of fund financinl statements s on major governmental funds. each
displayed in a separate coluinn. Al remaining governmental funds are aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds,

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such s charges lor services, result from exchange transactions assochited with the principal
activity of the fund, Exchange transactions are those in which each party receives and gives up essentially equal values. Non-
operating revenues. such as subsidies and investment camings, result [rom non-exchange (ransactions or ancillary detivities.

. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Stutemen! Preseniation

The financial statements of the Cily ore prepared in necordance with gencrally sceepted accounting principles (GAAP).  The City's
reporting entity applies all relevant GASE pronouncements and applicable FASE pronouncements and Aceounting Principles Board
(APB) opinions issued o or before November 20, 1989, unless they confliet with GASE pronouncements. The City’s reporting entity
does not apply FASHE pronouncements or APB opinjons issued alter Movember 30, 1949

The government-wide statements and fund financial statements for proprietary funds are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund financia) statements. The cconomic fesources
measurement focus means all assets and labilities (whether current or non-current) are included on ihe stalement of net assets and the
aperating stalements present increase (revenues) and decrense (expenses) in net wial assets. Under the seeroal basis of accounting,
revenues are recognized when earned, including unbilled water and sewer serviees which are ncorued. Expenses are recognized at (he
time the lability is incurred. Property Inxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar ftems
are recognized os revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met,

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement (oeus and are accounted for
using the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under the modified accrual basis of aceounting, revenues are recognized when
susceptible to accrual; i.e., when they become both measurable and available, “Measurable™ means the amount of the {ransaction can
be determined and “available™ means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafier to be used to pay liabilities of the
current period, Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred. However, delil service expenditures, a5 well as
expenditures related to compensated absences are recorded only when payment is due.

The revenues susceptible to accrual are franchise fees, licenses, churges for service, and infergovernmental revenues, Siles laxes
collected and held by the state at year-end on behalf of the government are also recognized ns revenue. All other governmental fund
revenues are recognized when received.

Operating income reported in proprictary fund financial statements includes revenues and expenises reluted to the primary, eantinuing
aperations of the fund. Principal operating revenues for proprietary funds are charges to customers for sales or services, Principal
operating expenses are the costs of providing goods or services and include administrative expenses and depreciation of capital assets,
Other revenues and expenses are classified as non-operating in the financial siatements.

When both restricted and unresiricted resources are avallable for use. it is the City's policy to use restricled resources first, then
unresiricled resources as needed,

3] -



City of Pharr, Texas
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ’
September 30, 2014

I SUMMARY OF SIGRIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - (continued)
E. Fund Types and Major Funds

Governmenial Funds
The City reports the following major governmental funds:

s General Funrd — reports the primary fund of the City. This fund s used to account Tor all financial resources pot
reported m other funds,

* Pharr Economic Development Corporation - is a nonprofit industrial development corporation orgaized for the
purpase of promoling, assisling and enhancing economic development activities for the City.  Although this fund
does not meel he size eriteria for major fund eategorization, the Clty is including it as a major fund beeause it is
believed that this fund is particularly important to financial siatement users due (o of pulslic inferest.

Froprietary Funds
The City reports the following majoer enterprise linds:

* Unrilisy #ated — accounts for the provision of water and sewer services 1o the residents of the City.
* Bridge Fund — accounts for the opevating Tunction of the City’s internationul bridge with Mexica.

Oihier Fund Types

Additionally, the City reports internal service funds which are used 10 account for the financing of goods or sevvices provided by one
departmaent to other departmenis within the City on a cost-reimbursement basis, These services include feet management, These are
proprietary funds thut are reported with governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements because the majority of

nclivity s for goveimmental activities. Direct expenses are nol eliminated from the various functional cotegories, whereas indirect
expenses are. Reimbursements are treated as a reduction of expenses

F.  Assels, Deferred Outflow of Resources, Linbilities, Deferved Inflow of Resources and Nel Position or Equity

1.  Cash and Investmenis

Cash ol all funds, including restricted cash, are pooled into common pooled accounts in order 10 maximize investment epporiunities.
Each fund whose manies are depaosited in the pooled cosh accounts has equity therein, and interest eamed on the investment of these
monies 15 allocated based upon relative equity at month end. An individual fund's pooled cash are available upon demand and are
considered to be “cash equivalents” when preparing these financinl statements, Al investments are recorded at Fair value based on

quoted market prices. Fair value is the amount at which a financial instrument could be exchanged in a current ransaction between
willing parties.

2.  Propertly Tuxes

Property taxes are levied by October | on the assessed value lisied as of the prior January 1 for all veal and business personal property
located in the City in conformity with Subtitle E, Texas Property Tax Cade, Taxes are due on receipt of the tax bill and are delinquent
if not pald before February | of the year following the year in which imposed. On January 31 of each year. a tax lien atlaches 1o

properly ta secure the payinent of all taxes, penalties, and interest ultimately imposed. Property tax revenues are considered available
when they become due or past due and receivable within the curreni period.

Taxable property includes real property and certain personal property situated in the City, Certain preperties of religious, educationn|
and charitable organizations, including the federal gavernment and the Stale of Texas, are exempl from taxntion. Additionally, there
are other exemplions in arviving at ihe total assessed valuation of taxable property.

The valuations are subject to County-wide revaluation every three years, The effective tax rate js based upon the previous veiir's total
assessed valuation,



City of Pharr, Texas
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2014

L SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - (continued)

F.  Assets, Deferved Outflow of Resources, Liabilities, Deferved Inflow of Resources and Net Position or Equity-
(coniinued)

2. Property Taxex - (continued)

Allowances for uncallectible fax receivables within the General and Debt Service funds are based upon historical experience in
collecting property taxes. Uncollectible personal property taxes are periodically reviewed and ineluded as part of the allowinee for
uncollectible: except for lax receivables over 20 years, the City is prohibited from writing off real properly laxes without specifio
statulory authority from the Texas Legislature, The Cily docs noi write ol tx receivable greater than 20 years,

3. Inventories
The inventories are recorded at cost and are nceounted for by the consupiption method.,

4. Receivables and Payables

Activity between [unds that are representative of lending/borrowing armngements outstanding al the end of the tiscal vear are referred
to as “due to/lrom other funds”. Any residual balances oulstanding between the governmental activities and business-type uctivities
are reported in the governmental-wide financial sttements as “internal balinees.”™

All trade and property tax receivables are shown net of an nllowance for uncollectibles. The three maii receivables that contain

allowances are for property taxes, ulility accounts, and warrants. For these categories the allowance was based on historical colleetion
rates, the allownnces are 2% lor property taxes as well as for ufility accounts, and 20% for warrants.

5. Tranzsactions between Funds

Legally authorized transfers are treated as interfund transfers and are included In the resulls of aperations of hoth Governmental and
Proprietary Funds.

6. Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, and equipment, are reported in the applicable govermmental or business-type activities
columns fn the government-wide financial statements and in the find financinl statements for proprietary funds. All capital assets are
valued at historical cost or estimated historical cost if actual historical is not available, Donated pssets are valued &l (heir fair markel
virlue on the date donated, Repairs and maintenance are recorded as expenses. Renewals and betterments are capitalized. Interest has
1ol been capitalized during the construction period on property, plant and equipment,

Assets capitalized hinve an original cost of §5,000 or more and over three years of useful life, Depreciation hos been ealeulited on ench
class of depreciuble property using the steaight-line method, Estimated useful lives are as follows:

Buildings 50 Years
Infrastructure 30 Years
Improvemenls 20 Yenars
Water and Sewer Systein 30-50 Years
Machinery and Equipment 3-15 Years

7. Compensated Absences
The liability for compensated absences reparted in the governmeni-wide and proprietary fund statements consist of unpaid,
accumulaied annual and sick |eave balances. The City's policy allows employees to accumulale unused sick leave and extra

compensation tinte-on an unlimited basis ond vacation leave bised on the nuinber of years of full time employment with the City in
pecordance with the following chart:

Years of Employment Pro-Rata Accrual Rale per Manth
0-19 Years 10 hours (15 days por year)
20 & Over 13.33 hours (20 days per year)




. City-of Pharr, Texas
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2014

L SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - (continued)

F.  Assels, Deferred Outflow of Resources, Linbilities, Deferved Inflow of Resources and Net Position or Equity-
(continued)

7. Compensated Absences - (eontinued)

Nonexempt employees may accumulate no more than a maximum of two venrs allotment of vacation leave as sel above, excepl for
civil service nonexempt employees;, which can accumulate more than the maximum. Exempt emplovees can also accumulate imoye
than the maximum, Sick leave may be accrued bui will nal be paid ol to employees that leave belore retirement.

8.  Long-Term Obligations

In the gavernment-wide, proprietary and component unit financial statements, long-term debt mmd other lang-lerm obligations are
reported s labilities. Bond premiums and discounts nre deferred and amortized over the fife of the bonds using (e siraight line
method as the amount is immaterial against the effective interest method.  Unamortized bond premium and discount and gain or losy
on relunding are not netted against the lability but recorded in as deferved outflow/inflow of resaurces, |ssuance cost is recorded 65 an
expense for the perind incurred and is no longer amortized over the life of the bond afier implementing GASB Statement No. 65 and
Statement No, 63. In the fund financial statements, long-term liabilities are not recorded in the governmental funds as the pavment of

the abligations will not ke made by current Tnanciol resources, The governmental fund financial statemenis recognize the proceeds of
debl s other financing resources,

9. Restricted Asscls

The proceeds and requived reserves of debl issuances are recorded as restricled pssets us they are restricted for debt service and/or
cipilnl prajects, puyiments and/or purchases.

L MNet Position / Fund Equity

I the fund linancial sjutcmenls. governmiental finds report reservations of fund balanee for amounts that are not available ar are
lepally resiricied by outside parties for use for a specilic purpose.

11. Estimaies

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted aecounting principles requires the use of estimates by
management, All estimates are made utilizing a conservative philosophy for both revenues and expenditures.

12, General Fund’s Fund Balance Policy

The City has adopled GASB 54 through a reselution as part of its fiscal year ending September 30, 2011, Implementation of GASR
54 is required of all cities for the fiscal year ending in 2011, The intention of the GASB is 0 provide a more structured classification
of fund balance and to improve the usefulness of fund balance reporting to the users of the City’s financial statements. The reporting
stundlard establishes g hierarchy for fund balance classifications and the consirmints imposed on the uses of thase resources, GASBE 54
provides for two major types of fund balances which are non-spendable and spendable,

Non-spendable fund balances are balances (that cannet be spent because they are nal expected 1o be converled to cath or they are
legally or contructually required fo remain intact. Examples of this classification are prepaid items, inventories, non-current advances
to other lunds that not expected 1o be collected in the next fiscal year, and the principal (corpus) of an endawment fund, The City has
inventorics that are considered non-spendable, an encumbrance, and a non-current advance to the PEDC 11, The City does nol have
any prepad items or non-spendable Tunds relaied to an endowimen.

In addition fo non-spendable Tund balance, GASBE 54 has provided a hierarchy of spendable fund balances, based on a hierarehy of
apending constraints.

-Restricted: Fund balances that are constrained by external parties, constitutional provisions, or enabling legislation. All of the

City"s restricied funds are from Specinl Revenue Funds, whose funds are revenues legally restricted lo expenditures for a
purticular purpose,

- 3d-
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City ol Pharr, Texas
MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2014

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - (confinuyed)

Assets, Deferred Ouiflow of Resonrces, Liabilities, Deferved Inflow of Resources and Nel Position or Equity-
(continued)

General Fund®s Fund Balunce Policy - (cantinued)

-Committed: Fund balances that contain self-imposed constraints of the government from its highest level of decision making
authority. The responsibility 1o commit funds rests with the elected City Commissioners und Mayor through un approved
resolution, Committed amounts cannol be used for any other purpose unless the governing board remove those constraints by
tuking the same type of formal action. The City formally approved the recording of its self-named “Contingency™ fund balince
s committed. The Contingeney fund balance policy is us [ollnws:

I'he City shall strive 1o maintain the General Fund (not the combined reporting General Fund which cansists of (he
Payroll. Contingency, and the General funds) committed fund balanee ut 90 days (25%) of the curreni yeHIs ofigingl
hudget appropriation far operations and maintenance. which is defined as the total budget less capital outlay purchase,
debt service, annual economic incentives, mnd the annual transker from the General Fund 1o (he other fimds (Charter
mandated contingency funding will not take place 5o long as the contingency fund is fully funded). This amount
changes slightly from year (o year: for this fiscal year, the General Fund committed balanee wis under funded by
561,854 since the requirement amount o be [unded was $8.389,622 and the City's Cieneral fund balunce was
$8,327,768 at September 30, 2014, The contingency balance will be fully funded early in the upcoming lscal year.

These funds shall be used only for emergencies, non-recurring expenditures, or wajor capital purchases that cannot be
accommaodated through current year savings. The use of these Tunds will be spproved by the City Commission. Use
of these funds will be disclosed to the City Commission, 1 the required amount goes below the stated policy amount,
the City will set aside a sulficient portion of the upeoming fiscal yvear's budget 1o meet the requived reserve amount,

Any surpluses realized at year end shall be used Mirst 10 meet reserve policies, then capital replacement purposes, then
retirement/extinguishing of debi,

-Assigned: Fund balances that contain self-imposed consiraints of the government 1o be used for a particular purpose. The

responsibility to assign funds rests with the City Manager, The only funds ussigned relate to the aceumulation of funds for
future capital projects,

-Unnssigned:  Fund balance of the general fund that is not constrained for any particulur purpose.  This is also where
negative amounts from the other categories of fund balance are recognized.

When an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net assets are avuilnble, the Cily typically first
applies restricted resources, 48 appropriste opportunities arise, but reserves the right lo selectively defer the use thereof to a future
praject or replacement equipment ncquisition. When an expenditure is incurred for which committed, nssigned, or unassigned fund
balances are available, the City considers amounts (o have been spent first out of nssigned, then unassigned, and finally commitied

funds

A,

STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOLUNTABILITY
Budgetary Datu

Budget Poliey and Praclice

The City follows the procedures outlingd below in establishing budgetary dnta reflected in the financial statements:

Amual budgets are legally adopted for all City funds with revenue and expense/expenditure netivity, The City Clwrter siates
that between sixty (60 and ninety (90) days prior to the end of the fiscal year, the City Manager i required to submit 1o the
Board of Commissioners a proposed operating budget Tor the fiscal year commencing the following October 1. The
operating budget includes the proposed expenditures/expenses and the proposed method to finance them

. 3%



City of Pharr, Texas

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Seplember 30, 2014

IL STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY - {continued)

A, Budgetary Daia-(continued)

L. Budget Policy and Practice-(continued)

Dates for public hearings, the purpose of which are 10 obtain taxpayers’ comments, are set by the Board of Conmmissioners ai
the time the budget is submitted to that bady, The Board of Commissioners may add to, subtruet from or ehange

apprepriations, bul may not change the form of the proposed budget.

Any ehanges must be within the revenue and reserves estimated as available by the City Manager.. Prior to September 25 of
eich yvear. the budget s lepally enacted through the passage of an ordinance.

The appropriated budget is prepared by fund, function, and department. The City's depurtment head’s may miake transfers of
appropriations between/within a department in the same fund with the City Manager’s approval. Transfers of appropriations
between funds require the approval of the Board of Commissioners, The legal level of budyetary control (i.e., the level pt
which expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations) is the fund level,

At any time during the fiscal year, the City Manager can reallocate expenditures within a fund without the approval of the
Board of Commissioners, up (o $10,000 per request. However, any revisions to the budget which increase the total budgeted

expenditures/expenses within any fund must be approved by the Board of Commtissioners.

The Board of Commissioners made several budger amendments during the fiscal year, they are indicated i the following

chart;
Buurlget Ameodment - net Revenues\(Expeaditires/ Expenses )
Ll W2 i3 Wi
Epondituns  Revenues Expendiures  Revenues Bpendilures  Rovenues Epondiiurgs  Revenues
Cuneim| Fund $ 120,134 % 2400 b4 6296 5 A6l F 3RSI00 3 RIOD § 3402070 % (420500
Hulel/boiel 3,000 - - 50000 183000 S2.000 230,100
Assel Shanng Fund . s - - - 295,000 0 (0}
Faving & Diminage Fund . - - - - G110 693,000
Capital Mojects Fund . - - - . B . 236,000
Dbt Serviee Fund 81,0401 RER I = - - B s 1 30,0000
Camge Fund . - - - . (7,740 07,750
Uity Fumd 00,000 - - - . B K7,000 145,001
Brulge Fund : - . - . CILTEOA) A2 T5K080)
il Tund 36,613 - . - . . - 0450001
FEDC Fund . 43400 514440 3 - 20) 4, 4000
TFCH T FPund . = 0 105000 L300
TIRZ Fand : . 1330

The major réasons for the amendments are: partnership with promoters at the Pharr Events Center, additional overtime for
police officers, property and sales tax growth. aquatic and athletic program funding, accelerated debt service piyments, and

the eliminition of Bridge capital projects and their funding,

B.  Budget Basis of Aceounting

The City prepares its annual budget on a basis (budget basis), which slightly dilfers from generally accepted accounting principles
(GAAP Basis). The budget and all transactions are presented in accordance wiih the City's method (budget Basis) in the Statement of
Revenues, Expenditores and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual - General Fund to provide a meaningful comparison of
actual results with the budget. The major differences between budget and GAAP basis are debt service transactions, capital outlay

purchases, and the recording of bond/loun proceeds.

¥OLUREDT § 60TInd 5 HeA2 5 116420 $ 0 OTHMNO § 435000

3 (L5000 $142.150.470)



1L STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY - (continued)

City of Pharr, Texas

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2014

C.  Excess of General Fund Expendiiores over Appropriations

Expenditures exceeded nppropriations for interest by $1,194 and for transfers to Golf €
Hotel/Matel by o total of $279,441. The major reason for the material differe
ensiire 1t does not have o negntive fund balance.

D, Finanee-Relnted Legal and Contractunl Provisions

ourge, Cammunity Development, and
nees is due to the need 1o fund the Golf Course in order (o

In iiccordance with GASB Statement No, 38, “Certain Financial Statement Note Disclosures™, violations of finance-related legal and
contractual provisions. if any, are reported below. along with actions taken to nddress sueh viokitions:

Vielation

Muone

Action Taken
Mol applicable

E.  Deficit Fund Equity/Nel Position

Mo funds had a deficit in their wtal fund balances/net position,

F.  Prior Period Adjustment

Prior period adjustments (PPA) were needed in several funds in order to properly siate the correct financial position of the City
PPA amounts and the reason ave oy follows:

Covernmental Repiovts
Purpose of Prior Period Adjustment

Amdiil

Cenerpl Fund:
To adjust prioryear inventory
To ndjust prior year accaunts payable
Total Governmental Fund Adjugtmeni

3 O(0ETR)
49,511
i 30633

P ad: Utility F
To adjust prior venr compensated abiences
To adjust prior year compensated ahsences
und: G

To adjust prior year conpensaled absences
Tao adjusi prior year equipment & lease payable

Intemul Service Fund: Garage Fund:
l'o adjust prior year compensated absences
Tolal Proprietary Fund Adjustment

§ 10202

4,803

38,566
(17,948)

9517

3 45,230

Total Clty-Wide PPA

<37

584,863

. The



City of Pharr, Texas
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2014

T DETAILED NOTES ON FUNDS AND COMPONENT UNITS
A, Deposits and Investments

I.  Deposits
City's funds are required to be deposited and invested under ihe terms of a depository coniract and investment policy purauant to stale
statule. The depository bank deposits for salekeeping and irust with its agent approved pledged securities authorized hy Chapter 2257

Collateral for Public Funds of the Government Code in an amount sufficient to proteet City funds on & day-to-day basis during the

period of the contrael. The pledge of appraved securities is waived only (o the extent of the dollar amount of Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation (FDIC) insurance,

Al September 30, 2014, the carrying amount of all of the Chiy’s deposits was $63.081,334. The City has ane depository aceount:
LoneStar National Bank (LSNB),

Balunee
LSNE Depasitory Account September 30, 2014
lisured 3 137958
Security eolluteral rssied by pledging bank's tras! department in the City's name 67,330,334
{Over-insured)/over-collaleratized (4,986,081}
Total Deposits 5 63.1‘.131.3&

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, ihe City"s deposits may not be returned {0 it. The City has u policy

of maintaining contact with the trust depariment of its depository agency fo eliminate all custodial credit risk. As of September 30,
2014, the City's bank balance was not exposed to custodial eredit risk and was over-insured and over-collateralized,

In addition, the following is disclosed regarding coverage of combined balances on the date of the highest deposit:

Depository: LSNE,

The market value of securities pledged as of the date of the highest combined balance on deposit wans $79.965,905,
The highest combined balances of eash accounts amounted (o $79,965,905 and oceurred during April 2014 '

The 1otal amount of FDIC coverage al the time of the largest combined balance was $738,010 during September 2014,

S0 g

Resiricted cash is defined as the cash balances restricted by the funder for o specific purpose, Cash with fiscal agents of $626,817 on
September 30, 2014, was covered by collateral held in the fiscal agents’ trust departments, but not in the City's name, The tiust
department pledges a pool of collateral against all trust deposits it halds, U.S. Bancorp is the fiscal agent for the City,

2. Investmenis

The City is required by Government Code Chaprer 2256, The Fublic Funds Investment Ael (“Aet”), to adopl, implement, and
publicize an investment policy. Thal policy must be writtén, primarily emphasize safety of principal and liguidity, address nvestment
diversification, yield, and maturity and the quality and capability of investment management, and include a list of the ypes of

authorized invesiments in which the investing entity’s funds may be invested, and the maximum allowable stated maturity of any
individual investment owned by the entity.

The Act requires an annual audit of investment practices. Audit procedures in this wea conducted as a part of the sudit of the general
purposes financial statements disclosed that in the areas of investment practices, management reports and esiablish appropridte

policies. The City adheres 1o the requirements of the Act, Additionally, investment practices of the City are in accordance with local
policies.

Bue to the extremely low inierest rates, the City does not have any investments other than savings aceounts in LSNE a1 September 30,

2014, The City's depositary provides a greater savings rate (a floor of 2%) according to the depository contmet entered info, The
funds are available immediately as needed.

.38 .



City of Pharr, Texas .
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2014

L. DETAILED NOTES ON FUNDS AND COMPONENT UNITS - (continued)
A, Deposits and Investmonts - (continued)

2. Investments— {continued)

Analysis of Specific Deposit and Investment Risks:
GASB Statement No, 40 requires a determination as to whether the City was exposei (o the following specific investment risks at year
end and if so, the reporting of certain related disclosures:

g, Interest Rale Risk

This is the rigk thai chimg-::, i interest rates will aclversely affect the fuir value of an lnvestment. Al year end, the City was not
exposed (o inferest rate risk. The City's Investment policy states that no investment shall exceed 24 monihs in malirity. By
limiting th exposure of its investments, the City reduces its risk 1o the rising or decrensing interest rtes.

b Credit ik

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterpity tw an investment will not fulfill its obligations. The rtings of securities

by nationally recognized agencies are designed 1o give an indication of eredit risk. Al year end, thé City was not exposed ta
credit risk.

c. Custodial Credit Risk
Deposits and investiments are exposed (o custodial eredit risk if they are not cavered by deposilory insurance and (he deposits and
invesiments are uncollateralized, collateralized with securities held by the pledging Mnancial institution, or collateralized with
securities held by the pledging financial institution’s trust department or agent but nel in the City’s name Al year end, the City
was nal exposed to custodial eredit risk. See Note [LL AT for mare information on this risk.

d.  Coneentration of Credit Risk

This risk is the risk of loss atiributed o the magnitude of 8 government's investment in a single issuer. At vear end. the Cily was
exposed to concentration of credit risk, but highly collateralized. With the City"s investment policy, diversilication is stressed.
The City was in compliance with its diversification investment guidelines, Although LENB mukes up 100% of the investiment
porifulio, the funds were fully collateralized by pledged securities.

¢, Forcign Cirency Risk
This is the risk that exchange rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment. At year end, the City was not exposed to
foreign currency risk.

B. Receivables

Receivables for the City at September 30, 2014, were as follows:

Covernmental Aiivitive Bugmisa Type Actwilies
Brid g
Geneml {her Total Ltility & Gulf Tatal
Properly tuxes § 21229 % TR 201330 . i - g
Warmnts 9424540 . 9,424,540 : - ¥
Sules Ton 1836039 612013 2448052 : - -
Hotes - A Tl 925,16 . : 4
Aceounts 3,000 1a0.229 R340 38 2A1T013 LT3 2 158 586
Intergove mmentil 108 357 158654 1241 = . =
Franchise toses 262156 262,256 - . :
Oifrer 2745 31205 529,530 a7l . 3471
Ciross recoivibley 144,665,064 3530200 17204271 2431380 140,673 1962057
Leks nllowance lor
uncollectible (3813,113) {920 (3,929.014) {51.K52) : {31,832}
Mgy wial reevivabia ] I0LA1 1,950 b3 1443 28 5 13273237 5 2308552 5 140,673 $ 1710205

.10



City of Pharr, Texas
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Seprember 30, 2014
Il. DETAILED NOTES ON FUNDS AND COMPONENT UNITS - (continued)
C. Payables
Payables for the City at September 30, 2014, were as follows:

{ vemmeninl

Aclivities Buginess-Type Auvlivities
Business-
Type
Covemmantul Utiliiy Bridge Gl Tutul Tolal
Vendors - 4 AR5 5 16,810 £ 215604 5 67,667 5 T0iL0%1 § 33083510
Suluries & benefits 13350614 - . - . 15335614
Retoinnge fees 7191 - . . . 17927
Acenied intereat 272145 133,243 35,330 = 168,573 410,718
Dire ta slale 152719 ! s ; #60 153,618
Total puyibles b A.:450.873 5 G053 8 10934 I U 059,513 5 5.416,306

I¥.  Unearned Revenue

Governmental funds report deferred revenue in conneclion with receivables for revenues that are not considered to be available to

liquidate Tiabilities of the current period. Governmental funds defer revenue recognition in eonnection with resources that have been
received, but nel vet earned.

Al the end of the current fiscal year, the various components of deferred revenue and unearned revenue reported in the fund financial
stalements were as follows:

Covemmental Discrete
Aclivities Buginess-Type Component Unit Tatal
Uneamed goll revanue $ - 5 48,0604 5 - L1 AB.608.010
TWDR Forgivencss Loan Grant = 3,072,255 - 10072253
Restricted revenues (Escrows J-other 1,293,005 - - 1, 203.00%
Event Center Revenue 31,968 - L9068
PAL Sports Fee = = 48.933 48031
§ 1,324,973 b 3,120,863 § 48,933 § 449,769

40 .



Cily of Pharr, Texas
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2014

. DETAILED NOTES ON FUNDS AND COMPONENT UNITS - ieontinued)

E. Interfund Bulonces

Ihe City reports interfund bulances between many of Its lunds, The total of all balances agrees with the sum of interfuisd balances

presented in the statements of net asseta/balance sheels for governmental and enterprise funds. The interfind balinces are-opertional
and short-term in nature. Interfund balanees at September 30, 2014 consisted of the following;

GENERAL FUND PURPOSE

DUE FROM:

Lovemmental

PEDC 5 1,363,204 Eeonamic Development

Community Developmeni 307,880 Loan due to grant (iming issie

Cirant Fund 523,035 Lonn due to grant Uiming issue

Hotel/Muore| 19587 Payrall imanagenen| liming

2253710

Ltility 139375 Poyroll managenent timing

Bridge 42,102 Paymoll management timing

Coll 20212 Payroll nanagemeni timing
0680

5 seryice Funds:

Carage 9,085 Payroll management timing
5

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

PUE FROM:

Covemnmental

Cenceral 55 Miscellaneous

Grand Taial 5 2d'HII.5‘J

-4 -



City of Pharr, Texas
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2014
HE. DETAILED NOTES ON FUNDS AND COMPONENT UNITS - (continued)

F. Capital Asscts

Capital asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2014 was as follows:

Beginning Ending

Primary Governmeni _ Balunce Increases Decreases Balanee
Gavernmentnl Activities:
Capital asséis, nol being dopreciated.

Land ond right olway 3 3330637 % 247312 £ . Y FAM.040

Canstruction in Progress 436,340 2575611 4542 3406409
Towsl eapital nsrets, nol being deprectited f, T 077 282201 08,592 8086358
Cogital weseds, being dopraciatind.

I3urildbinng s AP S R U 495,173 - D038 062

Mapchinery mad equipment E.%.2 1% 1 2803324 5 2L.70072

lmprovements other than builidings 7413442 131,198 2 7004500

Irilrs et T 285,029 209,407 . T0.498.436
Tmal capnalassens, being depreciated 12,002,608 1.920.232 . 146,021,860
Less pecwmilsted deprecimion for

Buildings 10470714 BaRAE : L1325 108

Machinery and equipreni 10,280,385 2148902 - 12,420,283

Improvements other than buildings 2,598,223 37138 - 2,915,361

Infrustructune 44.079.283 2.307.274 . 16,380,561
Vot beeurm bited deprecition 67428001 5,631,802 . 73060403
Fatil capitnl nssels, being depreeuited, net 74,664,007 (1.702.350) . 728961 457

Governmental sctivities cnpitnl sssets, net  §  K1,432,084 & 112037 3 615,542 % BlL947815

Business=Type Activities;
Capital uxsets, nat being depreciated!

Land sind right of way 8 2656024 3 . 3 - 5 2656024
Constrietion i Progress 15074,1H 2.483,596 290310 15,048,271
Fobul capital asgets, not being déprecinted 31215 2,483,596 2910516 17,704,205
Caprial assety, being depreciated:
Buildings 28321676 398,579 - 28.720.255
Muachinery und equipment 14,701,088 153,199 . 14,854,287
Improavements ether than buildings 3,284,106 340,033 - 5624137
Infrastructure 117,198,757 A 012651 = 120,311,471
Tolal crpitul nssets. bemg deprecinted 165.305.623 000,465 . 169,35 10.0)
Less necumilited deprecintion for
Building 12,952,999 634008 - 13,587.007
Muchinery and equipnent H 67,450 BOZ 183 RER ] 11243873
Impravements other than huildings 1,710,668 282,084 - 1.992,732
Infrasticture 23,154,025 3,523,482 - 26,677,507
Total wéeumilaied depreciation 8285182 5.241.757 23,800 53,503,139
Totalenpitil assels, being deprecinied, nel 117220443 (1.237,202) {23,800} 116,006,951
Business-Type agtivities capital assets, net 135351 658 1,246,304 2886,716 133,711,246
Total Peimnry Governnient 5 216781642 3 2366677 § 3492258 $ 215630061

42 -



. DETAILED NOTES ON FUNDS AND COMPONENT UNITS - (eontinued)

F. Cuapital Assets-(continued)

Companent Unit-Blended

{"rlp”ﬂ! {SSEeIN. ol bumg (J’qlp.lw}muu'
Land nnd right o way

Total capital asseis, not beng deprecinted

Capiial assets. being deprecinied
Buiktings
Muchinery and equipment
Improvement other than buildings
Total capital assets, beng depreciated

Less Accunulated Deprecintion
Buililings
Machinery nnd equipment
Improvement other than buiidings
Totul Accumu lated Depreciation
Total Capital assels, being depreciated, net
Component Unit-Blended eapital assels, nel

City-Wide eapitnl nssels, net

Peprecintion expense was charged to functions ofthe primary govermment as follows:

Cienem! Govennment
Pubslic Safety
Highwaiy & Streets
Sanitation

Culture & Recreation

Sub-Total Covemmental Activilies

Component Unil - Blended;
Economic Development

Total Govemmenial Activities §

Utility
Bridge
Goll

Totnl Business-Type Activities

City of Pharr, Texas

Seplember 30, 2014

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Beginning Ending

Balunee Inerenses Decrenses Balance
430,062 3 - -3 ~ 5 480,062
180,062 - B 480,062
1,328,356 - 1.328.356
141,340 = = 44340
143,952 77023 . 621,575
Ladl6,608 7623 . 2,094,271
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City of Pharr, Texas
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2014
HIL. DETAILED NOTES ON FUNDS AND COMPONENT UNITS - (continued)

G, Long-Term Obligations

The following schedule summarizes the changes in long-term debi during the year ended September 30, 2014:

Beginning Fnling e Within
Balanee Adklitions Retirvments Adljusmeniy lkaipnce Oiie Yeur
Governmental Activities
Refunding Bonds Pavable $ 1ZE0000 § . 3 1535000 3 - % 11,295 {00 £ 1,545,000
Cerilcies of Obligalon TA30,000 - 304,000 . TS 00 304 000
<R Seation 108 Mote Puyable 5,306,000 - 2 G0u . 2002 i 304
15 Hote Payahle-Ciy 077582 = 1,336,369 - 3721213 5514044
T5HE Hote Pavable-PEIC |62 500 - 567 A 00033 e, 444
Tote Piynble-PREE 13,300,060 - 3470014 . 11,000 801 00,0000
Ciiher Pos) Biplaymicnt Benelils i, 473 ignay - e {10 K1 A
Accrued Compensited Abseneay-PEDC 18,757 13,001 9587 - 2N 5003
Acenivd Compensited Absencey 4,264,091 1827632 1ALE 320 (36001 A 4617403 1.0635.245
Acoed Compensuted Ahsences - Gaingi 16,536 10,00 260 {9517 A 1,331 1583
Capilal Lenses 3181145 2,380,700 1510864 F 4052981 1139, 106
Capilal Lenses - Carage - 51,000 172 - 48,224 7,263
Toinl 5 36,7097 430308 5 i 28204 3 [M.#m 3 SLTR0A7T 5 600 AT
Deferied Outiflowd Inllow of resources
Lnmonied Preminnd{Discount) ¥ 161,241 % = 3 Al 139 3 . § 115,102 £ a6l
Ennmoitpad Cain/(lous jon e funding (434,060) = (40,194} - {353,872y (80,194
Tatal b3 (271825 § . b (34.055) 5 - 5 tz:a.‘nn! 5 ¢1n,l:rs:‘-;
il ness-Type
Revenue Bonds Payalble § 52545000 3 - 5 2 110,000 b3 - § S0A35000 £ 2010000
Reflnding Revenue Bonds Payable 513,000 - 1,250,000 . F25000 |, 200,30y
Crpial Lenses 463,154 - 187.238 11309 B 389,103 107 269
Aeeried Compensated Absenoes A%, 778 268,032 227212 (5A060) A WS 18 228080
Total 5 62020932 3 20002 3 3609490 3 39,544 3 58,740,023 5 3,736.249
Deferred Chutitow/Inflow of resources
Uasmorized Premiim/{ Discounti 5 2R.67 g . g 1188 4 - - ] 24,49 L1 3,187
Unamer ted CuanAloss ) an Refunding (453,258 - (230, 163) 5 (323.005) (230, 163)
Fiatinl 3 (324570 3 - ] (2_26.‘:‘5'5] 5 - b (92,604 § (226076)

A Loy -Term Obligation Schedule Adjustnent for Acenied Compensited Absences Balnce.
1 Long-Term Obligution Schedule Adjusinent for Gall €t Cupital Lesse Bulmee
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City of Pharr, Texas
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2014
HI. DETAILED NOTES ON FUNDS AND COMPONENT UNITS - (continued)
G, Long=Term Obligations - {continued)

1. Bonds Payable
Debt service requirements of bonds pavable at September 30, 2014 are us follows:

Yeur Ended Govemmenlal Activities Business-1Tvpe Activities
Seplember 30, Principal Interest Total Prineipal Inferest Tatal

2015 5 L385,000 5 490,318 § 2075318 5 3,505,000 5 1810892 % 5.315,892
20016 1,675,000 427,928 2102928 3613000 1659672 3314072
2017 I.?ﬁﬂ.ﬂm R 178 2,104,178 725,00 1,586,592 502
2018 1.850.000 156,174 2,106,178 380,000 1472945 5312945
219 1.415,000 182,178 1,597,178 4015000 1,354, |78 3,364,178
2020-2024 3010000 187481 3, 19781 20,745,000 4,785,117 25,530,147
20252029 - - - 13,720,000 1,502,350 15,222,350
2030-2034 . - - 1,360,000 499,356 2,059,156
2035-2040 - : - 1,765,000 298,406 263,406
204 1-2046 - - == 1. 170,000 63,764 1,233,764
B 11,295,000 5 1LBEE2GI 5 13.183.261 5 57660000 § 15,073.272 $ 12733272

2. Certilicates of Obligation Pavable
Debi service requirements of certificates of obligation payable al September 30, 2014 are as follows:

Year Ended Covernmental Aclivities
September 30,  Principal Interest Totl
2015 S 305,000 $ 255,774 b 360,774
2016 305,000 252,541 557,541
017 315,000 248,363 563,363
2018 320,000 242598 562598
2019 325,000 235,750 560,750
2020-2024 1,780,000 1,030,604 2,810,604
2025-2029 2,145,000 663,409 2,808,409
2030-2034 I,530,000 152,699 |.6B2,6594

$ _7.025.000 § 3081738 § 10,106,733

3. Capital Leases Payable

Assets purchased with the lease funds are included in the Cily’s capital assets and depreciation expense. Debt service requirements of
capitil leases obligations at September 30, 2014 are as follows:

Year Ended Govemmental Activities Business-Type Activities
September 30, Principal Interest Total Principal Intereds Total
2015 3 1,146,369 5 alnedl & L08010 171441 06415 ¥ 177856
2006 932,298 44,545 976,843 108,232 3468 111,700
W17 806,935 28,987 835922 90,239 |, 427 91,666
2018 4644290 16,884 481,313 19,193 95 19,288
2019 331485 10,369 341,854
20202025 419,693 5236 424,929 - - -
£ 4,101,209 §167.662 _$ 4,268,871 5 389,105 _f_ 11,405 5 400,510

=4 -



City of Pharr, Texns
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2014

I, DETAILED NOTES ONFUNDS AND COMPONENT UNITS - (continned)

G

3.

Long-Term Obligations — (continued)

Capital Leases Payvable — (contintied)

Capital Leases Ciovernneninl

Business-1vpe

Total

$2,322.000 lense payable; due i monthly installmenis of $31,600,
ineluding interest, through November 14, 2014; interes) at 3.87%,
All funds used o purchase Machinery & Equipment. £ 62,110

S2.9221,720 lense payable, due in quarerly matallivents starfing with
H167.702, meludiing intercat, ihrouuh Mny 200 2014; interest nl 242%
Al Tunds vsed 1o purchase Machinery & Equipiment, 65, RGO

$405.000 lease payable, due in monthily inglallments of $1 1,537,
inchuding interest, through February 28, 2015: miercst at 1.64%,
Police cquipment purchaged, %7 44K

$1,100.150 lease payable, due in monthly mstallments of $19,00%

incleding interest, through February 28, 2017; nterest at 1.61%,
All funds used to purchased equipment. 424,028

PEIL120 lense payable, due in monthly mstallinents of $14,220.07
including interest, through December 31, 2017; mterest af 1.01%.
Ceneral and Golf Fund equipment purchased. 474,841

8439, 750 lense pavable, due in monthly installments of $12,377.01

meluding, interest, through Decerber 31, 2015; interes( al 86%
Police equipment purchased. 184,607

52,007,840 lease payable, due inmonihly installments of $26,558
including interest. through lunuary 2021; interest ol 1.75%
Cieneral Fund and City Garnge equipment purchased. 1.908.955

$335,860 lease payable, due in monthly installmenis of $5,789
including interest. through January 2019at 1.33%
Palice equipment purchased. 292360

£238,000.50 lease payable, due in monthly installments of 54,320
mcluding inferest, through December 2004 at 3.3%
Call'cars were purchased,

(S L7 % 6o

171,104 867 904

- 57448

§1.436 505864

70,821 545,662

184,607

- 1,908,955

- 202,360

04,172 04,172

§ 4101200 5 380005 $4490314

=475
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City of Phary, Texas

September 30, 2014

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HL DETAILED NOTES ON FUNDS AND COMPONENT UNITS - (continued)

G, Long-Term Obligations - {continued)

5. Debi Disclosure amd Currently Defeased Debi
The City has entered into a coitinuing diselosure undertiking to provide Annual Reports and Materinl Events Nofices to the State
Information Depository of Texas, which is the Municipul Advisory Commission. This information is required under SEC Rule | 5e2-
12 to enuble investors o analyze the financial condition and operations of the City. 11 2005, 2008 and 2011 the City defeased cortain
outstanding general obligation. certificates of obligation, and revenue bonds by placing (he proceeds of new bonds in @y irrevoecalle
trust to provide for all fulure debt sérvice payiments of the old bonds. Accordingly, the trist secounts for the defeased bonds and are
nert included in the City’s financinl statements. A1 September 30, 2014, the following outstanding bands are considered defensed:

Cenernl Obligation Bonds

Interest mies:

Series

3.00% - 5.33%

1998, 1999, 2001 3 10,045,000
Interesi imle:  5.00%
Series 2001 603,000
Waterworks & Sewer Syetem Revenue Bonds
Interest rales:  4.30% - 6,74%
Series 1996, 1996A, 19978, 1997C, 1998 3,348,000
Bridge Revenue Bonds
Interest mtes: 4.25%
Series 2003 410,000
Bonds legally defeased §  15.208,000

6. Accrued Compensnted Absences

Accrued compensated absences (vested sick and vacation leave) are payable from the fund respansible for the emplovee’s
compensation. As of Seplember 30, 2014, the pwning fund of the liability is as follows:

Owning Fund ni"l_inhilil_y Amount
Ciencral & 4569388
PEDC 48 22,771
Community Bevelopment 48015
Carage 14,33]
Litility 493457
Bridge 112,500
Colf 34,931

7. Arbitrage

The City has issued long-term debi for capital construetion projects,
regulations call for the refurn of the difference in interest revenue apaingt interest

liability of arbitrage that would have been owed 10 the feders] government.

-49.

These bonds are subject 1o the arbitrage regulations. Arbilrage

expense. Al September 30, 2014, there was no



Cily of Pharr, Texas
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2014

M. DETAILED NOTES ON FUNDS AND COMPONENT LUNITS - (continucd)

H. Interfund Transfers

The City reports interfund frangfers between many of its fmds. Interfund trmsfess for the year ended Sepiember 30, 2014, consisted
af the following:

TRANSFER TROM

Giove rinine nial Fuiids

Conmmmmey Hateld Parklaiml Ttebi Tainl
- C@neral I'ERC Development Maiel Phe il et e Seiviee  Goverumenisl
Cronemml 3 - ¥ o530 3 - § - - Sh % . 3 - 5 157,500
Capiinl Projecis - [AGERT - - - s G645k
FrcCw| 947400 (R - - . ’ : 2RULATR
I3ebi Scrvice - 1200 37 . . - - . 1200511
Coimpunty Developmant 185% - . . . - - 1555
T2 U1 HAG - - - - 92416
P A7US - B ‘ = 304 963 . 4397 668
Hotel/Motel TA2 445 - B . . - - TE345
Paving & Virainage LERRLEY - - - - - = B4 G
Totnl govemmental  ZA07.030 331135 16,458 - 5,200 43049 . 10,835,205
Bkl . - s . - - 13,150 213350
Gl BR2.KB2 . . : . - : 642842
Totul oniorprise AHD KT . . . = - vl 16,112
PAL 22047 - - : - - IHAN
Tuipl disereie enmponeni unita 22047 . - - = - 229940
Total 5 3419386  §3311,554 § GladsE & - 35300 5 434563 §233240 1 1L9ROMI |

The reasons Tor the wransfers vary from operational, 1o reimbursements, to debt service pavment supplements. The following details
state the exnct purpose of the translers,

The transfors on (his page are related to Governmiental transactions,

L] . F W@

= 8 ¥ @

The transfer from General to Community Development, PAL, PEDC, and Golf was to cover operations

The transfer from General fo Hotel/Motel was to cover parinership agrecments for the Phorr Events Center with promoters
The transfer from General 1o TIRZ was to pay he City's portion of the TIRZ cantribution fram property laxes

The (ransfer from General to PFC fil was ta pay for debt service nssociated with Phar Commereial Park development

The transfer from PEDC (o General are for reimbursements in the use of General assets and for payroll reluted charges, the
reimbursement transfer is expected to continue in fulure years

The transfer from PEDC 1o PFC il was for 1o pay for debt service associated with Pharr Commercial Park development, the
[inds were from the sale of land

The transfer from PEDC to Debl Service was (o pay for debi service associated with the Pharr Produce Park development
The wansfer from Community Development to Capital Projects was to help develop a specinl-needs park

The transfer from Parkland Dedication to General Fund was (o assist with park developments

The transter [rom Debl Service to Bridge Is (o provide tax proceeds for the payment of general obligation debt accounted for
in the bridge fund, this transfer will continue as long as excess debt related tax proceeds are collected

=30 -



City of Pharr, Texas
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2014

[, PETAILED NOTES ON FUNDS AND COMPONENT UNITS - (cantinued)
H. Interfund Transfers - (cantinued)

The following transfers are relaled 1o Enterprise Funds transactions

*  The transfer from Utility to General are Jor reimbursements in the use of General assets and for puyrall related charges, the
reimburseiment lransfer is expected (o continue in luture yenrs

The transfer from Bridge to General are for operational transactions and are expected to continue in future years if the Bridge

has exeess funds, by ordinance, any excess Bridge fiunds belong to (he General Fund

The following transfers are related 1o Discretely Presented Compenent Unll transactions
L ¥

= The ansfer from PAL to General are 1o reimburse the General Fund for salary cosis for an employes, the costs for the
employee were now paid by o grant

TRANSFER FROM TRANSFER FROMN
Digeveiely Presonied
Enierprise Fumds Comgainent Unit
Vil Gromd
Uiiliy _ Hvidge Enterpilae PAL Toial Total

Ceneml 404900 5160000 557963,500 5607 5 6la7s £ 5URiGTS

Capinl Projecis . 3,000,000 3,000,000 - - 36106458

PECHI - - - - . 299433

2ubi Service B - B . . | 208337

Community Development - - - . - 14,534

TIRZ - - - - 92,36

o EX . . . . - 4,397 608

= Hotel'Maole| - . - - - 752,445

" Paving & Dtainnge - - - - - 493,000

i Totnl gevemmental 404,500 8,360,600 R,765,300 61,678 ul,678 19,402,383

- Brdge - - - - - 23250
Galf . - . : - 82,480

Total enterprise - - - . = 0,132

PAl = - = = = 229,074

Total diserele component units - . : : = 129,171

Fowl SA4900 SRI60600 S$RTB5300 & 6L67T8 5 61678 § 30,807,089
— s ———

I.  Restricted Assets

The balances of restricted asset as uf’qutam]jer 30, 2014 4re as follows:

Lovernmental Funds
Capital prajeet gimnt % 368,392
Cirnnt resivistions 831.520
Capittl outlny reserves 626817
Total vestricted pssets-govermmental funds 1,826,729
Capital Bnancing-Utility 3 13.512.211
Cuslomer deposis-Liility 2. 162,077
[Debt reserves-Litlily 4,504,383
Debt reserves -Bridge 979,644
Total resiiicled aaseis-business-type fbnds 5§ 21,158.315

Vatal resivicted nascts % 22,985 0444

=5 -



City of Fharr, Texas
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2014

IV, OTHER INFORMATION

A.  Risk Management

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage 1o, and destruction of assels; errors and omissions, injuries
to employees (workman's compensation), und natural disasters, During the liscal year, the City obtained general liability coverage at
a cost that is considered 1o be economically justifinble by joining together with other governniental entities in the Stale as a member of
the Texas Municipal League Intergovernmental Risk Pool (TML). TML is a self-funded pool operating as a common risk
mapagement and insuranee program. The City pays an anual premium o TML for its above insurance eoverage, The agreement for
the formation of TML provides that TML will be self-sustaining through member premiums and will reinsure through commercial
companies for claims in excess of acceptable risk levels; however, each catesory of coverage has its own level of reinsurance. The
City continues 1o carry commercial insuranee for ather risks of loss, There were no significant reductions in commercial insurance
coverage in the past liscal year and settled claims resulling from (hese risks have not exceeded covernge in any of (he past three fiseal
years, A copy of TML's Comprehensive Annual Report may be obtained by nequest al the following address:

Tesis Municipal League
182) Rutherford Lane, Suite 400
Austin, TX 78754-5128

1. Health Care Coverape

During the fiscal year. employees of (he City were covered by a health insurance plan (the Plm) with Blue Cross Blue Shield of Texas
(BCBST). BCBST is A Division of Health Care Service Corporation, a Mutual Legal Reserve Company, an Independent Licensee of
the Blue Cross and Blue Shield Association, The City pays for 100% of (he employees insurance cost and 50% of (he emplovee’s
dependent’s insurance cost. The City paid premiums of $275 per month per employee and $495 for employee with dependents to the
Plan. Employees, at their option, sutharized payroll withholdings to pay premiums lor dependents, Al premivms were paid (o a
licensed insurer. The Plan wis nuthorized by Article 3.51-2, Texas Insurance Code and was documented by contractual agreement.

The contract between the City and the licensed insurer is renewable July |, and terms of the coverage and premium costs are included
in the contractual provision. A copy of BCBST's Comprehensive Annual Report may be obtained by request at the following address:

Health Care Service Corporation
300 Rast Randolph Sreet
Chicago, linois 60601-5099

2. Post-Retirement Health Care Benefits
The City provides certain health care and life insurance benelits, under City ordinance, for:

A A retired person and their dependents covered under the City of Phart's health insurance plan, prior 1o January |, 2009, shall
be entitled to continued coverage at the municipality's expense not 1o exceed $275 per month for the retiree, and fifty percent
of the cost of coverage [or the dependent or $225 whichever is less, When a retiree reaches the age of 65, the municipality
will no longer pay for the retiree’s and dependent’s health insurance. The municipality will only pay for the cost of (he
retiree’s Medicare Advintage Plan covernpe.

B, Any person employed with the City of Pharr, prior to January 1, 2009, that has been employed for not less than twenty (20)
years with any municipality in the Stale of Texas that panicipates in the Texas Municipal Retirement System, that was
employed with the City of Pharr for not less than ten (10) years, und reaches the age of fifty (50), shall be eligible upon
retivement to receive conlinued health covernge al the expense of the municipality not to exceed $275 per montl. A
dependent of an eligible retired person under the subsection shall not receive continued coverage at the expense of [he
municipality. When a retiree reaches the age of 65, the municipality will no longer pay for the retiree’s health coverage.

C. A person (hat becomes employed with the City of Pharr, after January 1, 2009, shall not be eligible for any health insurance
coverage af the expense of the municipality upon retirement. A dependent of an employee under this subsection shall nor
receive health insurance coverage at the expense of the municipalily upon retirement,

Currently, approximaltely 46 retirees meel these eligibilily requirements. The City pays 80% of the amount of validated <laims for
qualified medical and hospitalization cosis incurred, after the retiree meets a deduetible runging from $1,000 per individual 1o $2,000
per family for In-Network covernge. The imaximum out-of-pocket costs that can be incurred by a retiree in one year Fnges from,
E1.500 per individual to $3.000 per Family.

L83



City of Plarr, Texas
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Seprember 30, 2014

IV, OTHER INFORMATION - (continued)

B.  Deferred Compensation Plan

Ihe City offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in necordimce with Intermnl Revenue Code Section 457, The plan,
available to all full-time employees at their option, permits participants to defer a portion of their salary until future years. The
deferred compensation is not available to participants until termination, retivement, death, or unforeseeable emergency. All amounts
of compensation deferred under the plan, all property and rights purchased with those amounts. and all income nitributable 1o those
wmounis, property or rights are the propeny of (he beneficiary.

.  Pension Plan

L. Plan Bescription
The City provides pension henefits for all of its full-time employees through a nontraditional, jaint contributory, hybrid defined
benefit plar in the state-wide Texas Municipal Retirement System (1TMRS), an agent miltiple-employer public employee retivement

system. The plan provisions that have been adopled by ihe City nre within the options available i the governing stale statutes of
TMRS.

TMRS issues a publicly available comprehensive annual financial report that includes financial siatements and required
supplementary information (RS1) for TMRS; the report also provides detiled explanntions of the contribubions; benelits and actuarial
methods and assumptions used by TMRS. This report may be obtained by writing to TMRS, P.O. Box 149153, Austin, T¥ 78714-
9153 or by calling 800-924-8677; in addition, the report is uvailable on TMRS's website at wiwvw, [MRS.com.

The plan provisions are ndopted hy the governing body of the City, within the options available in the siate smiules governing TMRS,
Flan provisions for the City were as follows:

Plan Year 2013 |Plan Year 2014
Employee deposit rate 1% 7.1%
Matehing mtio (¢ity to enployee) 2101 St 1
Years required for vesting 5 5
Service retirement eligibility
(express a5 nge/years of service) 6{/3, 0/20 60/3, /20
Updated Service Credit 0% 0%
Annuity Increase (1o retirees) 0% o CPI 0% of CPI

2.  Cantributions

Under the state law governing TMRS, the contribution rate for each city is determined annually by the actuary, using the Projected
Unit Credit actuarial cost method. This rate consists of the normal cost contribution rate und the prior service cost contribution rate,
which is calculated to be a level percent of payroll from year to year. The normal cost contribution rate finances (he portion of an
active member's projected benefit allocated annually; the prior service confribution rate amortizes the unfunded (overfunded) nctuarial
liability (asset) over the applicable period for that city. Both the normal cost and prior service contribution rates include recognition of
the projected impact of annually repeating benefits, such as Updated Service Credits and Annuity Increases. The City contributes 1o
the TMRS Plan at an uc‘.!uﬂ"y determined rate. Both the nmprﬂ)'nes and the Cily make coniributions F\‘li}ﬂlm“,‘. Sinee the Cil)" needs to
know its contribution rate in advance for budgetary purposes, there is a one-year delay between the actuarial viluation thal serves as

the basis for the rate and the calendar year when the rate goes into effect. The annual pension cost und net pension obligation/(asset)
are as follows:

2013 2012 2011
Nei pension Obligationnt Beginning of Period 3 . b1 = £ .
Annual Pension Cost:
Annual Reguired Contribution 107,500 2085732 3236.159
Contributions Made 3107500 3085232 3,334,150
Nl Pension Obligniion ] 5 < - 5 J




City ol Pharr, Texns
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2014

IV, OTHER INFORMATION - (comtinued)

C. Pension Plan-{coniinued)

2, Contribulions-(continued)

The required contribution rates for this fiscal year 20 14 were determined ns part of the December 31, 2013 and 2012 actuarial
viiluations, Additional information as of the latest actuarial valuations, December 31, 2013, also (ollows:

Cieneral Systen-witke Actinrinl Assumptions

Wilusntion Dale

12312010

12312011

123112012

/3172013

Actuariil Coxt Method

Projeeted Unil Credit

Prasjected Lnit Credit

Projected Linit Credil

Prajecied Unlt Credit

Amoiiization Mcthiod

Level Percent of Pavioll

| evel Percent al Ty il

Level Percent of Pavmil

Fevel Percent of Payroll

GASD 25 Eguivalent Single

27 Years -Closed Peviod

26,1 Yenrs

249 Years 20000 Yenars
Lain/losses
Anwntization Period Tornew
Cmin/Losses 30 vens 26, | Yeurs 2449 yeurs 25 yienrs
10-Year Smoaihd 10-Year Smoothed 10-Year Smoothed k- Year Smootlicd
Assel Valuation Melhod Markict Murket Market Markei
Actuurinl Assumpiions:
livestment mate of relum® T0% 6.8% 7.1% T.0%

Projected Saluiv Increases *

WVaries by age und serviee

Viries by age and service

Viries by npe and service

Varles by uge ond service

*Tncludes Inflation Al 3.0% 3.0% i LX)
Cost-nf-living Adjusiments {.0% .0 0,194 0.0%
The funded stuius as of December 31, 2013, the most recent actuarial valuation date, is a3 Tollows:

Actiarial | Actuarisl Value Actunrinl Unifunded LAALasn

Valuation Accrued Liability Fria Perceniage of

Date of Assels (AAL) Funded Ratio | AAL(LAAL) Fayroll Covered Payroll
(h (2) (3) {4) (5) (&)
Uy (21 (4/(5)

12/3142000 $ 284065143 | % 31276917 T0.4% §  BAIL7M|S 17729336 49.70%
127312000' | 8 31719650 | & 40,488,486 78.3% $  BTGR827 | S 17,770,636 49.34%
123120007 5 41686353 [ § 46768782 89.1% $  5082429|§ 17770636 28.60%
127317201 1 £ d5864.221 | & 49,965,141 01.58% 8 4100920 % 19319,97 21.01%
12/3172012 b 49962459 | 5 53,717,387 93.0% 3 37519028 |% 20.5884706 18.24%,
12/3172013 P 54346139 | % 61,820,357 a87.%% $ 747218 | 5 21,980,889 34.00%

I Actuurial enluntion perfarmed imder the originnd fmd siruire,
2 Actunrisl valuation performed imder the new Mund strugture.

Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of events far

into the future.  Actuarially determined amounts are subject to continual revisions ns netual results are compared 1o past
expectations and new estimates are made about the fture,

o




City ol Pharr; Texas
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Seplember 30, 2014

V. (iTlIF.Il INFORMATION - {(continued)
C.  Pension Plan=(continned)

Z. Contributions-(continued)

Actuarial caleulations ure based on the benelits provided under the terms of the substantive plan in effect uf the time of each
vitluation, and reflect o long-term perspective,  Consistent with that perspective. actuarial methods and assumptions used
include techniques that are designed to reduee shori-term volatility in aciuarial acerued lHabilities and the actnrial value of
assets,  The schedule of funding progress, presented as Required Supplementary Information following the notes to the

financial statements, presents multi=vear trend information sboul whether (he nctuaria) value of plan assels is increasing or
clecreasing over time relative to the actunrial accrued linbility of bepefits.

0. Other Post Emplayment Beoefit (OPER) Programs

L. Supplemental Death Benefits Plan Deserviption

The City also participates in the cost sharing multiple-employer defined benefil group-term life insurance plan aperated by the Tesus
Municipal Retirement System (TMRS) knaws as the Supplemental Death Benefits Fund (SDBF) The City elected, by ordinance, (o
provide group-term life insuriince coverage 1o both current and vetired employees, The City may terminate coverage under and

discontinue participation in the SDBF by adopting an ordinance before Novenber | of any year ta be effeetive the following January
|

The' death benefits for nctive employees provides @ lump-sum payment approximately equal to the employee’s annunl salary
(calculated based on the employee’s actual carnings, for the 12-month period preceding the month of death); retired employees are
insured for £7,500; this coverage is un “olher post-employment benefit,” or OPEB,

2. Supplemental Death Benefits (SDBF) Plan Contributions
The City coniributes (o the SDBF al a contraciually required rate as deteymined by an annual actuarial valuation, The rate is
equal to the cost of providing one-year term life insurance. The funding policy for the SDBF program is lo assure thal

adequite resources are availible 1o meet all death benefit payments for the upeaming year: the intent is not 1o pre-fund retiree
term life insurance during employees™ entire careers,

The City’s contributions 1o the TMRS SDBF for the years ended 2014, 2013, and 2012 were $2.061 $1.903, and $1,003
respectively, which equaled the required contributions each year.

Plan/ Annual Required |Supplemenial Denth Actunl
Calendar | Contribution (ARC) Benefii Contribution Mide | Perveninge of

Year {ate) (Mate) {Ratc) ARC
210 10.58% 0.16% 10.58% 100.00%
2011 10,14% 0.16% 10.14% 100.00%
2012 7.1 6% 0.13% 7.16% 100.00%%
2013 6.92% 0.13% 6.92% 100.00%
2014 71(0% 0,13% 7.10% 100.00%

3. Refiree Health Insurance Benelil Plan Deseription

The City sponsors a post-retirement plan which covers health insurance benefits, Eligible City retirees and their dependents
may continue health care covernge through the City’s plan,

Retirement efigibility depends on when an employee was hired, their age, and their length of service with the City.
Employees must be at least 50 years old and 10 years of service with the City, Employees hired on or afier January 1, 2000
will not be eligible for refiree health benefits. Employees hired prior 1o Januury 1, 2009 will be eligible for the following

City subsidy:
Current Pre-65 Retirees
City will pay 100% of single coverage rite not to exceed $275 per month, and City will pay 50% of dependent coverage not

1o exceed $225 per month. As actusl premium costs inerease in futlre years, retirees will pay the full difference between the
above lixed subsidy amounts and the blended (pooled active and retiree) premium rate.

+EE-.



City of Pharr, Texas
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2014

V. OTHER INFORMATION = (continned)
1 Other Post Employment Benefit (OPEBR) Programs-(continued)
3. Retivee Health lnsurance Benefit Plan Description-(continued)

Current Post-63 Relirges ‘
City will reimburse Medicare Advantage premium for self-coverage only, As premiums cost increase in the future, the City
intends (o reimburse the increased premium rate.

Current Employees Who Retire In The Future
Same a4 above, excepl no reimbursement for past-63 coverage, and no reimbursement loe dependent coverage, for either pre-
65 or post-ns,

4. Retiree Health Insurance Benelli Plan Funding Policy
An irrevocable trust ta Tully fund this benefit plan has been created and is veflected i the Schedule of Funding Progress in
the Required Supplementary Infonnation Section as Value of Plan Assels that reduces the Acwuarial Acerued Linbility.

5. Retiree Health Insurance Benefit Plan Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation

The annual required contribution (ARC) is actuarially determined in nceordunce with the parameters 6f GASE Stalement No.
45, Adcconnting and Financial Reporting by Emplovers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pension. The ARC
represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected (o cover the normal cost cach year and amortize
any unfunded sctuarjal liabilities (or funding excess) over a period nol (o exceed 30 years. The most current nctuarial
valuations were made as of January |, 2012

The fellowing tables shows the valuation resulls and the derivation of the Annual OPEB Cost for the fiseal year, it also
conlaing the amount actually contributed ta the plan, and changes in the City's net OPEB obligation:

As of January 1, 2012
Total Benefits

Vialuafion Results

1 Present Value of Future Benefits b 6,764,604
2 Actuarial Accrued Linbility 4,624 841
3 Unfunded Aetuarial Linhility 4,145,135
4 Normal Cost Beginning of Year 140,461
3 Nel OPEB Obligation (NOO) b7 578716
Amortization Cost
6 Actuarinl Acerued Liability 4,145,135
T Amoitization Factor (30 years) 16.29
& Anwnimtion cost (5/6) 254,459

Annual Ihqulred Contribution
Lking 30-Yenr Amortization

& Normml cost with 4.5% Inventory to EOQY 146,782
10 Amortizmtion Cost il end of year 254,450
11 Tatal £ 401,241
Assumptions
Discount Rute 4.50%
Healtheare cost trend rate
#2012-2013 B.00%4
FUlmate (2015) 4,500
Future parlicipation mte 160.00%
Future retirees covering an spoise 0.00%
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City of Phury, iFexas
MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2014

IV, OTHER INFORMATION - (confinuel)
D.  Other Post Employment Benefil (OPER) Programs ~ (continued)

5. Retivee Health Insuranee Benelit Plan Annual OPER Cost and Nei OPER Obligation- (continued)

Amnual OPEBR Cost, Contribution, nnd Change in OPER-FYE09/30/14

Annunl required contribution prior to adjstments % 401,241
Interest on net OPER obiligation at 4.5% 6042
Adjustment to annual required contribution {35.526)
Annuil OPEB cost 301,757
Contributions made {35 1.800)
Increase in net OPER obligation U957
Met OPEB oblipation beginning ol yenr ao0A73
Met OPER abligalion end of year % B0 430

The City"s annual ©OPEB cost and the percentuge cost contributed (o the plan for the year is as follows:

Annunl Percentage of
Year Ended OPER Actual Annual QOPER
september 30, Cosl Contrbution Cost Cantribution
2012 5 112880 & 195,113 47.3%
013 $ asT 8 370,000 94.4%,
204 5 91,757 8 351,800 49.8%

The accounting standards requires employers (o anticipate Future health care costs by adjusting today's premiums with
projected health trend rates. Health care costs have outpaced general inflation and the annual rate of change has Nuctuated
significantly over lime, 1t is difficult to accurately predict health care costs incrensed even one of Lwa years inta the future, so
to provide the City with an indication of the likely cost we have determined the liability using a best estimate sel of health
care frend rales, These rates anticipate an 8% increase n the near future, declining over time to an ultimare (longsterm) rate of
A.5% per year.

Actuariol valuation Date 1z
Actunrinl Cosi Method Projected Unit Credil
Amortization Period Level dollar, open
Remaining Amortiaition Peviod 0 yenrs

Assel Valuation Method Murket Value

Actuarial Assumpiions:

linvestinent Rate of Retum A4,500%
Projected Salary Increases NIA
Healtheare Tnfation Rate B%% initial, 4.5% ullimate

6.  OPER Irrevoeable Trust Fund

In Fiscal year 2011-2012, the City entered into a contractual agreement with First Southwest Advisory Services, Ine. (FSWA), for the
administration and maintenance of cash and other sssets from (he City's contributions for Other Post-Employment Benelits in the
form of an irrevocable trust to fund for its long-term obligation to its participants and to comply with GASB Statement No, 45,

FSWA s registered as an lnvestment advisor with the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC™) purstant to the Investiment
Advisers Act of 1940 and acknowledges that it is a fiduciary with respect to the Trust, FSWA will natify Employer if at any time
during the term of this Agreement it it is not registered or if s registration is suspended or restricted.

The balance of the trust at September 20, 2014 was $998,008,
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Cily of Pharr, Texas
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2004

IV, OTHER INFORMATION - (confinued)
E. Commitments

I Grant Proprams

The City participites in several federal and state assisied grant programs, Under the terms of these grants, the City is subjeet to
program compliance audits by the grantors or their representatives.  Accordingly, the Cily's compliance with applicable grant
requirements will be established al some [iture date, [T future program compliance audits result in questioned or disallowed cosis,
reimbursements would be made to the grantor agencies.  The amounis of expenditures which might be disallowed by (he grantor
agencies cannot be deterined ot this tine; however, management believes such amounts, irany, would be immaterial,

2. Litigation

The City is a defendant in various lawsuis. Although the outcome of these lawsuits 18 not-presently determinable, it is the opinion of

the City's legal counsel und munagement that veselution of these matters will not have o materinl adverse elffect on the financial
condition of the City at September 30, 2014,

3. Consiruction Commitments

The City has entered into various significant consiruction comimitments (hal are currently underway, As of September 30, 2014, ihey
are as follows:

Praject Expensed Remaining
Amount Ta Date Cost

Sam Houston 5 787264 $ 551682 % 235,587
Unwaasn Rond 1,057,089 660,394 350,695
Pharr Commercinl Park 1,000,000 940,432 59,568
Bike Path Stripping 200,000 46,101 153,899
Morth Side Park 08,150 654,668 53,482
Daine Civie Center 1,800,000 15,300 1,784,700
Transmaritime Subdivision 405,414 155,374 230,040
Dom Park 200,000 153,739 46,261
South Side Thanas 242,403 56,540 185,854
Fire Statlon Shelter I 200,000 68,300 1,731 500
lanes Box Shelter 1,800,000 97670 1,702,330
F'otal Covemumenial £ 10000325 5 3,406,400 £ (.503916
Water Treatment Plant 141,084,900 14,069,768 15,132
Waoter Transimission 11,685.590 366,113 11,119473
Port of entry modernization | 465, 144 300.856 1,164,288
Biidge Lane Improvenments 2,381,723 I11,532 2270191
Total Business-Type 5 20617357 § 15048271 % 14.569.086
Total 5 39617682 b lE.*ISJI.GB.D_ £ 21,163,002

-8 -



City of Pharr, Texas

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2014

IV, OTHER INFORMATION - {conlinued)
E. Commitments-{enntbineil)

4. Economic Development Commitments
The PERC, TIRZ, and the City have the fallowing ouistnding comminments as of September 30, 2014:

Program Aimount
Commitment To Pending Obligator Purpose Length of Time

Liversal Metal Products 5 15726 PEDRC Training Urilimited

City of Pharr viries  TIRZ Infrastruciure development 20 Yeunrs

BERG Distributing Comyy., ne.® n2ses TIRZ Infiastrueture development 20 Yeurs
Pappadeuns Seafood Kitclien virws®®  Oily ol Pl Comniercinl developnent G- 10 Years

HEB Grecery Comp,, LP varieg Y City of Pl Commercinl development 5 Yedrs

Point Blwak Sporing Goods 000 City of Phaw Shooting mnge development 3 Years

Coslon Wholkesale Cop 1500000 City al Pharr Commerinl developmeint 3 Years

Fatal 5 1,928,201
TlRelated puniy trmnsmetion, see Note IV, G for more information
AUy il reimborse 25% of sales s ceceived Tar & years pliss 100% ol property Inxes for 10 yenrs
ROy will relmburse e difference benween e preyous HEB store’s saled taves and property tises compareil to U helr new stote

F.  Land svailable for sale

During FY 2011-2012, the City and PEDC entered into an agreement to buy land for economic development purposes. As of
September 30, 2014, the City has purchased 1 1ol of $31,392.239 in land with $280,799 in demolilion cost. On February 2012, the
City Commission approved to contribute all land that has been purchased to the PEDC, the transfer of all land titles were completed as
of September 30, 2013, As of September 30, 2014, the cost plus improvemenis on land purchased for this purpose totaled
$31,673,038. Per GASE standards, land available for sale should be recorded at the lower of cost or net realizable value (NRY). The
City abtained appraisals for the land during as of September 30, 2013 which indicated that (he land was worth $6,370,697 less than (he
original purchase price. u losg of this amount was reported on the Ninancial statements as a special llem. The balance of land available

for development is recorded as Land Available for Sale in the PEDC Tund. Appraisal of land will be done every two years, which
began in the September 30, 2013 fiscal year.

The details of the land transactions are stated on the following 1able:

Hecarilml

e of Aggerainil Acrulrard At e lije ef{Sali) Itetimiting Aetunl Ll Asmblalie
el g e Yailie Priee LIAT RIS 3004 ey Selling Feles  Gabii Lisss) 3014
G0l Fidwand Absimei Title £ ARy ¥ 1Imon 5 e R £ 34 S oD S E % 3 I(l_i!l}lﬂﬂj
W30 Juy Polines 3,300,004 6 e T3 3360000 . 340 (00 z 130,000
M2 flwanl Abdime Tile AR | e ATA (AR 174 i) . . 4TA NN
Vi Falwennl Ahzimm Tk 254,000 (R 2345000 . 24 R E & ELTER (]
WILIG Edwaid Abstmier Tile LR LR ET RITET2 AT LA W37 37T =
B0 Valley Lamd Vitle 1, TNt 1AT908S [Rep L T1.37,635) . A 1L I =
w2002 Hidakis Cointy livipmion ELLTR 3 i WA . Lt . : A5
1WA PRIA 2,040,000 LR LR AARALD . 47825 460 . 40928 dedi
[T Worwinn {Dxmoceli oy s i | T (M TR0 PRt THi T " i, 1 i i 180,77
ER T ] |k, Bogneke & Ranerer L1LP - - - i 3§ A - = TR

% IG.H-I;MI 3 27.568.114 5 20997427 3 LOATRAET 3 13088314 51405196 5 198,169 % 20088014
0 His 10, 3T 097 Ve sevarrehed st Nepewhet 10, 2071 - s e

G, Related Party

In March 2012, a company owned by a commissioner’s family member entered inte a 380 agreement with the City, Under (he
agreement, the company will petition annexation of 154.88 acres of land it owns into the City. The company will donate 8.8 acres of
land to the City for development and will reimburse the City $362,363 for development costs ineurred by the City. The company will

be eligible Tor reimbursement of these costs through TIRZ i 1. Onee the land is developed and the City has been reiimbursed. it will
transfer the two developed lost 1o the company for its own use.
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City of Phary, Texas
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2014

H. New Aceonnting Principles

The GASB has issued Statement No. 66, “Technical Corrections-2012; an amendment of GASB No. 10 and No. 62." The
requirements of this Stalement are efTective for financial statement for periods beginning after December 15, 2012,

The GASB has issued Statement No. 68, "Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions; an amendment of GASE Statement Na,
27". This Statement replaces the requirements of Statement No. 27 ad No. 50 related to pension plans that are administered through
trusts or equivalents arrangements. The requirements of Statement No. 27 and No. 50 remain applicable for pensions that are not

administered as trusts or equivalent arrangements. The requirements of this Statement are effective for financial statements for fiscal
years begining after June 15, 2014.

The GASB has issued Statement No. 69, "Government Combinations and Disposals of Government Operations.” This Statement
establishes accounting and financial reporting standards for mergers, acquisitions, and wansfers of operatiohs (i.e., government
combinations). The Statement also provides guidance on how to determine the gain or loss on a disposal of government aperations,
This Statement applies to all state and local governmental entities. The requirements of this Statement should be applied prospectively
and are effective for government combinatians and disposals of government operutions ocewring in finuncial reporting periods
beginning after December 15, 2013, However, earlier application of the Statement is encouraged.

The GASB has issued Statement No. 70, "Accounting and Financial Reporting for Nonexchinge Financial Guarantees,” This
Statement establishes accounting and financial reporting standards for situations where a state or local government, as a guarantor,
agrees to indemnify & third-party obligation holder under specified conditions (i.e., nonexchange financial guarantees), The issuer of
the guaranteed obligation can be a legally separate enlity or individual, including a blended or discretely presented component unit.
Guidance is provided for situations where a state or local government extends or receives a nonexchange financial guarantee, The
requirements of this Statement are effective for financial statements for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2013,

1. Subsequent Events

For the purpose of reporting subsequent events, management has considered events occurring through February 5, 2015, the date the
report was available to be issued, and none have been noted.

=G0 -
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CITY OF PHARR, TEXAS
TEXAS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT SYSTEM
POST EMPLOYMENT PENSION PLAN
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS (unaudited)

Excess of Unfunded
Actuarial Assels AAL a5
Actuarial Acerued Over/ Percentage
Actuarial Value of Liability Funded (Unfunded) Covered of Covered
Valuation Plan Assets (AAL) Ratio AAL Payrall Payrall
Date (1) (h) {(a/b) (a-b) (c) ((b-a)c)
12/31/09 $28,465,143 $37,276,917 T6.4%  $(8.811.774)  $17.,729,336 49.7%
1231410 31,719,659 40,488,486 78.3% (8.768,827) 17,770,636 49,3%
1231/10% 41,686,353 46,768,782 29.1% (5,082.429) 17,770,636 28.6%
12317119 45,864,221 49,963,141 91.8% (4,100,920) 19,519,197 21.0%
1231712 % 49,962,459 53,717,387 93.0% (3,754.,928) 20,362,119 18.4%
127317139 54,346,139 61,820,357 87.9% (7,474,218) 21,980,889 14.0%

(1) Actuarial valuation performed under the original fund struciure
(2) Actuarial valuation performed under the new Amd structure
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RETIREE HEALTH INSURANCE BENEFIT PLAN

CITY OF PHARR, TEXAS

POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLAN

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS (unaudited)

Excess of Unfunded
Actuarial Assets AAL as
Actuarial Accrued Over/ Percentage
Actuarial Value of Lialility Funded (Unfunded) Covered af Covered
Valuation Plan Assels (AAL) Ratio AAL Payrall Payrall
Date {u) (5 (/b (a-b) () {(ben)/c)
1/1/08 3 - £6,701,179 0.0% $(6,701,179) $17,729.336 37.8%
171110 £ 54,098 844 0.0% $(4,608.844) 517,770,636 20.4%
1711 b - $4,698,844 0.0% 5(4,698,844) 519,519,197 24.1%
1/1/12 § 479,706 $4,0624,841 10.4% $(4,145,135) $20,362,119 20.4%
1/1/13 5 515,183 54,624,841 11.1% £(4,109,658) $21,980,889 18,7%
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CITY OF PHARR, TEXAS
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES TN FUND BALANCE
BUBGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
FOHME THE YEAR ENDED SEFTEMBER 30,2014

Acetunl Final

Budgeted Amounts Buidget Variunee
il Vinal Hakly Budget Husls
HREVEMNLUES
Taxes!
Proporiy 5 13066000 5 14156100 S 43350 % {152,360
Snles Q7,600 10,190,560 105917821 137301
Franchize 2,200,000 2,200,000 2,272,594 12,594
Otlier 150,000 150,000 188 597 18,397
Licennes and permits 685,000 o A0 T61 980 6480
Intergovernimental 470,040 S80,040 554,945 (25.0435)
Fees and charges
Sunitativm 2,560,000 2,620,600 2,642,314 12,319
Brush 1,100,000 1,100,000 1100804 &3
Oiher L634,720 1063220 1701124 {262 096)
Fines 1. 105,00 1235000 1 0835 584 HELETRH
Interest inemne 11000 JH1L000 316,138 ENEL:]
Chher F3 1290 K11.790 G26.990 115,204
Total revenins 34,250,750 000218 36 802 iy 1&1;71}[
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Gienernl goverpmenl 4,708 850 96060533 DAL TRY 133,148
Public safey 18,860,220 19,966 461 19,477,201 489,170
Highways and streets 4,307,900 4,183,860 4,296,700 87,100
Healhl and welltire 2,080,160 2,782,160 2,758,305 23,855
Culture mud recrention 1,696,924 5030428 4908356 122,072
Deht service
Principal 1,931,870 1.837.200 1,833,168 4,032
Interest 208 6RO 251 600 234,854 (1.194)
Total expenditures 40,774,604 43.914.704 42 736,461 1,178,243
Excess (deficiency) of revenues aver {under) expenditures {6.523.854) {7,874 494) i6233.313) 1,640,98 |
OTHER FINARCING SOURCES (LISES) .
Translers in 476844 4. TRL 678 L0846V | 2040600
Transfers (ouf) (1,339,020 i3,16d 494) (3.419,386) (254,802)
Issuance of delil 2,380,700 2 AR80.700 2,380,700 =
Total ofher financing sources and uses 5,810,254 JLﬁLaM 45,997 45,108
Met ehangs i fund halanee (713,600} {ART3,000) (1,287.321) 2,580,089
Fund Balunee - baginning 14,345,470 14,345,870 14,345 870 -
Prior period adjustment - = 653 39,633
Fund balance - ending 3 13632270 § 10472260 % 11097082 % z,nzs,jm
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CITY OF PHARR, TEXAS

PHARIR ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORFORATION, INC.
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOIR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

REVENLIES
Taxey:
Snles
Oiher
Interest Ingome
Totnl revenues
EXAPENDITURES
Current:
. Economie development
Liebit service:
Prineipal
Intarest
Taotul expendifures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in
Tronsfers (out)
Gain an land availnble for sale valuation
Tutul other finahcing sources and uses

Hei change in I'und-hnlhmu
Fund balance - beginning

Fund balanee - ending

Actual Finnl
Budgeted Amonnis Budget Yarlanee

Ovigial Final Basis _ _ Bulget Busls
5 355500 % 3300360 % 1639260 % 269,900
30,000 30,00 191.099 161,099
25,010 25,010 13,339 (11.671%
3,370, 3,424,370 3.843 698 419 528
1.363,920 2,195,380 2,101,945 93935
H04,300 540300 341,567 231733
453,150 43,000 201,814 {166,724)
2,721,370 2,840,270 _ 2,655,126 184 044
649,440 584,100 1.188372 £04.272
B 4,500,000 4,397,669 (102331
(644 5401) {3,312.600) (3,311,554) 1044
- 200,000 198.160 (1.831)
(548 540 1 387 400 1,284,284 (103,178)
- 1,971,500 2,472,656 501,158

20,621,614 20,621,614 20,621,614 -
1 :m,szt,m 5 E&m,lld 3 23.094.270 § 1,156




COMBINING AND INDIVIDUAL FUND INFORMATION AND OTHER
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION



Non-Major Governmental Funds
Combining Financial Statements

Special Revenue Funds are vsed to account for specific revenues that are lepally restricted to
expenditure for particular purposes.

Asser Sharing — This fund accounts for forfeitures awarded to the City by the
courts and drug enforcement expenditures.

Comununity Development - This fund accounts for revenue received from the

Community Development Block Grant and the expenditures allowed by grant
terms.

Hotel-Motef — This fund accounts for revenue from a seven percent tax levied
upon the cost of City hotel and metel rooms with a daily rate aver $2. According
to state eivil statufes, this tax revenue can be used to promote tourism, maintain
and repair convention facilities, promote the arts and humanities, or any other
purpose directly related to these activities.

Parkiand Dedication — This fund accounts for contributions developers are
required to make when creating subdivisions for park improvemenis or
development.

Paving & Drainage — This fund accounts for restricted funds that were billed and

collected from every utility account to supplement the cost of street
improvements.

Grants — This fund accounts for general grant revenues awarded to the City.

PFC No.I <This fund accounts for the funding of purchase of land for economic
development.,

TIRZ No. I-This fund accounts for the tax increment revenue used to facilitate
development in the Pharr industrial area.

Capital Projects Funds are used to account for major capital acquisition and construction
activities so as to not distort ongoing operating activities of other funds.
General Capital Projects: is used 1o account for projects planned as part of the

City’s general capital improvement program,

Debt Service Funds are used to account for the accumulation of resources and payment of
general long-term debt of the City.

Debt Service — This fund accounts for the acoumulation of resources for and the
payment of General and Certificates of Obligation.
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CITY OF PHARR, TEXAS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SEFTEMBER 30, 2014

Specinl Hevenue Funds
Assel Community Parldand Paving &
Sharing Development  Hotel/Matel  Dedication Drainape

ASSET | T

Cash 5 RIRA02 % 170,289 % 25581 % 12305 % 413,182
Receivables (net of allowance for

uncollectible):

Property tnxes c . -
Moles . 55172 148.688 - -
Accounts - . = - 137,659
Other - - 158,654 - -
e frony other funds . 55 : =
Resiricled assels:
Intergovernmenial receivable - 298,909 . = 5
Total assets b BIB 402 § 524,425 % 43!!!123 b3 T%AI}S' §  550.841°
LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES
AND FLUND BALANCE
Liabilities:
Accounts payable £ 54,806 § 89471 5§ 81,704 5 - 5 n.09]
Due 1o other funds - 347884 19,587 - £
Unearned revenue . - 5,302 - =
Total linbilities 54,806 437,355 106,593 . 39.99]
Delerved Inflows of Resources;
Deferred property tax - - - - =
Deferred accounts - . - - 137,659
Deferred notes . 55172 - - -
Total deferred inflows - 55,172 - - 137.659
Fund balances:
Reslricied:
General Government - - -
Debi service : - .
Street paving and drainage - = - - 373.1m
Tourism . - 326,330 B -
Public safety 763,596 - - .
Parkland - - 12,305
Communily developmen - 31,898 . . a
Assigned:
Capital outlay - E = g =
Total fund balances 763,596 11,8938 326,130 12,303 373,194
Total lighilities and fund balances £ Bl §,402 S 524,425 % 432?23 § 12,305 &% ﬁﬁﬂé-ﬂ

-Bh-



Capital Projects Drebt Service Totul

Fund Fundl MNommajor
Caplial Debit Governmental
Giranis PFCH | TIRZ Total Projecis Service Fundsg
$ 45845 & 49978 % 119880 3§ 1,655,462 5 3507691 § 157,631 5 10,320,784
= - - : 197,760 197,760
= - - 203,860 = - 203,860
= - - 137,059 . - 137,659
% = - 258,654 - - 258,654
= : = 55 - - 55
523,871 - - 822,780 368,392 - 1,191,172
5 569716 % AQIWB § | I‘iiﬂﬂﬁ P .'i-!'[iﬁd?ﬂ 5 E,ETGEDKJ 5 355i391 5 IE.JOQIN-I
$ 40681 § - 3 - § 312,653 % 526,992 % - $ 839,645
523,033 - - 190,506 - 890,500
¥ ’ $ 5,302 - - 5.302
569.716 . B 1,208,461 526,002 - 1,735,453
P = = - 197,760 197,764
- 137,659 . - 137,659
= - - 55,172 3 . 33,172
=, = - 192,831 = 197,760 390,591
. 49978 1149.R&0 169,858 - - 169 R58
- = - - - 157,631 157,63
- - . 173,191 - - 373,191
. - - 320,330 - - 316,330
£ - - 763,596 - - 763,596
. - 12,305 - - 12,305
- - - 31,8938 - - 31,898
. . - = 8,349,091 . 8,349,091
- 49,978 119,880 1677178 8,349,091 157,031 10,183,900
b 569,”:6: b 49978 5 | l9‘.830= - 3.073!470 £ BIE?G!DM b 355391 b I2g309!941

£7:



CITY OF PHARR, TEXAS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

Specinl Revenue Funds

Assel Community Parkland Paving &
Sharing  _Developmeni Hotel/Motel Dedication Drainag
REVENLES =
Taxes:

Property 8 - 5 - % < 8

Other - - 979,798 -
Intergovernmental 625,358 1,874,134 2 - -
Faes and charges;

Other . - 34,660 13,000 832,222
interest income 16,253 633 1,074 624 16,181
Other 15,973 112 446 - -

F'iolal revenues 657,584 5
: i !37 !3':’9 IIDISI‘??R 1550‘524 IHEIFIDII
EXPENDITURES
Current:

General povernment . 522,647 1,673,680 - s

Public safety 481,358 6,000 B 376.641

Highways and sireels - 246,338 - - -

Culture and recreation - 78.000 10,000 -

Economic development - - - - -
Debt service:

Principal - 294,000 - . 1,032,171

Interest - 130,494 - - 40,588

Total expenditures 481,358 1,377,479 1.GR3.680 - 1,449 400
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures 176,226 598,400 (667,702) 15,624 (600,997)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in . 18,534 752,445 - 693,000
Transfers (out) - (616,458) - (3,200) -
Total other Ninancing sources
and uses - (597,924) 752,445 {5,200) 493,000
Met change in fund balances 176,226 476 84,743 10,424 92.003
Fund balance - beginning 387.370 31,422 241,587 1,881 281,188
Fund balance - endin 2 763,359 ] h
B 6 3 31,898 % 326!330 b 12‘]‘.'15 b4 373“91
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Capital Projects Debt Service Total

Fund Fund Nonmajor
Capital Debt Governmental
Grants PFC#1 TIRZ Total Projects Service Funds
- $ . $ = = $ 5 5 1.754.858 % 1.754,858
- - - 979,798 - - 979,798
1,064,624 - 7,783 3.571.899 340,676 - 3,912,575
- - - 881,882 - - 881,882
- 15 1,137 35,917 - 35,679 71,596
- - - 17,531 - - 17,531
1,064,624 15 8,920 5,487,027 340,676 1,790,537 7.618,240
- 36 - 2,196,363 524,284 4,700 2,725,347
1,010,967 - - 1,874,966 87,093 - 1,962,059
53,657 - - 299,995 415,680 - 715,675
- < - 88,000 1,349,881 . 1,437,881
- = - - 672,807 - 672,807
- 2,470,119 - 3,796,290 - 1,840,000 5,636,290
- 427,314 - 598,396 - 801,434 1,399,830
1,064,624 2,897,469 - 8.854,010 3,049.745 2,646,134 14,549,889
- (2,897,454) 3,920 (3,366,983) (2,709,069) (855,597) (6,931,649)
- 2,897,433 92,836 4,454,248 3,616,458 1,209,331 9,280,037
- - - (621,658) (4.394,963) (233,250) (5,249.871)
- 2,897,433 92,836 3,832,590 (778,505) 976,081 4,030,166
- (21) 101,756 465,607 (3.487,574) 120,484 (2,901,483)
- 49,999 18,124 1,211,571 11,836,665 37.147 13,085,383
- b 49978 § 119,880 1,677,178  § 8,349,091 § 157,631 § 10,183,900

-69-



F | Pharr

(Page intentionally left blank)



Governmental Funds
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance -
Budget and Actual

General Fund (detailed): is used 1o account for all financial resources except those required 1o be
reporied in another fund.

Special Revenue Funds are used to secount for specific revenues that are legally restricted to
expendilure for particular purposes.

Asset Sharing — This fund accounts for forfeitures awarded to the City by the
courls and drug enforcement expendilures.

Cammuaity Development — This fund accounts Tor revenue received from the

Community Developmeni Block Grant and the expenditures allowed by grant
terms,

Haotel-Motel - This fund accounts for revenue from a seven percent tax levied
upon the cost of City hotel and motel rooms with a daily rate over $2. According
10 state civil statutes, this tax revenue can be used (o promote tourism, maintain

and repair convention facilities, promote the arts and humanities, or any other
purpose direcily related to these activities,

Parklund Dedication — This fund accounts for conributions developers are

required to make when creating subdivisions for park improvements or
development.

Paving & Drainage — This fund accounts for restricted funds that were billed and

collected from every utility account to supplement the cost of street
Improvements,

Granis — This fund accounts for general grant revenues awarded 1o the City.,

PFC No. I —This fund accounts for the funding of purchase of land for economic
development.

TIRZ No, i-This fund accoums for the tax increment revenue used lo facilitate
development in the Pharr industrial area.

Capiinl Projects Funds are used to account for major capital acquisition and construction
activities so as lo not distort ongoing operating activities of other funds.

General Capital Projects: is used 1o account for projects planned as part of the
City"s general capital improvement program,

Debt Service Funds are used to account for the accumulation of resources and payment of
general long-term debt of the City,

Debt Service - This fund accounts for the accumulation of resources for and the
payment of General and Certificates of Obligation



REVENUES
Tuxes:
Property
Clurrem
Delinguent
Penalty & interest
Total property taxcy

Siles

Irunghise
Felephomd
Llectric
Cabile
Cias
Totnl Tranchise laxes

Oilher
Tonl taxes

Licenses and permils
Building
Vioentional
{her
Fotal licenses & permiis

Intergovernmental
Local school disiricts
County
Orther
Tatal Intergovernmental

Fees wid charpes:
Sanilation
Brush
Oilier
Totul fees & charges

Fines
ot
Ollier
Tatul fines

Interest Income

Oiher
Tutal revenues

CITY OF PHARR, TEXAS
GENERAL FUND
SCHEBULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE ¥YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

Actunl Final
Butlgeted Amounts Budget Yariance
Original Fiaal Busis Budget Basis
5 12,566,100 % 13,066,100 % 13017010 % (418,990
830,000 570,000 368,398 (1.602)
530,000 350,000 148,032 {111,968)
13,966,100 14,186,100 14,033 540 {1532,560)
4.947.600 100,190,560 10,917,821 737,261
270,004 270,000 232374 (37,626)
1,550,000 1,350,000 1,634,577 K4.577
290,000 290,000 296,601 6,006
i), 000 0000 109,437 19,437
2,200, 000 2,110,000 227291 72,004
150,000 | .‘-(J,MI] 148, 397 38,597
20,261,700 26,726,660 27.412.952 686,292
450,000 450,000 484,833 34,833
130,000 130,000 183,174 23,179
105,000 112,500 123,968 I 1,468
6E5,000 692,500 Tal 980 H9 480
260,540 370,540 357.528 (13,0123
20,000 201,000 = (20,0007
189,500 184,500 197417 1917
470,040 580,040 354,045 {25,005)
3,560,000 2.620,000 2,642,339 22,334
1,100,000 1,100,000 1,100,893 803
1,624,720 1.963.220 1,701,124 (262.096)
5.284,720 3,683,220 5444356 (238.48064)
B00.000 40,000 783,219 {116,0%1)
205,000 135,000 101,670 (33,3309
I, 105000 1,235,000 |.0B5.589 (1494113
3l o000 311,000 316,136 3134
131,290 811,780 926,990 115,200
5 aﬂﬁuivﬁu s 36040210 3 36,5'!12.943_ 5 -IGIIT:IB

7]



EXPENDRITURES
Current:
Gieneral government
CUy i ni e
Finance
IT
Plunming
Engincering
Mon-deparimental
Total genernl government

Public safely
Police
Courl
Fire
Tatal public safety

Highways and sireets

Flealth and wellne
Sanitation
Frush
Animal contral
Fotal health and welfare

Culture und recrention

Library

PAL

Parks

Total culture nnd recreation
Deb service:

Pringipa)
Interest

Total expenditures
LExeess (deliciency) of revenues
over (wider) expenditures

CITY OF PHARR, TEXAS
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUBGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAT* BUDGETARY BASIS) - Continued
FORTHE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

I, 105,000 1,104,280 1.035,509 68,771
949,740 1,039,740 1,010,983 28,757
1,192,510 1443, 865 |.qno.3rm 43,505
1062120 1.064.570 1054411 10,158
AR5, 770 359,770 321,394 38,376
4,073,710 LOARTID 4,385,130 163 580
R.76R.8350 4 660,935 D207, 787 453,148
11,872,200 12,927,841 12750031 168, HI0
A6, 520 312,520 ART. 284 25,236
6,521,500 6,526,100 6,230,976 295,124
18,860,220 19,966,461 19477291 489,170
4,507,900 4,383,860 4,296,700 27,160
1,788,000 1 858,000 1,853,332 4,668
388,000 G10,000 608,137 1,863
314,160 314,160 296,836 17.324
2,690,160 2782160 2,758,305 23,855
1,148,010 1,148,010 LO6G, 257 87,753
432,524 B34,728 R50,745 3.983
2,116,390 3,027,690 2,997,354 30,336
1.0%96.924 5030428 4. B8 356 122,072
1,951,870 1,637,200 1,833,168 4,032
298,680 153,660 254,854 (1,194}
2,250,550 2,000,860 2,088,022 2,838
40,774,604 43,914,704 42.736.461 1.178,24
(6,523,854) (1.874,494) (6,233,511} 1,640,981




OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Translers in

Bridpe 4,160,600 4,160,600 3,360,600 1.200,000
Uity 404,900 404.900 404,900 .
PEDC 152,300 152,300 152,30
Parkland 5,200 5.200 3.200
PAL 15,574 61,678 61,678 -
Tonal teansfers in 4,768,571 1. 784,678 5.984.678 1200000
Transfgrs (out)
Galk (318.200) {423, 2001 {GR2 AR2) (259,682)
Community Development - - (18,334) (18.534)
Hotel/Maotel {48.220) (7512200 {752,4435) (1,225)
Paving & Driinnge - (695,000) {(693,000) 2,000
H[¥4 - {93,000} {92.836) 1654
AL - (220.474) {220,474) .
PERC - : {2.705) {2,705)
PFC ) (972,600) (972,6001) (947,510) 25,060
Total transfers (out) 11,339.020) {3, 164.494) (3.419.386) (254,892)
Bomlloan proceeds 2. 380,700 2,380,700 2,380,700
Total 2,380,700 2,380,700 2,380,700 -
Total other finaneing sources
and uses 3,814,254 4,000,884 4,945 997 945, 108
Mel change it [und bialance (713,604 (3.873.610) (1,287,521} 2,586,089
Fund halance - beginning 14,345 870 14,345,870 14,345,870 =
Prior period adjustment - < 30633 39033
Fund balance - ending § 13,632.270  § 10472260 § 13,097,982 § 2,625,722



CITY OF PHARR, TEXAS
ASSET SHARING FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
FORTHE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

Actual Final
Budpeted Amounis Budget Yarinnce
Original Final Basix Budget Basis
REVENUES
Intergovernmental 5 150,000 3§ 750,000 % 625,358 % (124,642)
Inlerest income 10,000 10,000 16,253 6,253
Other = - 15,973 15,973
Total revenues | ﬁﬂlﬂﬂﬂ 760,000 37,584 s I 02!il 15!
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Public safoty 213,000 508,000 481,358 26,642
Total expenditures 212,000 508.000 481,358 26,642
Excess (deficiency) of revemes
over (under) expenditires (53,000} 252,000 176,226 (75,774)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers oul = - -
Tota] other finuncing sources
and uses - = - -
Met chunge in fund balance (53,000) 252,000 176,226 {75.774)
Fund balance - beginning 587,370 587,370 587,370 .
Fund balance - ending 5 534,370 %

: 3391370 § 763,59 & l?S.??'lt



CITY OF FHARR, TEXAS

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
FORTHE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

REVENUES
Intergovernmental
Interest ineome
Other
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES

Current:

Genernl government

Public Safety

Highways and sireets

Culture and recreation
Debt service:

Principal

Interest

Total expendiiures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over {under) expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers in
Transfers {out)

Total other financing sources

and uses
Net change in fund balance

Fund balance - beginning

Fund halance - ending

L3

Actual Final
Budgeted Amounts Budgei Varianee
Original Final Basis Budgel Basis
2229180 % 2,229180 & 1,874,134 § (355,046)
- . 633 633
- - 1,112 112
24,229,180 2,229,180 1,875,879 (353,301 )
595,380 595,380 322,647 73133
51,000 51,000 6,000 45,000
618,840 618,840 246,338 372,502
339,460 303,460 78,000 225460
294,000 294,000 294,000 -
130,500 130,500 130,494 6
2,230,180 1,993,180 1,277,479 715,701
: 236,000 598,400 362,400
: 18,534 (18,534)
(236,000) (616,458) (380.,458)
- (236,000) (597,924) (398,992)
3 - 476 (36,592)
31.422 31422 31,422
31422 § 31422 % i1 Iﬂ?‘.ﬁ 5 !36i592 [

-75-



CITY OF PHARR, TEXAS
HOTEL/MOTEL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

Aciunl Final
Budgeted Amounts Budget Varinnee
Original Final Basls Budget Basis
REVENUES

Taxes:

Other 3 782,740 % 982,740 § 979,798 § (2,942)
Fees and charges:

Other - - 34,660 3660
Interest income S00 300 1,074 574
Other - - 446 446

Fotal revenues 783,240 983,240 1,015,973 32,738
——
EXPENIMTURES

Current:

General povernment 821,460 1719460 1,673,680 45,780

Culture and recreation 1 0,000 10,000 10,000 -

Total expenditures 831,460 1,729,460 1,683,680 45,780

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

aver (under) expendilures (48.220) (746,220) (667,702) 78.518
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (LSES)
Transfers in 48,220 751,220 752,445 1,225

Total other financing sources
and uses 48,220 751,220 752,445 1,325

Net change in fund balance - 5,000 84,743 79,743

Fund balance - beginning 241,587 241,587 241,587 .

Fund balance - ending b 24 ISB'? b z-mlss'? $ 326,330 § 79,743




FORTHE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

REVENUES
Fees and charges:
Other
Interest (ncome
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:
Culture and recreation
Total expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Fransfers (out)
Total other financing sources
and uses
Net change in fund balanee
Fund balance - beginning

FFund balance - ending

L

CITY OF PHARR, TEXAS

PARKLAND DEDICATION FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

Aciual Final
Budgeted Amounts Budgel Varianee
Original Final Basis Budget Basis
5000 8 5000 & 15000 % 10,000
200 200 624 424
5,200 5.200 1 55624 I ﬂ!-ﬂld
3,200 5,200 15,624 10,424
(5,200) {(5,200) (5,200) -
{5,200) {5,200) (5,200) .
- - 10,424 10,424
1,881 1,881 1,881 .
1,881 & 1,881 § 12,305 % 10,424
— e e = =



CITY OF PHARR, TEXAS
PAVING & DRAINAGE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

Aciual Final
Budgeted Amounis Budget Variance
Original Final Basis Budgel Basis
REVENUES
Fees and charges:
Other b Bl6,000 % 16,000 % 832222 % 16,222
Interest income 4,000 4,000 16,181 12,181
Total revenues 820,000 820,000 348,403 28403
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Highways and sirevis 445430 IB2.070 376,641 6,329
Debt service:
Pringipal 329220 1,033,680 1,032 171 1,500
Interest . 45,350 45,350 40,584 4,762
Total expenditures 820,000 1,462,000 1,449,400 12,600
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
aver (under) expenditures - (642,000) {6010,997) 41,003
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in - 693,000 693,000
Total other finuncing sources
-and uses - 693,000 693,000 -
Net change in fund balance = 31,000 92,003 41,003
Fund halance - beginning 281,188 281,188 281,188 -
Fund balarice - ending b3 ZEIIIH $ 332,188 § STJ!I'}I $ 41,003



CITY OF PHARR, TEXAS
GRANTS FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

Actual Final
Budgeted Amounts Budget Yarlance
Original Final Busis Budget Basis
REVENUES
Intergovernmental £ 978,910 % 8910 3 | 064,624 85,714
Total revenues *HBE‘J 1] 978!91 0 I !054!624 3 85,714
EXPENDITURES
Current: .
Public salety Q02,510 902,510 1,010,967 (108,457)
Highways and siveets 20,000 20,000 53,657 (33.657)
Cultire and recreation 56,400 56,400 - 56,400
Total expenditures 978,910 978,210 1,064,624 (85.714)
Excess (deficiency) of revenucs
over (under) expenditures . . -
OTHER FINANCING S0URCES (USES)
Transfers in = . < -
Total other finanging sources
and uses - = - =
Net change in fund balance - - - -
Fund balanee - beginning - : -
Fund balance - ending $ N - & - 3 -
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CITY OF PHARR, TEXAS
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

Actunl Final
Budgeted Amounts Budget Variance
Original Final Basiy Budgei Basis
REVENUES
Intergovernmental 3 5,620,140 § 5,620,140 5 340676 % (5.279.464)
Total revenues 5,620,140 5,620,140 340,6E !5.219.464;
EXPENDITURES
Clurrent:
Cieneral government 8,662,330 8,062,330 524 284 8.138,046
Public safety 170,000 170,000 87,003 82,907
Highways and streets 1, 106,000 1100000 415,680 684 320
Culture and recreation 1,155,140 1,155,140 1,349,881 (194,741
Economic development 8,372,420 3,872,420 672,807 3,199613
Totul expenditures 19,459,800 14,959,390 3,049,745 11,910,145
Exoess (deficiency) of revenucs
over (under) expenditures {13,839.750) {9,339,750) (2,709,069) 6,630,681
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers In 3,000,000 3,236,000 1616458 380,458
'ransfers out . (4,500,000) (4,394,963) 105,037
Total other linancing sources
and uses 3,000,000 (1,264,000) (778,505) 485,445
Mel change in fund balance {10,839,750) (10,603,750) (3,487,574) 7,116,176
Fund balance - beginning - 11,836,665 11,836,665 -
Fund balance - ending 8 !IUIBJ'?.‘H{JI b3 1,2329015 & EIJ»!IDIDN ¥ 7! I lﬁil?ﬁ

~B0-



CITY OF PHARR, TEXAS
DEBT SERVICE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

Actunl Final
Budpeted Amounts Budget Varlance
Original Final Basis Budget Basis
REYERNUES
Taxes:
Property L 1L790.400 5 1,790,400 3 I,754.858 % {35,542)
[nterest income 30,000 30,000 35,679 5,679
Total revenues 1,820,400 | .820!400 I !?00!537 529!8633
EXPENDITURES
Current;
Gieneral goverinment 6,000 6,000 4,700 1,300
Debt service:
Principal 1,535,000 1.840.000 1,840,600 -
linterest 543,390 821,450 801.434 20,016
Total expenditures 2,084,390 2,667,450 2,646,134 21316
Excess (dehiciency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (263,990) (847,050} (855,597) {8,547)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (UISES)
Transfers in 497,240 [.210,300 1,209331 (969.00)
Transfers (out) (233,250) (233.250) (233 250) .
Total other financing sources
and uses 263,990 977,050 976,081 (969)
Met change in fund balance - 130,000 120,484 (9.516)
Fund balance - beginning - 37,147 37,147 -
Fund balance - ending 5 - $ 167,147 % 157,631 & !9,5 16)

81-
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Proprietary Funds
Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position— Budget
and Actual

Utility Fund: is used to account for the City’s water and sewer/wastewater system
operations.

Bridge Fund: is used to account for the City’s international bridge operations. The
bridge enables traffic to flow 1o and from Mexico,

Golf Course Fund: is to account for the City owned Tierra Del Sol Golf Course
operations,

City Garage Fund - This fund is vsed to account for fleet maintenance and
maintaing an inventory of parts for the City-owned vehieles.



SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION

CITY OF PHARR, TEXAS
UTILITY FUND

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

OPERATING REVENUES

Charges for sales and services:
Water sales
Sewer service
Tap fecs
Other
Tolal operaling revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES

Personne| services
Supplies and Materials
Contractual Services
Depreciation

Total aperating expensoes

Operating income (| oss)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

NON OPERATING REVENUES/{EXPENSES):

Investment eamings
Interest expense
Amortization expense
Intergovernmental
Other
Total nonoperating revenues/
(expenses)
Ineome belore contributions
and transfers

Transfers (out)
Capital contribuiions
Changes in net position

Total net position - beginning
Prior period adjustment

Total net position - ending

Actunl Final
Budgeted Amounts Budget Variance
Original Final Basis Budget Basis
5 7,400,000 % 7400000 § 7.591.266 % 191,266
5,500,000 5,500,000 5,014,880 114,880
300,000 300,000 345,295 45,205
99,000 99,000 118,734 19,734
13,299,000 ﬂg& 13,670,175 371,175
7
3,063,880 3,192,430 1,154,671 37,759
2,378,680 2,168,020 1,290,599 877421
23,636,350 23,865,490 3416986 20,448,504
= : 4,046,909 (4,046,909
25,078,910 20,225 940 11,909,165 17,316,775
(15.779.910) (15,926.940) 1,761,010 17,687,950
_ 4 ln,ﬁq'.‘i 555,600 574,853 19,2513
(1.685,060) {1,685.960) (1,678,924} 7,036
- - {30,977y (30,977)
3,681,690 3,681,690 166,333 (3,315,357)
8,778,480 8,778,480 54,738 (8,723,742)
11,184,810 11,329,810 (713.977) (12,043,787)
{(4.595,100) (4,597.130) 1,047,033 5,644,163
(404,900) {404,900) (404,900) .
= . 552,929 552,929
(5.000,000) (5,002,030) 1,195,062 6,197,092
85,021,075 85,021,075 85,021,075 -
- - 10,292 10,292
5 80,021,075 & 80.019.045 § 86,226,429 6,207,384
- —_— _——— ES—

-Ad=



SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION

CITY OF PHARR, TEXAS
BRIDGE FUND

BUDGET AND ACTUAL {(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

OPERATING REVEMNUES

Charges lor sales and services;
Toll fees
Other
Totdl pperiting revenucs

OPERATING EXPENSES
Personnel services
Supplies and Materials
Caontractun] Services
Depreciation
Total pperating expenses

Operating income {loss)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMEER 30, 2014

NON OPERATING REVENUES/KEXPENSES):

[nvestment earmings
Interest expense
Amortizalion expense
Inergovernmental
Other
Total nonoperating revenues/
{expenses)
Income before contribulions
and transfers

Transfers in
Tranafers (out)
Changes in net position

Totul net position - beginning
Prior period adjustment

Total net position - ending

-84-

Actual Final
Budgeted Amounts Budget Varjance
Original Final Basis Budget Basis
10,992,500 % 12,392,500 12,349,273 (43,227)
205,000 205,000 222 500 17,500
11,197,500 lEi.’)QT,SDO l‘IIS?i.l 73 (25.32?!
870,900 573,550 849,929 25,921
125,350 157,100 137,396 19,704
37,863,070 14,196,370 2,527,795 11,668,575
- - 179,483 (879,483)
38,859 320 15,229,320 4,394,603 10,834,717
(27,661,820) (2,631.820) 8,177,570 10,809,390
190,000 190,000 216416 26,416
(235,830) (235,830) (231,854) 3,976
- - (195.998) (195,998)
4,000,960 4,090,960 - {4,090,960)
27,079,040 - 450 450
31,124,170 4.045,130 (210.986]) (4,256,116)
3,462,350 1,413,310 7.966,584 6,553,274
233,250 233,250 233250 -
{7,160.600) (7,160,600) (8.360,600) (1.200,000)
(3.465,000) (5.514,040) (160,766) 5,353,274
24,321,530 24,321,530 24,321,530 =
2 . 4,803 4,803
20,856,530 % 18807490 § 24,165,567 § 5,358,077
——meeeden —_——eee—— b e A



CITY OF PHARR, TEXAS
GOLF FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
FOR'THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

. Actual Final
Budgeted Amounts Budget Variance
Original Final Bagis Budgel Basis
OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for sales and services:
Golf services £ 438,000 § 838000 % 639,967 8§ (178,033)
Other 190,750 190,750 126455 (64,295)
Total operating revenues 1,028,750 1,028.750 786,422 (242,328)
OPERATING EXPENSES
Personnel services 715,330 694,543 656,857 41,686
Supplies and Materials 346,130 343,630 183,714 159916
Cantractusl Services 286,720 342,620 228,394 114,224
Depreciation - - 315,366 (315.366)
Total operating exponses 1,248,180 1,384,793 1,384,333 460
Operating income (1oss) (319.430) (356,043) (597.211) (241,86R)
NON OPERATING REVENUES/{EXPENSES):
Investment earnings 5,890 5,890 775 (5,115)
Interest expense {4,660} {4,660) (10,007) (5,347)
Gain on sale of assel - . 11,000 11,000
Other - - 301 201
Tatal nonoperating revenucs/(expenses) 1,230 1,230 2,569 1,339
Income before contributions and transfers (318,200) (354,813) {395,342) (240,529)
Transfers in 318.200 423,200 682 882 259,682
Changes in net position - 68,387 87,540 19,153
Total net position - beginning 4,075,855 4,075,855 4,075,855 S
Prior period adjustment - - 20,618 20,618
Total nel position - ending 5 4,075,855 3§ 4,144,242  § 4,184,013 § 39,771
—_— —_———— _—le e
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CITY OF PHARR, TEXAS

GARAGE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for sales and services!
Other §
Tolal operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES
Personnel services
Supplies and Materials
Contractual Services
Depreciation
Total operating expenses

Operating, income (loss)
NON OPERATING REVENUESAEXPENSES):
Interest expense
Total nonoperating revenues/{expenses)

Income hefore contributions and transfers

Transfers (out)
Changes in net position

Total net position - beginning
Prior period adjustment

Total net position - ending b

-86-

Actaal Final

Budgeted Amounts Budget Variance
Original Final Basis Budget Basis
684,860 3% 752,640 % 782,237 % 29,592
ofid, 360 752,640 782,232 29,592
197,350 197350 194,515 2,835
63,740 63,740 12,870 50,870
414,000 181,780 478,203 2877
- - 34,703 (34,703)
675.090 742,870 720,993 11,877
9,770 2.770 61,239 51,469
(9,770} (5,400) (596) (4,804)
(2,770} (5,400) (596) 4,804
- 4,370 60,643 56,273
- 4370 60,643 56,273

534,336 534,336 534,336 -
- - 9.517 9,517
534,336 § 538,706 % 604,496 5 63,790




Combining Financial Statements

INTERNAL SERVICE FUND

Internal Service Funds are used to account for the financing of goods or services provided by
one department to other departments within the City on a cost-reimbursement basis.

City Garage Fund — This fund is used to account for fleet maintenance and
maintains an inventary of parts for the City-owned vehicles.



CITY OF PHARI, TEXAS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

SEPTEMBER 30, 2014
City Garnge
ASSETS
Curyenl nssety:
Cash ! 117,798
fhventories 23,480
Restricted nssets:
Cash with Fiscal Agent |.866
Total current usseis 143,144
Noncurrent nssets:
Capitil assets (nel of sceunulated:
depreciation):
Buildings 422 883
lmprovements other than buildings 16,097
Machinery and equipment 71,957
l'otal capital ussels, net of
seeumulnted depreciation 540,937
I'ntal noncurrent assets 540,937
Total assels 6R4,08 |
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities;
Accounts payable 7,343
Due to other funds 9,683
Total current liabilities 17,026

Current liabilities payvable from
restricted assels:

Matured ncerued compensation 3,583

Matured capitul lease

7,263
Tolal current liabilitics payable
from restricted assels 10,846
MNoncurrent liabilities:
Accrued compensation 10,748
Capital lease payablo 40,965
Total noncurrent linbilities 51,713
Total liabilities 79,585
NET POSITION
Met position.
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 494,575
Linrestricted 109,921
Tatul net position b 604,496
; e ——— L )
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CITY OF PHARR, TEXAS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

City Gnrage
Operating revenues:
Charges lor siles and services:
Other 5 782,232
Total operating revenues 782,232
Operating expenses:
Personnel services 194,513
Supplies and Materials 12,870
Contractual Services 478,903
Depreciation 34,705
Towal operating expenses 720,993
Opemting income {losg) 61,239
Nonoperaling reventes (expenses):
Interest expense (596)
Total noneperating revenues (expenses) (596)
lncome before contributions and wansfers 60,643
Translers out 3
Changes in nel position 60,643
Total net pasition- beginning 534,336
Prior period adjustiment 9.517
Total net position - ending £ 604,496



CITY OF PHARR, TEXAS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers
Payments to suppliers
Payments to employees
Payments Tor contractual services
Net cash flow provided by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Advince (tom other funds

Met cash provided (used) by noncapital
and related financing nctivities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition and construction of capital asseis
Principal paid on long=term deb
Interest paid on long-lerm debt
Other

Net cash provided (used) by capital
and refated financing activilies

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities

Mel increase/(decrease) in cash
Cash beginning of fiscal year

Cash end of fiscal year

Reconciliation of operating income to net
cash provided (used) by operating activities:

Operating income (loss)

Adjustments 1o reconeile operating income 1o
net eash provided (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation
(In¢rease) in Inventories
Increase in Accounts Payable
(Pecrense) in Averued Compensation
Total adjustiments

Net eash provided by operating activities

-g9-

City Gurage

782,232
(11,465)
(196,720)
(487,343)

86,704

1,573

1,573

(51,134)
48,228

(596)
9518

6,016

94,293

25,371

119,664

61,239

34,705
405
(8,440)
(2,203)
25,465

86,704
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STATISTICAL SECTION

This pary of the City of Phares comprehensive:-annunl finnneiol report prezents detailed informition a5 a context for
undersianding what the information in ihe financial stalements, note diaclosures, and required supplemeninry
formution says about the City of Phan's overall Rnancial healih,

Page

Finaneinl Trends

Phese schedules contain fremd information to help the eader understand how (he
{ity's Ainanscial perlommnce and well-being have changed over tine. 0=

Revenue Capacity

These schedules contain liformation (o help the reader assess (lie Cily's most
significnt local revinue source, the propeny i, 0=

Debi Capacity
These schedules present information ta lielp the readér assess the afford-abitity of the

City's curreni levels of outstanding debi and the City's ability to issue additionn] debr
in the liwre, = 100-

Demographie and Economic Informution

These schedules offer demogruphic wnd economie indientors to help the render
understand the covironment within which the City's financial activities tnke place =105~

Operating Informution
These schedules conlain service and infrastruciure data i help the reader understand

how the information In the City's financial report relates to the services the City
provides and the aclivities it performs. -107-
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City of Pharr, Texns
Principal Property Taxpayers
Fiseal Year End 2014 amd 2004

{(amounts expresged in thousands)

2014 2004
Percentage of Percentage of
Taxable Total Taxable Taxzable Total Taxable
Assessed Assessed Assessed Assessed
Taxpayer Yalue Rank Value Vu_juu Hank Viilue

HEB GROCERY COMPANY LP ] 18,771 I 0.83% b
MCALLEN LEVCAL INC 14,691 2 01.65% =
CAPOTE FARMS LTD 24,427 k! I.08% - 2
WILDER CORP OF DELAWARE 13,002 | 0.57% 13,453 | 1.12%
COSTCO WHOLESALE CORP 12,475 5 0.55% - 3
AEPR TEXAS CENTRAL COMPANY 10,635 4 0. 7% 10,862 3 0.90%
FIRS INVESTMENTS LT 1470 7 0.46% - L
COSTCO WHOLE SALE CORP B.587 H (A2%: -
MOALLEN LEVCAL LLC 9320 O 0,41 % -
DM REAL ESTATE LI* & OBK FAM 8,383 10 0.39% - -
TOTALFINAELE E&P USA INC - 12,429 2 1.03%
SOUTHWESTERN BELL TELE 9:237 4 0.77%
CENTRAL POWER & LIGHT B.617 - (0.72%
EL CENTRO MALL LTD - 7,999 [ .60%
LOWES MHOME CENTER INC - 2,306 7 (0.19%
LACK'S 6,092 ] 0,51%
HOME DEPOT, THE 3,028 9 0,49%
LOWES HOME CENTER INC . 2,558 G (1.21%

Tuotals ] IJI!MIB 5.8% 5 ?ﬂﬁﬂl 6.6%

Assessed Taxable Value § 2,266,654 § 1,203,205



City of Pharr, Texas
Property Tux Levies and Collections
Last Ten Fiscnl Yenrs
(amounts expressed in thousunds)

Collections within the

Total Tax Fiscal Year of the Levy Delinguent Totnl Colleetions to Date
Fiseal Year  Tax Levy? for Fercentage Caollections in Percentage

Ended Year Fiscal Year Amount of Levy Subsequent Years Amount of Levy
2005 004§ 9,233 § B335 90.3% S 804 $ 9139 99,0%
2006 2005 0,831 8,980 21.3% 747 9727 98.0%;
2007 2006 1,014 10,094 21.6% R02 10,896 08.9%
2008 2007 12,275 11,231 01.5% 902 - 12,133 98.8%
2009 2008 14,567 13,391 91.9% 967 14,358 98.6%
2010 2009 14,824 13.673 93.3% 800 14,532 98.0%
2011 2010 14,674 13,559 92 4% Fé 14,265 97.2%;
012 20101 14,576 13771 94.5% 1,050 14,821 101.7%
2013 2012 14,821 14,049 94.8% 732 14,781 99, 7%
2014 2013 15,317 14,651 D5.5% G40 15271 99. 7%

*Tax Levy including modifications throughout the yenr

Sources: City of Pharr Tox Assessor/Collector
Hidalgo County Tax Assessor/Collector
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Fiscal
Year

2005
2006
2007
2008
2008
2010
2001
2012
2013
2014

City of Pharr, Texns
Ratios of General Bonded Debt Outstanding
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(amounis expressed in thousands, except per eapila amount)

Percentage of
Estimated
General Actual Taxable
Obligation Value' of Per
Bonls Property Capita®

¥ [6.110 1.15% % 273
16,025 1.08% 261
15,935 (0.96% 248
15,840 0.86% 240
15,120 . 70% 220
14,395 0.54% 214
15,750 1.57% 224
14.300 0.32% 197
12,800 0.406% 177
11,295 0.38% 154

Mote: Details regarding the city's outstanding debi can be found in the notes o the linanclal satements.

"5ee the Sehedule of Assessed Value and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Propeny for property value daia.
* Population dati can be found in the Schedule of Démographle and Economic Statistics
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CHy of Phorr, Texns
Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt
A of September 30, 2014
(amaounts expressed n thousands)

Exstimnted
Debi Perceniage
oy tnl Uini Outstunding Applicyble!
Debt repaid with property laxes:
Hidalge County £ lelRas 5.2%
Hidalgs Irrignion District 41 - 0.0%
South Texns College 44,385 53,1%
South Texas 15D : 0,0%,
Pharr, San Juan, Alinso Independent School [isire 358,390 G1.0%
Overlapping debi
City of Phary divéct delw 23,4235 1000, 0ty

total direct and overlapping debt

Soutees: Assesund viluo diin need (o asimeta spgilicable porcaninges provided by the County Hourd of Equalization md Ansemim eni
13kt o sl g e provided by the county. Dt as of 12231/3004

Hote: Overlapping povernmenis arg iase that cotoonde, sl beast i pard, with he geogisphic boundinies of the eity This scheduls snimales
tha portien of Mo oulstanding debt ol hose overlapping povermmonts ihat o bore by the residents ood busmesses of the City of Phorr

This process recaghizes thal, when considening the gavernment's ahiliv 10 lrsue sl repiy long-lerm debi, (he entig debi

burden borne by the residents and buninosses should be iwken nto seeount. Hovwever, thin does it imply that every s payer e o resident,
and thorefore msponsible for repaying the dobi, of cach overlagping govormmani '

"The perceniuge of overlapping debi npplicable is estimoted sy 1axable assessed property vihies, Applicable poroontages wore estimated
by détermming ilic portion of he gonnty's iahlo lmd value thai is within fhe governments bowndaces md dividmg 0 by e county's
tolal taxable assewied valie

-102-

Estimmnicd
Share of
Overlapping

Debt

£ 8475

235N

218447
250,496

23,825

¥ 276,321
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City of Pharr, Texns
Pledged Revenue Covernge
Lnst Ten Fisenl Years
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Water & Sewer Revenue Bonds

Utllity

Sewer Less: Met
Fisen! Charges Operating Avallable Debt Service
Year and Other Expenses Revenue Principal Interest Covernpg
2005 5 7.829 § 4,881 % 2948 % 1291 § Gl 1.56
2006 11,5 3,095 5,899 937 542 3.59
207 11,054 5.427 6,527 451 505 4.51
2008 13,820 5910 7.910 2,265 1.872 .91
2009 13,259 5714 7,345 2,330 1807 182
2000 12,473 5,750 6,723 2,385 1,749 163
2011 13,553 6,916 1,607 2463 1670 1.60
m32 13,814 TAGS 4,349 1540 1.598 1.53
013 13,971 7043 6,934 2,540 1,608 1.67
2014 13,670 T.462 5,308 2.870 1,675 [.28

Mote: Detnils regariling the govermment’s outeianding debi can be Tound In ihe notes 1o e finaneial
stwtements, Uiility ehirges and other revenues include only ulility service charges, investment sarmings, and g foes
Opemting expenses do not include interest or depreciation, Historical informustion tken from prior financial reposts.
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Emplover
Phare-San Juan-Alamo 15D
Valley View 151D
City of Pharr
Ticketmasier
Convergy's
VIDP Healtheare
Rayal Freight
Luack's Valley Store Lid
HEBR
Alento Contiact LIS Teleservices

Total

Pharr-San Juen-Alamo [SD
Convergy's

Lack's

Cily of Pharr

Ticketmaster

Texas Departiment of Transportation

HEB Food Stores
Lowe's

Frank Smith Toyota
Home Depot

Total

City of Pharr, Texas
Principal Employers
Fiscal Year Ending 2014 and 2005

2014
Pércentage
of Total City
Rank Employmeni®

4,325 | 18.73%

706 2 3.06%

360 3 243%

480 4 2.08%

430 5 1.86%

417 ] 1.81%

380 7 1.65%

361 8 1.56%

290 9 1.26%

280 1] 1L.21%

8,229 35.64%

2005
Percentage
of Total City
Employees Rank Employment

Unknown - 0.00%
Linknown - 0.00%
Unknawn - 0.00%
Unknawn - 0.00%
Unknown - {.00%
Unknown - 0.00%
Unknown 0.00%
Unknown 0.00%
Unknown 0.00%
Unknown - 0,00%
- 0.00%

Saurce: EMSI] Dec, 2013, Workforce Solutions Lower RGY

* Information wag nol (racked to provide stated information..
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Full-Tine Equivalent City Government Employees by Funetion

GENERAL FUND
City Mmnager
Finane
Police Deparinient
Truffic Snfety
Municipal Courd
Fire Protection
Administrtive Services
Streel Maintenance
Information Teehnalogy
Munieipa) Library
Parks & Heereniion
Planning & Community Dey
Engineer

Taotal General Fund

UTTLITY FUND
Administiative
Water Produciion
Water Distribution
Water Tresiment Mlamt
Lif Station
Total Utility Funl

INTERNAL SERVICE FUND
Chiel’ Mechanic
Laborers
Total Internnl Sve Fuml

Direetor
(hers
Total Int'l Bridge

OTHER
CRG
Goll Course
Events Cenler
Total Oiher

GRAND TOTAL

Source: City of Pharr Budget Reports

City of Phurr, Texas

Last Ten Fisenl Years

Budgeted Full-tine Equivalent Empoyees as of September 30, 2014

=107-

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2m2 2013 2014

8.0 5.4 9.0 0.0 2.0 8.0 15 0.5 83 15.0
12,0 125 135 14,0 5.5 9.0 9.0 4.0 14.0 140
1340 6.0 155.0 167.0 I61.0 eho 1720 1.5 1764 186.5
I6.0 13.0 16,0 17.0 16.0 16,0 6.0 | 7.0 i7.0 i
6.0 6.0 6.0 .0 5.0 0.5 7.5 7.5 ED 740
37.0 37.0 65,0 o8.0 G0 630 10 730 7RO 2240
0.0 0.0 il 0 7.0 1.5 0 0.0 0.0 0.0
23.0 8.0 0.0 9.0 19.0 Lo 330 1240 2.0 48,0
0.0 u.h 0.0 (L4 0.0 0 2.5 20 50 L0
230 25.0 ) 26.0 6.0 225 225 s 235 250
0.0 71.40 130 73,40 1020 1020 6.1 68,1 62,1 56,8
220 0.0 23.0 23.0 2.0 18.5 18.5 185 200 325
.0 0.4 1.0 0.0 i {0 0.4l 4.4 5.5 1.5
A0 387.5 116.5 432.0 4485 4460 4338 4426 450 4713
a0 8.5 105 1.0 12.5 a3 2.0 g4 B0 9.0
00 Q.0 1.0 1.0 10,0 10,0 10.0 1.0 13.0 15.0
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To Honorable Mayor and City Commission
City of Pharr, Texas

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to {inancial audits comtained in Government Auditing Standardy issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, the blended component units, the aggregate discretely presented component units, sach major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of Pharr, Texas, as of and for the year ended September 30,
2014, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise City of Pharr, Texas’s basic
financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated February 5, 2015,

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered City of Pharr, Texas’s internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of City of Pharr, Texas's internal control. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of City of Pharr, Texas’s internal control,

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned funetions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A marerial weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency 1s a deficiency, or a

combination of deficiencies, in internal contral that is less severe than a material wenkness, yet important enongh
to merit atlention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were nat
identified. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we
consider fo be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. We
did identify certain deficiencies in internal control, described in the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs that we consider to be significant deficiencies. 2014-1.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of oblaining reasonable assurance ahout whether City of Pharr, Texas's financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts,
and grant ngreements, ioncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of
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financial statement amounts, However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required (o be reported under Government Auditing

Statrdareds and which are described in the accompanymg schedule of findings and questioned costs as items 2014-
2, 2014-3 and 2014-4.

City of Pharr, Texas’s Response to Findings

City of Pharr, Texas™s response tu the findings identified in our audit is described in the accompanying schedule
of findings and questioned costs, City of Pharr, Texas’s response was not subjected 1o the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report is solely o deseribe the scope of our testing of internal contral and conipliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on

compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Aucliting

Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not
suitable for any other purpose,

Lt & ‘4»‘»74-";.“ L f-ﬂ-"ﬂﬂ-h’xhrf M

Osear R, Gonzalez, CPA & Associates, PLLC
Certified Public Accountant

Pharr, Texas
February §, 2015
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM
AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY OMB CIRCULAR A-133

To Honorable Mayor and City Commission
City of Pharr, Texas

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited City of Pharr, Texas's compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in the
OMB Ce'rmefar A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of City of Pharr,
Texas's major federal programs for the year ended September 30, 2014. Cily of Pharr, Texas's major federal

programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs,

Muanagement’s Respansibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants
applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is 10 express an opinion on compliance for each of City of Pharr, Texas’s major federal
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our andit
of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America: the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of Startes, Local Governments, and Non-Profit
Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to abtain
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above
that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on

a test basis, evidence about City of Pharr, Texas’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our andit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal
program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of City of Pharr, Texas’s compliance.
Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

Inour opinion, City of Pharr, Texas, complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements

referred 10 above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year
ended September 30, 2014.
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Oiher Matiery

The results of our auditing procedures disclosed instances of noncompliance, which are required to be reported in
accardance with OMB Circular A-133 and which are described in the accompanying schedule of findings and

questioned costs as item 2014-4. Our opinion on each major federal program is not modified with respect to these
matters.

City of Pharr, Texas's response ta the noneompliance findings identified in our audit is described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. City of Pharr, Texas’s response was nol subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the response.

Repori on Infernal Control over Compliance

Management of City of Pharr, Texas, is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal contral
over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our
audit of compliance, we considered City of Pharr, Texas's internal control over compliance with the types of
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major feders! program to determine the auditing
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for
each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over complinnce in accordanee with OMB
Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of infernal contral over

compliance, Accordingly, we do nof express an opinion on the effectiveness of City of Pharr, Texas's internal
control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal centrol over compliance exists when (he design or operation of & control aver compliance
does not allow management or emplayees, in the normal course of pecforming fheir assipned functions, (o prevent,
or detect and correct, noncompliance with @ type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely
basis. A mafterial weakness in infernal eontrol aver compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in
internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a
type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and comected, on a timely
basis. A significcant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination af
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that

is less severe than a malerial weakness in internal control over complinnce, yet important enough to merit
attention by lhose charged with governance,

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described i the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies, We did not identify any deficiencies i internal control aver

compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material wenknesses may exist that have not
been identified.,

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to deseribe the scope of our testing of

internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of OMB Circular A-133.
Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose,

‘::rlwtud' "‘.Ilw -l'ﬁﬂ" ‘"?" CAa f’a Mﬂfd"ﬁll:ﬁ‘i'p fud"

Oscar R. Gonzalez, CPA & Associates, PLLC
Certified Public Accountant

Pharr, Texas
February 3, 2015
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CITY OF PHARR, TEXAS
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

Federal Gramor/

Pass=Through Gramor/
Program Title
LS, DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY

Passed Through Govemmor's Divigion of Emergency Managenmenl:
{peration Stonegarden
Tolal LS. DEPARTMENT OF HOMELARND SECLRITY

LS. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT.
Passed Through Direet Programs:

Community Development Block Grani

Community Development Block Grant

Cammunity Development Block Granl

Community Development Block Grani
Total Possed Through Direct Programs

Total LS. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT

LLS. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

Pussed Through Dircet Programs:
COPS Hiring Grnl Progrum
SMART Policing Initintive

Totul Passed Through Direct Programs

Pussed Through Governor's Division of Crlminal Justice:
Humun Trafficking Linison Grant 13/14

Total Passed Through Governor's Division of Criminal Justice

. LR nL :,.,'-,,.,-;
Passed Through Direct Programs:
ARRA - Domestic Violence Coordinator Project
Fotal AMERICAN RECOVERY AND REINVESTMENT ACT
Total LLS. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

.'»I s l!ﬁ Pﬁ |!'|lh’_j["ﬂlﬂ.l'1 I“ [.' '{'Rms! |H }:
Passed Through Direct Programs:
Operdtion Task Ferce

Total LLS, DEPARTMENT OF TREASURY

Passed Through Texss Facilities Commission
Federal Surplus Property Prornm
Toml LLS. GENERAL SERVICES ADMINISTRATION

TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
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Federal Pass-Through
CFDA Entity Identifying Federl
Muiber Mumibier Expendilures
97.067 EMW-2012-58-0018-01 _§ 374851
174851
14.218 B-H-MO-AR-0507 5,358
14.218 B | 2-MC<18-0507 198,815
14.218 B-13-MU=18-1507 1,308,449
141218 B- [ 4-MC-48-0507 L3I
1,874,133
L7410
16,710 2000-UM-WX-0306 204 601
16,718 200 1-NDRPIX-0030 3235313
377,194
16.573 VA=10-V30-24305-04 __Z:rill_ﬁlu
34161
16,575 WF=11-V30-22994-03 27113
27113
298409
21.00 H25A1599 _1%_3_3_9___
— 8380
39,003 13480 46,451
46451




CITY OF PHARR, TEXAS
SCHEDLE OF EXPENDITURES OF STATE AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

Cirantor/

l‘rugmm Title

OFFICE OF THE ATTORMEY GEMERAL
Victim Coordinator Liaison Grant 12713
Towl OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

STATE CRIMINAL JUSTICE PLANNING
STOP Failure to Attend School FY 13/14
Tainl STATE CRIMINAL JUSTICE PLANNING

TEXAS DEPARTMENT OF MOTOR VEHICLES
South Texas Auto Thelt Enforcement Task Force 11/12
Total TEXAS DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

TEXAS WATER DEVELOPMENT BOARD
Regional Water and Wastewater Facilities Planning
Total TEXAS WATER DEVELOPMENT BOARD

TEXAS DEPARTMEN OF PUBLIC SAFETY
l.ocal Border Security Program
Total TEXAS DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY

LOWER RIO GRANDE VALLEY DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL
Regional Solid Waste Grant Program
South Pharr Sidewalk Improvements Project

Total LOWER RIO GRANDE VALLEY DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL

BORDER ENVIROMENT COOPERATION COMMISSION.
Keeping Pharr Beautifull.. . Starts at Home Program
Total BORDER ENVIROMENT COOPERATION COMMISSION

TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF STATE AWARDS

TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL & STATE AWARDS
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Grant
Mumber Expenditures
1332931 34,636

5F=14=120-2546802

SA-TOL-10041-13

1004831080

LBSP 2014-0058

12-21-G02

20243

34,636

21419
21,419

86,587
86,587

1,350
1,350

156,687
156,087

30,855

53,722

84,577

2145|

21,451

4OG-I 706

§ 3.033!933



City of Pharr, Texas
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS
Year Ended September 30, 2014

1. Genernl Stntement

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards presents the activity of all federal and siate swnrd
programs of the City of Pharr, Texas, for the year ended September 30, 2014, The reporting entity cousists of the primary
government, organizations for which the primary government i not accountable, but for which the nature and significance of

their relationship with the primary government are such that exclusion would cause the reporting entity’s financial statement
misleading or incomplete,

Financial accountability exits if a primary government appoints a vating majority of an organization’s governing board und is
either able to impose its will on that organization or there is potential for the organization 1o provide specific financial
bhenefils fo, or impose specific financial burdens on, the primary government. A primary government may also be linancially
accountuble for governmental organizations with a separately elecred governing board, a goveming board appointed by
another government, or a jointly appointed board that is fiscally dependent on the primary government.

In wccordance with Governmentdl Accounting Standards Board requirements, the City hos reviewed other entities und

aclivities Tor possible inclusion in the reporting entity and determined that there are pone: however. federal limineial
assistance passed through other governmental agencies is included on the schedule,

L. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

The federal und state grant funds were accounted for in the Grant Fund, a governmental fund type, and in an enterprise fund.
The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund is determined by its measurement focus, The
governmental fund types are accounted for using a current financial resources measurement focus, Wit the governmenial
fund type measurement focus, only current assets and current liabilities generally are included on the balance sheel,

Operating stalements of these funds present increases (i.e., revenues and other financing sources) and decreases (i.e.,
expenditures and other financing uses) in net current assets

The modified accrual basis of accounting is used for the govemnmental fund types, This basis of accounting recognizes
revenues in the accounting period in which they become susceptible ta acerual, i.e., both measureable and available, and
expenditures in the accounting period in which the fund liability is incurred, it measureable, excepl for certain compensated

absences and claims and judgments, which are recognized when the obligations are expected to be liquidated with
expendable available financial resources.

Enterprise funds are used 1o secount for those operations that are financed and operated in a mamer similar o private
business or where (he governing body has decided that the determination of revenues earned. costs incurred, and/or pet
income is necessary for management sccountability. Enterprise funds are accounted for on the flow of economic

resources measurement focus and use the accrual basis of accounting.  Under (his methad, revenues are recorded when
camed and expenses are recorded af the time labilities are incurred.

Federal and state grant funds are generally considered eamed to the extent of expenditures made under the pravisions of the
grant, and accordingly. when such funds are received they are recorded as deferred revenues until earned.

3. Basis of Presentation

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal and state awards includes (he federal and sine grant activity of the
City of Pharr, Texas and is presented on the modified acerual basis of accounting, The information in this schedule is
presented in accordance with the reguivements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of State, Local Governments, and Non-Prafil
Organizations and the State of Texas Single Audit Circular. Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedile may difler
from umounts presented in, or use in the preparation of the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF PHARR, TEXAS

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

SECTION I - SUMMARY OF AUDITOR RESULTS - CURRENT FISCAL YEAR

A. Summuary of Auditor's Resulis

. Financial Statements

UNMODIFIED
Type of auditor's report issued
Internal control over finuncial reporting:
= One or more materjal wenkness identified? YES X HNo
* One or more significant deficiencies identified that
are not considered to be maierial wenknesses? X YES MO
Noncompliance material 1o finaneial statements notes? YES X __NO
2. Federnl Awirds
internal control over major programs:
= One or more material weakness identified? YES X NO
* One or more significant deficiencies identified thai
are not considered to be material weaknesses? X  YES NO
Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major programs: UNMODIFIED
Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reporied
in accordance with section S10(n) of Circular A-1337 X YES N0
Identification of major programs:
CFDA Numbers Name of Federal Program or Clusier
14.218 Conmunity Development Block Grant
97.667 Governor Division of Emergency Mansgement! lomeland Securily Grant Program
16,575 ARRA-Crime Victim Assistanze - Domestie Vinlenve Cordinmor Project
Dallar threshold used 1o distinguish between type A and type B programs: % 300,000
Auditee qualified as low-risk nuditee? X YES NO
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SECTION I - SUMMARY OF AUDITOR RESULTS - CURRENT FISCAL YEAR - Continuad
A. Bummary of Auditor's Results - Continued
3, State Awards

Lnternial contral over major programs;

« Material weakness identified? YES X ONOD
= Significant deficiencies identificd that are not .
considered to be material weaknesses? YES X MNONE
REPORTED
Type of audilor's report issued on compliance for major programe: LNMODIFIED
Any audit findings disclosed that are required 1o be reparted
in sccordance with section §10(a) of Circular A-1337 YES X NO

Identification of major programs:

Cirant Number Name of State Program or Cluster

LBSP-11-0032 Lacal Border Security Program

Dallar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B programs: b 300,000
Auditee qualified s low-risk auditee? X YES NO
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City of Pharr, TX
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended September 30, 2014

B. Financial Statement Findings

Schedule Reference: (2014-1) Purchasing Policies
Criteria: The City purchasing will follow applicable procurement laws and approved City’s internal purchasing
procedures manual. Specifically, the purchase order process.

Condition: The purchasing procedures approved are not being followed or adhered 10, Department heads

responsible do not utilize purchase orders as specified in The City’s purchasing policies nor do they follow
approval procedures on a timely basis.

Cause: Auditor reviewed several invoices for procedures followed and found several purchase order farms

being processed after the purchase was made, if processed at all. Auditor interviewed department heads and
found through the interviews that these findings were accurate and in some instances purchases were made

without following proper procedures and/or approval was done after the purchase was completed.

Effect: Purchases were made that did not follow the proper approval procedures.

Recommendation: Purchasing policies should be followed and all purchase orders should be approved as
specitied in the purchasing manual.

Auditee’s Response: We concur. Purchasing policies will be reviewed und updated to coincide with internal
operations while continuing to maintain strong internal conirols.

Questioned Costs: Unknown

Schedule Reference: (2014-2) Competitive Bidding or Competitive Proposals Required

Criteria: The City should adhere 10 Texas Local Government Chapter 252, in specific, competitive bidding, and
complying with all requirements of the bid process and honoring the selected bid. For projects or purchases with
expenditures of more than $50,000 a competitive bid procedure should be followed. The Company awarded the

bid, should be used for the project awarded, . The original contract price may not be increased under sectjon
252.048 of Texas Local Government Code by more than 25%.

Condition: Auditor reviewed the bidding process and found several instances of noncompliance with State laws,
Projects with expenditures well over $50,000 were not bided out. A Company that was awarded a bid was not
used for a considerable portion of the project, instead another company that was doing business with the City,
was used. which resulted in paying more for the project due to the company used charged more than what the
awarded company had bided. In addition, a change order was not processed correctly for a projeet that total
costs increased well above the 25% (hreshold. The Company was paid prior to advising the City Council of the
increase of costs well over the 25% threshold and a month later the commission approved the change order, in
addition no retainage was kept as required by the contract on this project,

Cause: Lack of internal contrals over the biding process and/or lack knowledge of State and City biding policies
and procedures.

-120-



Effect: Violation of Texas Local Government Chapter 252.

Recommendation: Management should ensure all individuals involved in the purchasing procedures are
knowledgeable and follow the local and state government codes and policies.

Auditee’s Response: We concur. Training will take place to ensure all departments are aware of local and state
laws concerning competitive bidding. Monitoring of all bids will take place more frequently to ensure we are
always in compliance.

Questioned Costs: Unknown

Schedule Reference: (2014-3) Pharr Events Center

Criteria: All expenditures, except those that fall under a specific category, $50,000 or more must be approved
by the City Commission and, if applicable, follow the competitive bidding process per Texas Local Government
code, Chapter 252 and City Purchasing Policies. Agreements with third parties should be in writing and should
specify in detail the purposes of the agreement and the responsibilities of both parties. All reporting that is
provided to the City Council should be accurate in order for them to be able to make fiscally responsible
decisions.

Condition: The City Manager entered into a verbal partnership agreement with a third party for promotion of
the City. The City Council gave the City Manager authority to handle all transactions (rental of the facilities) of
the Pharr Events Center. This authority does not prevail State Laws governing purchasing. During the audit
review of a particular event, auditor found that the report provided to the council was inaccurate. Tickets sold
were reported as 3,900, when in actuality, it was 2,199 rickets that were sold. This resulted in a significant loss
for the City.

Cause: Lack of internal controls over the purchasing process and/or knowledge of State and City purchasing
policies and procedures.

Effect: Violation of the Texas Local Government code, Chapter 252 and City Purchasing policies.

Recommendations: All partnership agreements should be in writing; detailing the specifics, responsibilities and
limitations of both parties. Any transaction that results in an expenditure of $50,000 or more should be
approved by City Council and all reporting provided to the City Council should be as accurate as possible in
order for them to be able to make fiscally responsible decisions.

Auditee’s Response: We concur. With Resolution R-2012-02, the City Manager is “authorized to negotiate the
terms and conditions of any agreements with any promoter, entertainer, or tenant for use of the Pharr Events
Center”, the resolution is being reevaluated to ensure it falls in line with the Chapter 252 of the Texas Local
Government Code. The Events Center’s Partnership Program with our in-house promoters was on a one year
test basis, as of September 2014, the program is no longer in effect. The situation leading to this finding will no
longer take place.

Questioned Costs: $295,751

121



Federal Awards Findings:

Schedule Reference: (2014-4) Community Development Block Grant (CDBG)

Criteria: The City should adhere to Texas Local Government Chapter 252, in specific, competitive bidding, and
complying with all requirements of the bid process and honoring the selected bid. For projects or purchases with
expenditures of more than $50,000 a competitive bid procedure should be followed.

Condition: Auditor reviewed the bidding process used in projects and found several instances of noncompliance
with State laws. A change order was not processed correctly for the project that total costs increased well above
the 25% threshold and they did not rebid as required by state law. The Company was paid prior to advising the
City Council of the increase of costs well over the 25% threshold and a month later the commission approved
the change order, in addition no retainage was kept as required by the contract on this project.

Cause: Lack of internal controls over the biding process and/or lack knowledge of State and City biding policies
and procedures.

Effect: Violation of Texas Local Government Chapter 252.

Recommendation: Management should ensure all individuals involved in the purchasing procedures are
knowledgeable and follow the local and state government codes and policies.

Auditee’s Response: We concur. Training will take place to ensure all departments are aware of local and state
laws concerning competitive bidding. Monitoring of all bids will take place more frequently to ensure we are
always in compliance.

Questioned Costs: $295,368.88
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CITY OF PHARR, TEXAS
CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN

Schedule Reference: (2014-1): Purchasing Policies
Purchasing Policies will be reviewed and updated to coincide with internal operations while to maintain
strong internal controls,

Schedule Reference: (2014-2): Competitive Bidding or Competitive Proposals Required
Training will take place to ensure all individuals in the purchasing procedures are knowledgeable
and follow the local and state government codes and policies.

Schedule Reference: (2014-3): Pharr Events Cenfer
Current Resolution R-2012-02 is being reevaluated to ensure it falls in line with the Chapter 252
of the Texas Local Government Code

Schedule Reference: (2014-4): Community Development Block Grant (CDBG)
Training will take place to ensure all departments are aware of local and state laws concerning

competitive bidding, Monitoring of all bids will take place more frequently to ensure we are
always in compliance.

Contact Persons responsible for corrective action:

Primary Government-City of Pharr, Texas

Fred Sandoval, City Manager Juan G. Guerra, CPA, Chief Financial Officer
118 S Cage Blvd. 118 S Cage Blvd.

Pharr, Texas 78577 Pharr, Texas 78577

(956)-702-5300 (956)-702-5300

Component Units-Pharr Economic Development Corporation, Inc. (PEDC 4B), Pharr Public Facilities
Corporation # 1
Fred Sandoval, City Manager/Executive Director
118 S Cage Blvd.
Pharr, Texas 78577
(956)-702-5300
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